
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, JULY 25, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Water Utility Update by Sam Heady, Water Utility Director 

B. Electric Utility Update by Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. June 27, 2023 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-Agendaed 
items) 

A. Bill of Sale by and between 7-Eleven Inc. and the City of Lake Worth Beach 

B. Work Order #2 with Johnson-Davis Inc. for John Rice Way Drainage Improvements 

C. Agreement with BlueTriton Brands, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of potable bottled water 
in emergency situations. 

D. Agreement with Phoenix Bus Inc for the transportation of contract and/or mutual aid crews 
during emergency situations 

E. Resolution No. 27-2023 – State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Stormwater Project 
Reallocation 

F. Resolution No. 28-2023 -- First Amendment to the Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement 
with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to include City’s preferred decorative 
lighting 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Installation of a Level 2 Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging station at the City Hall parking lot 

B. Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) 

C. First Amendment to Agreement with ULS Corporate Inc. for the purchase and delivery of 
overhead, pole-mounted distribution transformers 

D. Construction Agreement for the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement. 
Program with Edison Power Constructors, Inc. 



ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 81-
2022). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JUNE 27, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:04 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:30) 

 

Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy (arrived at 6:06 PM). 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Melissa Ann 

Coyne. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:46) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: (1:09) 

 

Mayor Resch requested that an introduction of Sam Heady, the new Water Utility Director, be 

added after Public Participation. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz. 

NAYS: None. ABSENT: Vice Mayor McVoy. 

PRESENTATIONS: (1:42) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Electric Utility Update by Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA:  
 

No one from the public commented. 

 

INTRODUCTION OF SAM HEADY (20:52) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (26:40) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

following minutes:  

 

A. May 30, 2023 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 



Pg. 2, Utility Meeting, June 27, 2023 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) (26:56) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 

 

A. Purchase Order with PSI Technologies, Inc for a BBA Sewage and Trash Pump with 

Trailer for the Water Utilities Department 

 

B. Authorize Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Program application for a loan for 

conducting Lead Service Line Inventory of water system service lines 

 

C. Resolution No. 23-2023 – Designate Sam Heady as the City’s Board Member for the East 

Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECR) representing Lake Worth Beach  

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (27:01) 

 

A. Purchase Order with Ametek Power Instruments (27:02) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Purchase Order with Ametek Power Instruments. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

B. Third Amendment to LE Myers Work Order No. 7 (28:02) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Third Amendment to LE Myers Work Order No. 7. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

C. Agreement with ABB Inc. for the purchase of magnetically actuated 38kV vacuum circuit 

breakers (28:48) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Agreement with ABB Inc. for the purchase of magnetically actuated 38kV vacuum circuit 

breakers.  

. 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

D. Agreement with Powell Electrical for the 6th Ave S. Substation Metal-Clad Switchgear 

Building (30:29) 

 



Pg. 3, Utility Meeting June 27, 2023 

 

Action: Motion amended by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

the Agreement with Powell Electrical for the 6th Ave S. Substation Metal-Clad Switchgear 

Building for the revised amount of $3,154,890. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

E. Consent to Easement within the Federal Right-of-Way of the Intracoastal Waterway in the 

Lake Worth Lagoon to be issued by the US Army Corps of Engineers (34:17) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve the 

Consent to Easement within the Federal Right-of-Way of the Intracoastal Waterway in the 

Lake Worth Lagoon to be issued by the US Army Corps of Engineers 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (35:38) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to adjourn the 

meeting at 6:40 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 
 

 
____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: July 25, 2023 

 

Item time stamps correspond to the meeting recording on YouTube.  

 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Bill of Sale by and between 7-Eleven Inc. and the City of Lake Worth Beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

7-Eleven, Inc. provides the Bill of Sale to the City of Lake Worth Beach in accordance with the conditions 
of approval of the 7-Eleven Building Permit for 2-inch water service installed to serve the property at 
1900 10th Avenue North. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

7-Eleven located at 1900 10th Avenue North is nearing the final completion. As part of construction to 
provide additional water service to the property, the owner installed a 2-inch tap and watermain service 
from the City’s 6-inch watermain along Barnett Drive. The attached Bill of Sale gives ownership of the 2-
inch water service from the watermain along Barnett Drive to the water meter at 1900 10th Avenue North 
7-Eleven to the City. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Bill of Sale by and between 7-Eleven Inc. and City of Lake Worth Beach in 
accordance with the conditions of approval of the 7-Eleven Building Permit for ownership of the 2-inch 
water service installed to serve the property at 1900 10th Avenue North. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A. 
Bill of Sale 









N₂

N₂

CO₂

ARAGON AVENUE

B
A

R
N

E
TT

 D
R

IV
E

S88°04'03"E 291.50'

S
01

°4
8'

17
"W

12
2.

87
'

S3
0°

03
'05

"W
58

.1
0'

S84°26'58"W 198.81'

N88°04'03"W
66.83'

N
01

°4
8'

17
"E

20
0.

00
'

W
x

W
x

W
x

W
x

W
x

W
x

W
x

Wx Wx

Wx

EXIST. 6" PVC

S
S

x
S

S
x

S
S

x

SSx SS

E
X

IS
T.

8"
 P

V
C

E
X

IS
T.

 6
" P

V
C

EX
IS

T.
 G

AS

SSx

Wx

10th AVENUE NORTH

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE=18.00 NAVD

SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

D

C
B

S
D

SD
RESTORE PAVEMENT
TRENCH/OPEN CUT PER
CITY OF LAKE WORTH
STANDARD DETAIL

SD SD

EEEEE

E

G

G

CONCEPTUAL GAS SERVICE
TO BE CONFIRMED MY TECO

SEE DETAIL #1 FOR
SANITARY SEWER

SDSD

C
B

SS SS

W

W

CONNECTED TO EXIST. 6"
WATER MAIN WITH  2"
DOUBLE STRAP SADDLE
AND  CORP STOP
TOP=14.2
N:835178.78 E:959847.33

2" WATER SERVICE

2" 90° BEND
TOP=15.9

N:835179.01
E:959803.76

2" 90° BEND
TOP=16.0
N:835186.03
E:959803.76

2" RPZ
N:835184.59
E:959797.14

2" WATER SERVICE

2" 90° BEND
TOP=16.5
N:835230.19
E:959765.09

WATER METER
N:835231.99
E:959751.71

M

149.8 LF - 1"
PVC PIPE

2"X1" TEE
N:835229.71
E:959764.58

W

W
W

HOSE BIB
N:835154.04
E:959684.97

N₂

N₂

CO₂

SSx

Wx

PROPOSED BUILDING
FFE=18.00 NAVD

SD
SD

SD

EXIST. 1" WATER METER AND  EXISTING 1.5" RPZ
TO REMAIN AND TO BE USED FOR IRRIGATION.

CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH THE CITY
OF LAKE WORTH

S
D

S
D

S
D

SD SD SD

CONTRACTOR TO CONNECT
TO EXIST. WATER SERVICE

AND VERIFY SIZE AND
LOCATION (SEE PLUMBING

PLANS FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED UTILITY POLE.
TIE IN LOCATION (BY

OTHERS)

SD SD SD SD SD SD

EEEEEEEEEEE

E

E

CONST. 5" SCH 80
PVC CONDUIT

G

G

G

G

GAS CONNECTION TO BUILDING

PROP. DRAINAGE LINE.
SEE CP-101

EXIST. SANITARY
SEWER LINE

SAMPLE WELL (BY OTHERS)

6" C.O.
INV. EL. = 14.01

N:835260.88 E:959704.10

6" WYE
INV. EL. = 13.99

N:835261.10 E:959705.07

CONNECTED TO EXIST SAN. SEWER
C.O. INV. EL. = 12.07

N:835257.30 E:959799.59

96.3 LF-6" PVC
SANITARY SEWER

LATERAL @ 2.0%

6" 45° BEND
INV. EL. = 14.36

N:835260.12 E:959704.06

6" X4" REDUCER
INV. EL. = 14.55

N:835259.92 E:959703.88

4" C.O.
INV. EL. = 14.86

N:835258.30 E:959703.75

4" SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION TO BUILDING.
SEE PLUMING PLANS FOR DETAILS

INV. EL.=14.88

6" WYE
INV. EL. = 12.90

N:835259.57 E:959759.13

SS SS SS SS SS

6" C.O.
INV. EL. = 13.66
N:835251.60 E:959752.16

GREASE TRAP
(SEE PLUMING PLANS FOR DETAILS)

6" C.O.
INV. EL. = 14.91
N:835238.31 E:959751.76

W

W

W
W

M

W

W W W

W
W

UTILITY AS-BUILT

CU-101

1ST SUBMITTAL DATE:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

NO.
REVISIONS

BID / CONTRACT NO. :

PH: (954) 788-3400

SHEET TITLE

1

D

2 3

C

4 5

A

B

DESCRIPTION DATE

PROJECT NO. 11007.02

DESIGNED BY:

301 East Atlantic Boulevard
Pompano Beach, Florida 33060-6643

Florida Certificate of
Authorization # - 7928

120 North Federal Highway, Suite 208
Lake Worth, Florida 33460

SCALE:
MARCH 2020

AS NOTED

SHEET NUMBER

7-ELEVEN #41361
1900 10TH AVENUE

NORTH, LAKE WORTH,
FLORIDA 33461

AMC
JVP

CAR

(FOR THE FIRM)

CHRISTOPHER A. ROGERS, P.E.
FLORIDA REG.  NO. 67359

(FOR THE FIRM)

CHRISTOPHER A. ROGERS, P.E.
FLORIDA REG.  NO. 67359

IS
S

U
E

D
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 7
/0

1/
20

22

THE PRESENCE OF GROUNDWATER SHOULD BE
ANTICIPATED. CONTRACTOR'S BID SHALL

INCLUDE CONSIDERATION FOR ADDRESSING THIS
ISSUE AND OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY PERMITS.

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY SIZE AND
LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES

ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
SHOWN ARE BASED ON NAVD 1988

NOTES:

1. PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE
OF OCCUPANCY, THE APPLICANT SHALL
ENSURE THE ENTIRE SURROUNDINGS
OFF-SITE INFRASTRUCTURE INCLUSIVE OF
THE ROADWAY, SIDEWALK, CURBING,
STORMWATER SYSTEM PIPING AND
STRUCTURES, VALVE BOXES, MANHOLES,
LANDSCAPING, STRIPING, SIGNAGE, AND
OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ARE IN THE SAME
CONDITION AS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

2. PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE
OF OCCUPANCY, THE APPLICANT SHALL
BROOM SWEEP ALL AREAS OF THE
AFFECTED RIGHT OF WAY AND REMOVE  ALL
SILT AND DEBRIS COLLECTED AS A RESULT
OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.

3. PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE
OF OCCUPANCY, THE APPLICANT SHALL
RESTORE THE RIGHT OF WAY TO A LIKE OR
BETTER CONDITION. ANY DAMAGES TO
PAVEMENT, CURBING, STRIPING,
SIDEWALKS OR OTHER AREAS SHALL BE
RESTORED IN KIND.

N

0 20 40

SCALE: 1"=20'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NOTE: PRINTED DRAWING SIZE MAY HAVE
CHANGED FROM ORIGINAL. VERIFY SCALE

USING BAR SCALE ABOVE.

DETAIL #1
0 10 20

SCALE: 1"=10'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NOTE: PRINTED DRAWING SIZE MAY HAVE
CHANGED FROM ORIGINAL. VERIFY SCALE

USING BAR SCALE ABOVE.

PLAN

WATER & SEWER AS-BUILT SURVEY

E-MAIL: surveys@pulicelandsurveyors.com    CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION LB#3870
TELEPHONE: (954) 572-1777    FAX: (954) 572-1778

SUNRISE, FLORIDA 33351
5381 NOB HILL ROAD

BY

#70387 WATER AS-BUILT - DRAWN BY L.S.

CERTIFICATION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:
ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988.
PALM BEACH COUNTY BENCHMARK N 233; ELEVATION: 15.02 FEET.

2) ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE TOP OF PIPE.

#70388 SEWER AS-BUILT - DRAWN BY L.S.

AS-BUILT SURVEY



1

Julie Parham

From: Jorge Valle-Pellot <jvalle@keithteam.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 1:18 PM
To: Julie Parham; Melanie McFadden
Cc: Chris Rogers; Jessie Barrera; Judith Love; Brian Shields; Chris Walker; Anthony Belfiore
Subject: RE: 7-Eleven - 10th Ave, Lake Worth - Walk Thru (11007.02)
Attachments: 7Eleven Inc - Sunbiz.pdf

Caution: This is an external email. Do not click links or open attachments from unknown or unverified sources.  

 

Hi Julie 
 
Yes 7-Eleven has ground lease and is the responsible party constructing the improvements.  
The BOS was signed by Grant Distel. Sr Director of Development / VP for 7Eleven, Inc. (see attached sunbiz). 
 
Will you need any information from 7Eleven? 
 
Please advise 
 

 

Jorge Valle-Pellot, PE  
Senior Associate 
Office: 561.469.0992  
Email: jvalle@keithteam.com  
www.KEITHteam.com 

From: Julie Parham <jparham@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 12:49 PM 
To: Jorge Valle-Pellot <jvalle@keithteam.com>; Melanie McFadden <mmcfadden@keithteam.com> 
Cc: Chris Rogers <crogers@keithteam.com>; Jessie Barrera <JBarrera@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Judith Love 
<jlove@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Brian Shields <bshields@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Chris Walker 
<CWalker@lakeworthbeachfl.gov>; Anthony Belfiore <abelfiore@creightondev.com> 
Subject: RE: 7-Eleven - 10th Ave, Lake Worth - Walk Thru (11007.02) 
 
I received the below question upon legal review. Can you please advise? 
 
“I don’t know if 7 Eleven Inc. is the true owner – as the property owner appears to be 
different. And, its not clear who signed the bill of sale… is it the true owner or someone 
from 7 Eleven?” 
 
Thanks, 
 
Julie Parham, P.E. 









STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Work Order #2 with Johnson-Davis Inc. for John Rice Way Drainage Improvements 

 
SUMMARY: 

Work Order #2 with Johnson-Davis Incorporated provides construction of a connection between the 
stormwater system on John Rice Way and the Florida Department of Transportation stormwater system 
on Lake Ave to alleviate flooding along John Rice Way in the amount of $73,730. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City has noticed long lasting flooding and water in the John Rice Way alley in downtown Lake Worth 
Beach between Lake Ave and the alley north between N K and L Streets. After acid washing the 
exfiltration trench stormwater system, it was deemed insufficient to manage the stormwater in the area 
and that an additional connection to the stormwater system elsewhere would help remedy the standing 
water issue. The City worked with a consultant to design and permit plans with FDOT in short order for 
this emergency work. The City solicited quotes from its three emergency contractors; Johnson-Davis 
Incorporated, B&B Underground Construction and Hinterland Group. Johnson-Davis Incorporated 
provided the lowest cost for the work, which is included in Work Order #2 under Exhibit 1. The City is 
planning to have this work done before FDOT begins their project on Lake and Lucerne in November 
2023. 

This item is being brought forward in conjunction with the ARPA reallocation item under New Business 
A in order for this important project to be funded. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Work Order #2 with Johnson-Davis Incorporated for John Rice Way 
Drainage Improvements in the amount of $73,730. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Work Order #2 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital $73,730 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $73,730 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Stormwater  

Division Stormwater  

GL Description Improve other than Build 

GL Account Number  428-5090-538.63-15  

Project Number NR2003  

Requested Funds $73,730 

 



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(EMERGENCY UTILITY REPAIRS FOR WATER, WASTEWATER AND STORMWATER) 

WORK ORDER NO._2____ 
 

THIS WORK ORDER for Emergency Utility Repairs for Water, Wastewater and 
Stormwater  (“Work Order” hereafter) is made between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 
municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 (“City” 
hereafter) and Johnson-Davis Incorporated, a company authorized to do business in the State 
of Florida (“Contractor” hereafter). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment 
as identified herein related to the Emergency Utility Repairs for Water, Wastewater and 
Stormwater project generally described as: _John Rice Way drainage improvements . 
(the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the plans prepared by WGI, 
Inc., dated April 3, 2023, and which are incorporated herein by reference.  
 

2.0 Scope 
 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with 
construction services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 
 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within 60 
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services 
and work (and all punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within _90  
calendar days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work 
Order is the date following the parties’ execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery 
of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as 
documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the services and work has 
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently complete 
in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can 
be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all 
services and work (including punch-list items) has been completed and the project 
becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 
 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence 
under this Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer 
financial loss if the services and work described in this Work Order and the Contract 
Documents are not completed within the times specified in this Work Order. The 
City and Contractor recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical 
and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would 
suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the 
services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 
such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but 
not as a penalty) Contractor shall pay the City five hundred dollars ($500.00) for 
each day that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   
 



 
4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 
 

This Work Order is issued for a unit price, not to exceed amount of $73,730 (seventy three 
thousand seven hundred and thirty dollars and zero cents). The attached proposal 
identifies all costs and expenses included in the unit price, not to exceed amount. 
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: N/A. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is Jim Amsler, phone:561-588-1170; email: 
jamsler@johnsondavis.com; and, the Project Manager for the City is Julie Parham, 
phone:561-586-1798; email: jparham@lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 

 
6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project 
Manager as necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 
7.0 Contractor’s Representations 
 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
 
7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract 
Documents including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws 
and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing 
of the work. 
 
7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and 
test reports which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or 
otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as 
Contractor considers necessary for the performance or furnishing of the work at the stated 
work order price within the Work Order stated time and in accordance with the other terms 
and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of the IFB; 
and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or 
similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 
 
7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated 
on the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site and assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said 
Underground Facilities. No additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, 
reports, studies or similar information or data in respect of said Underground Facilities are 
or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and furnish the work under 
this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the other terms 
and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, 
investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the 



Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, 
errors or discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the 
written resolution thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work 

provided under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other 
Contract Documents. The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied 
under this Work Order shall be free from defects for one (1) year from the final completion 
of all work (unless a longer manufacturer warranty applies); (b) all services and work 
performed under this Work Order will be free from defects for one (1) year from the final 
completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without unreasonable 
downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 
of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year 
warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or 
the Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the 
Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole 
cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must 
include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, 
replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work 
and any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). 
The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid 
unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the event the 
Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the 
Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s discovery of the same, the City 
may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  
 

9.0 Authorization 
 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the Emergency Utility Repairs for Water, 
Wastewater and Stormwater Contract between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the 
Contractor, dated July 10, 2020 (“Contract” hereafter) as amended. If there are any 
conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the Contract, the terms 
and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 
  
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Exhibit 1: 
 
 

 
 
 

 



PREPARED FOR:
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

1749 3RD AVE SOUTH, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460

PROJECT/ CLIENT LOGO

PERMIT PLANS

C001
SHEET #:

JO
H

N
 R

IC
E 

W
AY

PH
AS

E 
II

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

PA
LM

 B
EA

C
H

 C
O

U
N

TY
, F

L

CONSULTANTS:

CIVIL PLANS

PROJECT TITLE:

N.T.S.

PROJECT LOCATED IN
SECTION 27 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST

STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE
PE LIC. NO. 83268
April 3, 2023

JACKSONVILLE

FT PIERCE

FT LAUDERDALE

MIAMI

NAPLES

TAMPA

ORLANDO

TALLAHASSEE
PENSACOLA

4

4

TURNPIKE

BEE LINE
EXPRESSWAY

FLORIDA SBARTOW

KEY WEST

CHIPLEY

DELAND

PREPARED BY:

ENGINEER OF RECORD

TOTAL SHEETS

12

LOCATION MAP

DESCRIPTION:DATE:NO:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:
DRAWN DATE:

MAS
2023-02-03

SCC

2974.29

 JOHN RICE WAY
PHASE II 2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220     www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

FOREST HILL BLVD

U
.S

. 1

BROWARD COUNTY

FL
A.

   
 T

U
R

N
PI

KE
LY

O
N

S 
R

D
.

GLADES RD.

PALMETTO PARK RD.

WEST ATLANTIC AVE

CLINT MOORE RD.

R.R.

M
IL

IT
AR

Y

JO
G

 R
D

. F.
E.

C
.

YAMATO RD.

S.
C

.L
.

BOYNTON BCH BLVD

U
.S

. 4
41

LANTANA RD.

LAKE WORTH RD.

TR
AI

L

R
.R

.

JO
G

  R
D

HYPOLUXO RD.

I-9
5

MARTIN COUNTY

SOUTHERN BLVD.

NORTHLAKE BLVD

BELVEDERE RD.

OKEECHOBEE BLVD.

H
AV

ER
H

IL
L 

 R
D

45th ST.

DONALD ROSS RD.

INDIANTOWN RD.
BEE    LINE    HWY.

F.
E.

C
.  

R
.R

.

P.G.A. BLVD

LAKE WORTH BEACH

AT
LA

N
TI

C
 O

C
EA

N

BOCA RATON

DELRAY BEACH

BOYNTON
 BEACH

LANTANA

WEST PALM 
  BEACH

BEACH
RIVIERA

JUNO BEACH

JUPITER

C
O

N
G

R
ES

S 
   

AV
E.

N.T.S. GARDENS
PALM BEACH

BLUE HERON BLVD

VERTICAL DATUM:  NORTH AMERICAN
VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD88)

HORIZONTAL DATUM:  NORTH AMERICAN
DATUM OF 1983, FLORIDA STATE
PLANES, EAST ZONE, U.S. FEET (NAD83)

TM

LAKE WORTH BEACH

LOCATION

SITE

LAKE AVE

LUCERNE AVE

S 
K 

ST

N
 L

 S
T

S 
L 

ST

N
 K

 S
T Sheet List Table

Set Number Sheet Number Sheet Title
1 C001 COVER

2 C002 GENERAL NOTES

3 C003 LOCATION MAP

4 C101 EXISTING CONDITIONS

5 CD101 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

6 CG101 PAVING, GRADING, AND DRAINAGE PLAN

7 CG102 DRAINAGE PROFILE

8 C501 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH DETAILS 1

9 C502 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH DETAILS 2

10 C503 FDOT DETAILS 1

11 C504 FDOT DETAILS 2

12 C505 FDOT DETAILS 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
295

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
75



0 10' 20'5'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

GE
NE

RA
L 

NO
TE

S

C002
2 12

2974.29

3/
27

/2
02

3 
4:

39
 P

M
4/

3/
20

23
 4

:5
4 

PM
M

AS
ON

 S
HU

TT
P:

\2
90

0\
29

74
.2

9 
LW

 J
oh

n 
Ri

ce
 D

ra
in

ag
e\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.2

9 
GE

NE
RA

L 
NO

TE
S.

dw
g

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THESE GENERAL NOTES APPLY TO WORK IN THIS SET OF DRAWINGS.

2. WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (FDOT) STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, JULY 2022 EDITION, FDOT STANDARD PLANS FY2022-23 OR LATEST
EDITION, AND CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH STANDARD DETAILS. ALL FDOT INDEXES ARE INCORPORATED AS PLAN
REFERENCED HEREIN. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING COMPLETE COPIES OF APPLICABLE FDOT INDEXES AND
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH STANDARD DETAILS.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 556-
UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT.

4. NO CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE UNTIL ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE BEEN SECURED AND THE
CONTRACTOR IS ISSUED A NOTICE TO PROCEED. CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY ALL PERMIT CONDITIONS.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SAFE VEHICULAR ACCESS TO ALL ADJACENT PROPERTY AT ALL TIMES AND SHALL MAINTAIN
ACCOMMODATIONS FOR INTERSECTING CROSSING TRAFFIC. NO ROAD OR STREET CROSSING SHALL BE BLOCKED OR UNDULY
RESTRICTED.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SAFE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND PROTECTION ADJACENT TO CONSTRUCTION THROUGHOUT
THE PROJECT.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAINTAIN THE EXISTING LEVEL OF ILLUMINATION THROUGHOUT THE PROJECT
LIMITS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

8. TWO (2) LANES OF ROAD MUST BE OPEN TO TRAFFIC DURING AN EVACUATION NOTICE OF HURRICANE OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENT AND SHALL REMAIN OPEN FOR THE DURATION OF THE EVENT AND UNTIL NOTIFIED OTHERWISE BY THE
ENGINEER.

9. EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS SHALL REMAIN UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM THE SEDIMENTATION DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ACCORDING TO DEP
FLORIDA STORMWATER, EROSION, AND SEDIMENTATION INSPECTOR MANUAL, SECTION 4.08 STORM DRAIN INLET
PROTECTION.

10. NO EXISTING MATERIAL SHALL BE USED IN NEW CONSTRUCTION UNLESS APPROVED DURING THE SHOP DRAWING REVIEW
PROCESS.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE CONSTRUCTION METHODS AND DEVICES AS INDICATED, AT A MINIMUM, IN FDOT STANDARD
INDEXES 100.101, 102, 103, 104, 105 WHERE NECESSARY IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH ALL STATE AND LOCAL WATER QUALITY
STANDARDS.

12. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR KEEPING INLETS CLEAN OF PAVING MATERIAL, SILT, ROCK, AND DEBRIS DURING THE
CONSTRUCTION AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

13. ALL AREAS DESIGNATED FOR PAVEMENT REMOVAL SHALL BE SAW-CUT AT THE LIMITS OF REMOVAL WHERE EXISTING
PAVEMENT IS TO REMAIN.

14. CROSS SLOPES SHALL MATCH EXISTING ADJACENT PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS.

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXERCISE EXTREME CAUTION WHILE REMOVING AND/OR RELOCATING EXISTING SIGNS IN ORDER TO
PREVENT ANY UNNECESSARY DAMAGE TO THE SIGNS. SIGNS WHICH ARE DAMAGED BEYOND USE, AS DETERMINED BY THE
ENGINEER SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CITY.

16. PROPOSED SIDEWALK IS TO BE CONNECTED TO EXISTING SIDEWALK WHERE APPLICABLE.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXTREMELY CAUTIOUS WHEN WORKING NEAR TREES WHICH ARE TO BE SAVED, WHETHER SHOWN ON
THE DRAWINGS OR DESIGNATED IN THE FIELD.

18. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJACENT WATER BODIES, WETLANDS AND PROPERTIES FROM SEDIMENTATION OR OTHER
POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED CAUSES.

19. ALL RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE INSPECTION PERSONNEL OTHER THAN THE OWNER'S SHALL BE
REPORTED TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION. COMPENSATION WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR WORK WHICH IS NOT
AUTHORIZED BY THE ENGINEER OR OWNER.

20. ALL WORK SHALL BE OPEN AND SUBJECT TO INSPECTION BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OF THE CITY, INVOLVED UTILITY
COMPANIES, PROJECT ENGINEER, AND EACH APPLICABLE REGULATORY AGENCY.

21. ANY DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS FROM THAT WHICH IS REPRESENTED HEREON, WHETHER ABOVE, ON OR BELOW THE
SURFACE OF THE GROUND, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER AND THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH IN WRITING. NO CLAIM FOR EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CONTRACTOR DUE TO DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS
WILL BE ALLOWED IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF SUCH CONDITIONS
FOR REVIEW BY THE ENGINEER AND THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH.

22. ALL EXISTING CITY OF LAKE WORTH SIGNS WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH ARE TO BE RELOCATED OR
REMOVED SHALL BE REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND STOCKPILE AT A LOCATION DESIGNATED BY THE ENGINEER.

23. ALL VEGETATION, DEBRIS, CONCRETE OR OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE DISPOSED OF LEGALLY OFFSITE BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT HIS EXPENSE.

24. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FURNISHING DETAILED TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE AND CONTROL DRAWINGS
ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATORY STANDARDS AND CURRENT FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS (FDOT
INDEX 600 SERIES) AND THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, REVISIONS 1 AND 2. THESE DRAWINGS SHALL
INCLUDE A CLEAR SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE AND SUBMIT TO THE ENGINEER AT THE
PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE THE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY ALL APPLICABLE REGULATORY
AGENCIES.

25. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING THE NECESSARY TESTING TO ASSURE THAT THE PROPER
COMPACTION HAS BEEN ACHIEVED IN THE SUBGRADE, BASE MATERIAL, CONCRETE, ASPHALT, PIPE BASE MATERIAL AND ALL
OTHER PERTINENT AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SCHEDULING THE TESTS AND
COORDINATING WITH THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH REPRESENTATIVE. THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH WILL PAY FOR INITIAL TESTS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH RETESTING OF FAILED TESTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE
THE CITY AND THE ENGINEER COPIES OF ALL TEST RESULTS. ALL REPORTS ARE TO BE SIGNED AND SEALED BY A REGISTERED
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

26. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL QUANTITIES, TAKE-OFF MEASUREMENTS, MATERIALS, ETC.
DURING THE BID PROCESS. WHEN DISCREPANCIES OCCUR, THE PHYSICAL PLAN TAKES PRECEDENCE. THE ENGINEER,
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, CITY OR PROJECT MANAGERS ARE NOT TO BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR DISCREPANCIES TO THE
SPECIFICATIONS OR DRAWINGS. QUANTITIES PROVIDED ARE PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY; IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY ALL QUANTITIES PRIOR TO BID SUBMITTAL.

27. SPECIAL ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE FACT THAT PORTIONS OF SOME DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AND CULVERTS MAY
EXTEND INTO THE STABILIZED PORTION OF THE ROAD BED AND EXTREME CAUTION WILL BE NECESSARY DURING
STABILIZATION OPERATIONS AT THESE LOCATIONS.

28. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO USE EXTREME CAUTION WHEN WORKING IN OR AROUND AREAS OF EXISTING LOOP AND LEAD-IN
WIRES; TRANSMISSION LINES, UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND OVERHEAD UTILITIES.

29. ALL TRENCHING OR EXCAVATION WITHIN THE PAVEMENT AREA SHALL BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF BASE AND
ASPHALT.

30. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC DIVISION, PHONE (561) 684-4030, TWO WORKING DAYS
PRIOR TO ANY MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE FULL RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL(S) WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.

GENERAL NOTES (CONTINUED):

32. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC DIVISION PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF LOOP ASSEMBLIES AND THEIR CONNECTION TO CONTROLLERS AT SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS WITHIN 
THE PROJECT LIMITS. INSTALLATION OF LOOP ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE PERFORMED AFTER MILLING AND RESURFACING.

UTILITIES:
1. THE LOCATION(S) OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS (INCLUDING THOSE DESIGNATED Vvh) ARE BASED ON LIMITED

INVESTIGATION TECHNIQUES AND SHOULD BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY. THE VERIFIED LOCATIONS/ELEVATIONS APPLY
ONLY AT THE POINTS SHOWN. INTERPOLATIONS BETWEEN THESE POINTS HAVE NOT BEEN VERIFIED. HOWEVER, NO
ASSURANCES ARE MADE BY THE ENGINEER OR CITY AS TO THEIR ACCURACY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE UTILITY
COMPANIES IN THE AREA OF WORK BEFORE BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

2. UPON RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF AWARD, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ATTEND A PRE CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE TO INCLUDE ALL
INVOLVED GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES, ALL AFFECTED UTILITY OWNERS, THE CITY, AND THE ENGINEER.

3. PRIOR TO EXCAVATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT SUNSHINE 811 AND THE UTILITY OWNER AND REQUEST UTILITY
LOCATIONS. A CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT WHEN UTILITY COMPANIES LOCATE THEIR FACILITIES.

4. UTILITY COMPANIES:

BRIAN SHIELDS
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH WATER AND SEWER UTILITY
(561) 586-1610

JEAN ST. SIMON
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ELECTRIC UTILITY
(561) 722-9734

JOHN LETSCH
PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC OPERATIONS
(561) 233-3923

TONY SPRINGSTEEL
COMCAST - PALM BEACH COUNTY
(772) 321-3425

BRAD COLLINS
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY
(772) 252-3308

GARTH BEDWARD
AT&T
(561) 540-9263

KELLY KLINEFELTER
CROWN CASTLE FIBER
(724) 743-6085

WINDSTREAM COMMUNICATIONS
(800) 289-1901

5. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY TO TAKE THE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS TO ENSURE PROPER SAFETY
AND WORKMANSHIP WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD UTILITY LINES. PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE SIZE, LOCATION, ELEVATION, AND MATERIAL OF ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES WITHIN THE AREA OF CONSTRUCTION.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY IF "OTHER" UTILITIES (NOT SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS) EXIST WITHIN THE
AREA OF CONSTRUCTION. SHOULD THERE BE UTILITY CONFLICTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THE ENGINEER AND NOTIFY
THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY OWNER(S) TO RESOLVE UTILITY CONFLICTS AND PERFORM UTILITY ADJUSTMENTS, AS REQUIRED.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY EXISTING UTILITIES FOR WHICH IT FAILS TO REQUEST
LOCATIONS FROM THE UTILITY OWNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS ALSO RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY EXISTING UTILITIES
WHICH ARE PROPERLY LOCATED.

8. IF UPON EXCAVATION, AN EXISTING UTILITY IS FOUND TO BE IN CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OR TO BE OF A
SIZE OR MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM THAT SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS; THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE
ENGINEER.

9. THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND STORM DRAINAGE SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN DETERMINED FROM THE
BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE AND ARE GIVEN FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. ENGINEER ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR INACCURACY. PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO MAKE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE FIELD LOCATIONS AND FOR ANY RELOCATIONS OF THE VARIOUS EXISTING
UTILITIES WITH THE UTILITY OWNERS, WHICH SHALL BE DONE IN A TIMELY MANNER TO MINIMIZE IMPACT ON THE
CONSTRUCTION  SCHEDULE. ANY DELAY CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR BY THE RELOCATION OF UTILITIES SHALL BE INCIDENTAL
TO THE CONTRACT AND NO EXTRA COMPENSATION WILL BE ALLOWED.

CONSTRUCTION SAFETY:

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A SAFE MANNER, SPECIFICALLY, THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA).

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE STATE OF FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT.

3. WHERE EXCAVATIONS TO A DEPTH IN EXCESS OF FIVE FEET (5') ARE REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE THE
FOLLOWING IN THE BID:

3.1. REFERENCE TO THE TRENCH SAFETY STANDARDS THAT WILL BE IN EFFECT DURING THE PERIOD OF CONSTRUCTION OF
THE PROJECT.

3.2. WRITTEN ASSURANCES BY THE CONTRACTOR PERFORMING THE TRENCH EXCAVATION THAT SUCH CONTRACTOR WILL
COMPLY WITH THE FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT.

3.3. A SEPARATE ITEM IDENTIFYING THE COST OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE TRENCH SAFETY STANDARDS.

RIGHT-OF-WAY:

1. ALL WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED FROM AND WITHIN EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY.

LEGEND
BOUNDARY / R.O.W.

EASEMENT / SETBACK

CURB / EDGE OF PVMT

BUILDING FACE

CONTOUR

WATER LINE

WASTEWATER LINE

FORCE MAIN

STORM DRAIN LINE

OVERHEAD UTILITY

UNDERGROUND UTILITY

GAS LINE

FENCE

RETAINING WALL

BENCHMARK

MAIL BOX

SIGN

WATER METER VAULT

WATER VALVE

WATER MANHOLE

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

UTILITY POLE

CLEAN-OUT

GUY WIRE

ELEC MANHOLE

ELEC TRANSFORMER PAD

AIR CONDITIONER UNIT

STORM DRAIN INLET

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

LEGEND
BOUNDARY / R.O.W.

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR

TREE PROTECTION

MULCH SOCK

SILT FENCE

LIMITS OF CONTRUCTION

ROCK BERM

INLET FILTER

PARKING, STORAGE,
SPOILS AND STAGING AREA

STABILIZED
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

CONCRETE WASHOUT

TREE (TO REMAIN)

TREE (TO REMOVE)

TP

###

MS

SF

LOC

TP

MS

SF

RB

IF

CW

LEGEND
BOUNDARY / R.O.W.

EASEMENT / SETBACK

CURB / EDGE OF PVMT

EXISTING CONTOUR

PROPOSED CONTOUR

OVERHEAD UTILITY

UNDERGROUND UTILITY

WATER LINE

WASTEWATER LINE

STORM DRAINAGE LINE

GAS LINE

DIRECTION OF FLOW

RETAINING/SCREEN WALL

WATER METER VAULT

WATER VALVE

WASTEWATER MANHOLE

UTILITY POLE

CLEAN-OUT

GUY WIRE

ELEC TRANSFORMER PAD

STORM DRAIN INLET

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

TREE W/ TAG (TO REMAIN)

###

OHE

WW

T
SD

SD

WL

WW

SD

UGE

GAS

EXISTING CONDITIONS

EROSION CONTROL

PAVING, GRADING, AND DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268

AutoCAD SHX Text
###

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
WW

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
###

AutoCAD SHX Text
###

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
###



PROJECT SITE

LUCERNE AVE

LAKE AVE

LUCERNE AVE

S 
K 

ST

S 
L 

ST

S 
J 

ST

1ST AVE S

2ND AVE S

S 
M

 S
T

N 
K 

ST

N 
L 

ST

N 
J 

ST

N 
M

 S
T

DI
XI

E 
HI

GH
W

AY

FE
DE

RA
L 

HI
GH

W
AY

2ND AVE N

0 100' 200'50'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

LO
CA

TI
ON

 M
AP

C003
3 12

2974.29

3/
20

/2
02

3 
10

:5
8 

AM
4/

3/
20

23
 4

:5
4 

PM
M

AS
ON

 S
HU

TT
P:

\2
90

0\
29

74
.2

9 
LW

 J
oh

n 
Ri

ce
 D

ra
in

ag
e\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.2

9 
LO

CA
TI

ON
 M

AP
.d

w
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



GAS
GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

LAKE AVE

N 
K 

ST

N 
L 

ST

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY

0 10' 20'5'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

DI
TI

ON
S

C101
4 12

2974.29

3/
23

/2
02

3 
4:

59
 P

M
4/

3/
20

23
 4

:5
6 

PM
M

AS
ON

 S
HU

TT
P:

\2
90

0\
29

74
.2

9 
LW

 J
oh

n 
Ri

ce
 D

ra
in

ag
e\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.2

9 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 C

ON
DI

TI
ON

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE 1' TALL CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
608 LAKE AVENUE 255 ROYAL POINCIANA PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0130 

AutoCAD SHX Text
614 LAKE AVENUE PURDY LANE INVESTMENTS INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0140 

AutoCAD SHX Text
628 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0150 

AutoCAD SHX Text
632 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0161 

AutoCAD SHX Text
631 LUCERNE AVENUE HUMMINGBIRD PARTNERS LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0010 

AutoCAD SHX Text
625 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0020 

AutoCAD SHX Text
611 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0030 

AutoCAD SHX Text
607 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0050 

AutoCAD SHX Text
605 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0060 

AutoCAD SHX Text
601 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0070 

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 LAKE AVENUE PETERS 600 LAKE AVENUE LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0090 

AutoCAD SHX Text
604 LAKE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0100 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 15" HDPE STORM DRAINAGE LINE IN EXFILTRATION TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 24" RCP STORM DRAINAGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 4" PE GAS MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



GAS
GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

LOC
LOC

LOC
LOC

LOCLOC

LO
C

LO
C

LO
C

LO
C

LOC LOC LOC

PROP LIMITS OF
CONSTRUCTION

PROP INLET
PROTECTION ON
EXISTING INLET

PROP INLET
PROTECTION ON
EXISTING INLET

0+
00

0+
68

SD

SD

10.5'

PROP LIMITS OF
UTILITY TRENCH

0 10' 20'5'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

ST
OR

M
W

AT
ER

 P
OL

LU
TI

ON
 P

RE
VE

NT
IO

N 
PL

AN

CD101
5 12

2974.29

3/
23

/2
02

3 
5:

04
 P

M
4/

3/
20

23
 4

:5
6 

PM
M

AS
ON

 S
HU

TT
P:

\2
90

0\
29

74
.2

9 
LW

 J
oh

n 
Ri

ce
 D

ra
in

ag
e\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.2

9 
SW

PP
P.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE 1' TALL CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH K STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
608 LAKE AVENUE 255 ROYAL POINCIANA PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0130 

AutoCAD SHX Text
614 LAKE AVENUE PURDY LANE INVESTMENTS INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0140 

AutoCAD SHX Text
628 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0150 

AutoCAD SHX Text
632 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0161 

AutoCAD SHX Text
631 LUCERNE AVENUE HUMMINGBIRD PARTNERS LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0010 

AutoCAD SHX Text
625 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0020 

AutoCAD SHX Text
611 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0030 

AutoCAD SHX Text
607 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0050 

AutoCAD SHX Text
605 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0060 

AutoCAD SHX Text
601 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0070 

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 LAKE AVENUE PETERS 600 LAKE AVENUE LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0090 

AutoCAD SHX Text
604 LAKE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0100 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN RICE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



GAS
GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

0+
00

0+
68

STA: 0+33
CORE EX INLET
FL 15'' OUT (N): 10.49'
FL 15'' OUT (S): 10.49'

SD

SD

 EX 84 LF 15'' HDPE  @ 0.01%

10.5'

PROP 5' CUT-IN MANHOLE
(CONNECT TO EX 24" RCP STORM
DRAINAGE LINE AND REPLACE
EX 24" RCP UP TO FIRST JOINT)
STA: 0+51
RIM: 13.91'
FL 15'' IN (N): 10.45'
FL 24" IN (W): 8.87'
FL 24" OUT (E): 8.87'
6" PRECAST CONCRETE WEIR EL: 12.91'
SEE CONTROL STRUCTURE
SECTION DETAIL (A-A, B-B, AND C-C)

PROP 19 LF 15'' RCP @ 0.22%

PROP LIMITS OF UTILITY TRENCH AND
PAVEMENT/PAVER BRICK

OPEN-CUT(CONTRACTOR SHALL
REMOVE AND STORE EXISTING PAVERS

AND REINSTALL ONCE COMPLETED)
SEE DETAIL 21

0 10' 20'5'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

PA
VI

NG
, G

RA
DI

NG
, A

ND
 D

RA
IN

AG
E 

PL
AN

CG101
6 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

3 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

PG
D.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE 1' TALL CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH K STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
608 LAKE AVENUE 255 ROYAL POINCIANA PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0130 

AutoCAD SHX Text
614 LAKE AVENUE PURDY LANE INVESTMENTS INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0140 

AutoCAD SHX Text
628 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0150 

AutoCAD SHX Text
632 LAKE AVENUE MCCONNAUGHAY, PAUL & LOIS PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0161 

AutoCAD SHX Text
631 LUCERNE AVENUE HUMMINGBIRD PARTNERS LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0010 

AutoCAD SHX Text
625 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0020 

AutoCAD SHX Text
611 LUCERNE AVENUE MARIALIDA RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH INC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0030 

AutoCAD SHX Text
607 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0050 

AutoCAD SHX Text
605 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0060 

AutoCAD SHX Text
601 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0070 

AutoCAD SHX Text
600 LAKE AVENUE PETERS 600 LAKE AVENUE LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0090 

AutoCAD SHX Text
604 LAKE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0100 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN RICE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 24" RCP STORM DRAINAGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



0+00
0+68

STA: 0+33
CORE EX INLET

FL 15'' OUT (N): 10.49'
FL 15'' OUT (S): 10.49'

SDSD

 EX 84 LF 15'' HDPE  @ 0.01%

10
.5

'

PROP 5' CUT-IN MANHOLE
(CONNECT TO EX 24" RCP STORM
DRAINAGE LINE AND REPLACE
EX 24" RCP UP TO FIRST JOINT)
STA: 0+51
RIM: 13.91'
FL 15'' IN (N): 10.45'
FL 24" IN (W): 8.87'
FL 24" OUT (E): 8.87'
6" PRECAST CONCRETE WEIR EL: 12.91'
SEE CONTROL STRUCTURE
SECTION DETAIL (A-A, B-B, AND C-C)

PROP 19 LF 15'' RCP @ 0.22%

PROP LIMITS OF UTILITY TRENCH AND
PAVEMENT/PAVER BRICK OPEN-CUT
(CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND
STORE EXISTING PAVERS AND
REINSTALL ONCE COMPLETED)
SEE DETAIL 21

PROP LIMITS OF
UTILITY TRENCH

ALIGNMENT - DRAINAGE ALIGNMENT
STA: 0+00 TO STA: 0+68.05

HORIZ: 1"=10
VERT: 1"=1

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

0+00 0+68

ST
A:

 0
+

32
.6

2
In

le
t G

ra
te

 3
'x3

'
RI

M
: 1

3.
53

'
FL

 1
5'

' O
UT

 (N
):

 1
0.

49
'

FL
 1

5'
' O

UT
 (S

):
 1

0.
49

'

EX 84 LF 15'' HDPE  @ 0.01%

CO
NT

RO
L 

ST
RU

CT
UR

E
5'

 D
IA

 M
AN

HO
LE

RI
M

: 1
3.

91
'

FL
 1

5'
' I

N 
(N

):
 1

0.
45

'
FL

 2
4"

 IN
 (N

):
 8

.8
7'

FL
 2

4"
 O

UT
 (E

):
 8

.8
7'

6"
 P

RE
CA

ST
 C

ON
CR

ET
E 

W
EI

R 
EL

: 1
2.

91
'

19 LF 15'' RCP @ 0.22%

0 10' 20'5'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

DR
AI

NA
GE

 P
RO

FI
LE

CG102
7 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

7 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

PR
OF

IL
E.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "F" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "D" CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
608 LAKE AVENUE 255 ROYAL POINCIANA PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0130 

AutoCAD SHX Text
607 LUCERNE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0050 

AutoCAD SHX Text
604 LAKE AVENUE LUCERNE AVE DEVELOPMENT LLC. PCN: 38-43-44-21-15-509-0100 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN RICE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX 24" RCP STORM DRAINAGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

UTILITY TRENCH AND PAVEMENT
OPEN-CUT

N.T.S.
UTILITY TRENCH DETAIL

NOTES:
1. BEDDING SHALL CONSIST OF IN-SITU GRANULAR

MATERIAL OR WASHED AND GRADED LIMEROCK 3/8" -
7/8" SIZING. UNSUITABLE IN-SITU MATERIALS SUCH AS
MUCK, DEBRIS AND LARGER ROCK SHALL BE
REMOVED.

2. THE PIPE SHALL BE FULLY SUPPORTED FOR ITS
ENTIRE LENGTH WITH APPROPRIATE COMPACTION
UNDER THE PIPE HAUNCHES.

3. THE PIPE SHALL BE PLACED IN A DRY TRENCH.

4. BACKFILL SHALL BE FREE OF UNSUITABLE MATERIALS
SUCH AS LARGER ROCK, MUCK AND DEBRIS.

N.T.S.
PAVEMENT OPEN-CUT DETAIL

EXIST. PAVEMENT

NOTES:
1. PAVEMENT OVERLAY MAY BE REQUIRED IN OPEN-CUT AREAS AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CITY ENGINEER.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE TRENCH SAFETY REGULATIONS.
3. FINISHED SURFACE SHALL HAVE SMOOTH FINISH & SHALL MATCH FLUSH TO SURROUNDING PAVEMENT.
4. ASPHALT OVERLAY SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 50' BEYOND THE LIMITS OF THE OPEN CUT.

OPEN-CUT WIDTH
(W + 4' )

1' 1'1' 1'W
TO REMAIN

SAWCUT

21
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

50' ASPHALT OVERLAY

REFER TO TRENCH DETAIL
FOR BEDDING & BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS

REPLACED BASEROCK SHALL BE TWICE
THE THICKNESS OF THE ORIGINAL
BASEROCK LAYER (12" MIN.)
(REFER TO PAVEMENT SECTIONS
FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.)

50' ASPHALT OVERLAY

MI
N.

4"

MAX.
12"

MAX.
12"

OF MAXIMUM DENSITY. 2" MAX. SIZE.
AND COMPACTED TO MINIMUM 98%

98% COMPACTION.

GRANULAR BACKFILL PLACED

BEDDING MATERIAL

AND COMPACTED PER APPROPRIATE
SPECIFICATIONS. 6" MAX. SIZE.

REMAINING BACKFILL PLACED

EXISTING GROUND

12"
MIN.

MIN.
24"

MI
N.4"

MAX.
12"

MAX.
12"

MIN.
24"

REPLACED ASPHALT TO BE
MIN 2" TYPE S-3 (TWO LIFTS)

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R

O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R

O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

TYPICAL RIGHT-OF-WAY SECTIONS

PAVEMENT SPECIFICATIONS
WEARING SURFACE

BASE

SUBGRADE

1 1/2" TYPE S-III (TWO 3/4" LIFTS)

VARIATION FROM MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS WILL BE CONSIDERED
ON A CASE BY CASE BASIS BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

TYPICAL SECTION
(40' R/W)

2%2%2%

SUBGRADE
BASEROCK

40' R/W

13'5' 2'

WEARING
SURFACE

0.0

13' 2' 5'

2%(-)0.26 (-)0.26

R/
W

 LI
NE

R/
W

 LI
NE

6"
MIN.

6"
MIN.

0.120.22
0.12

0.22

TYPICAL SECTION
(60' R/W)

2%2%

TYPE "F"
CURB &

GUTTER
(REFER TO
DETAIL 05)

2%

SUBGRADE
BASEROCK

60' R/W

13'5' 2'

WEARING
SURFACE

0.0

13' 2' 5'

2%(-)0.26 (-)0.26

R/
W

 LI
NE

R/
W

 LI
NE

6"
MIN.

6"
MIN.

0.12 0.12 0.42

10'
SOD

10'
SOD

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
4" THICK (6" THICK

AT DRIVEWAY
& INTERSECTIONS)

(REFER TO DETAIL 07)

0.42

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
4" THICK (6" THICK
AT DRIVEWAY
& INTERSECTIONS)
(REFER TO DETAIL 07)

TYPE "F"
CURB &
GUTTER
(REFER TO
DETAIL 05)

TYPE "F"
CURB & GUTTER

(REFER TO DETAIL 05)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
4" THICK (6" THICK

AT DRIVEWAY
& INTERSECTIONS)

(REFER TO DETAIL 07)

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
4" THICK (6" THICK
AT DRIVEWAY
& INTERSECTIONS)
(REFER TO DETAIL 07)

TYPE "F"
CURB & GUTTER

(REFER TO DETAIL 05)

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE COMPACTED TO 98% MAX. DENSITY
PER AASHTO T-180.

8" BASEROCK (LBR 100) COMPACTED TO 98% MAX. DENSITY
PER AASHTO T-180. (2 EQUAL LIFTS) OR 10" CRUSHED CONC.
PRIME & TACK COAT PER FDOT SECTION 300.

02
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

VALLEY GUTTER
(DROP CURB)

NOTES:
1. ULTIMATE STRENGTH OF CONCRETE

FOR CURBS AND GUTTERS SHALL BE
3,000 P.S.I. @ 28 DAYS.

2. 1/8"-1/4" CONTRACTION JOINTS IN CURB
AND GUTTER SHALL BE CUT AS SHOWN
AND AT 10 FT. MAXIMUM SPACING. NO
SECTION SHALL BE LESS THAN 4 FT.

3. WHEN PAVEMENT IS CONCRETE,
PROVIDE A 1/2" EXPANSION JOINT WITH
PRE-FORMED JOINT FILLER & JOINT SEAL
BETWEEN CURB AND CONCRETE
PAVEMENT. (1-1/2" TAPER ON CURB FACE
NOT REQUIRED AT CONCRETE
PAVEMENT.)

4. WHEN USED ON HIGH EDGE OF
PAVEMENT, THE CROSS SLOPE OF
TYPES "E", "F", AND VALLEY GUTTER
SHALL MATCH THE CROSS SLOPE OF
THE ADJACENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT.
THE THICKNESS OF THE LIP SHALL BE 6"
MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN
ON PLANS. THE SURFACE ON THE LOW
EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO BE 1/4" ABOVE
LIP OF GUTTER. SURFACE ON HIGH EDGE
OF PAVEMENT TO BE FLUSH WITH LIP OF
CURB AND GUTTER. IF BOTH EDGES ARE
AT SAME ELEVATION, SURFACE SHALL
BE FLUSH.

5. ENDS OF TYPE "E" & "F" CURBING SHALL
TRANSITION FROM FULL HEIGHT TO
FLUSH IN 3 FEET.

6. THE MINIMUM CONSTRUCTED FLOW-LINE
GRADIENT FOR STREET DRAINAGE
UTILIZING CURB & GUTTER OR VALLEY
GUTTER SHALL BE 0.20%.

7. REFER TO FDOT INDEX 300 FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

8. CONCRETE CURBING SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ON A 4" THICK
BASEROCK CURB PAD

TYPE E

TYPE F

2'-0" 1 12" TAPER

6 1 4"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

SEE
NOTE 4

SLOPE TO FITDRIVEWAY* 3
4"R

10" 1'-2"

2'-0"
1 12" TAPER8"

1'-
0"

6"
6"

6" 1'-6"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

3"R

2"R

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

1 12" TAPER2'-3"

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

11
"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

9" 1'-6"

3
4 "R

13 4"R

3 4"R

3" 5"

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER 05
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

*NOTE:  2% MAX. SLOPE
FOR PEDESTRIAN
PATHWAYS; 12% MAX.
SLOPE FOR DRIVEWAYS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

 ALLEY PAVEMENT SECTION

 ALLEY PAVEMENT SECTION

10' ALLEY R/W

HEADER CURB: 6" WIDE x 10" DEEP,
3,000 PSI CONCRETE, W/1- # 4 BAR
(REFER TO DETAIL 06)

ASPHALT: 1.5" TYPE S-III (TWO LIFTS)
PROVIDE PRIME COAT TO BASE PRIOR
TO ASPHALT PLACEMENT

BASE: 8" BASEROCK OR 10"
CRUSHED CONCRETE
(98% MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY
AASHTO T-180, LBR 100)
TWO EQUAL LIFTS

SUBGRADE: EXISTING CLEAN SAND,
COMPACTED - 12" THICKNESS

(98%  AASHTO T-180)

EXISTING
GRADE

EXISTING
GRADE

03
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

NOTE:  MINIMUM 0.50% LONGITUDINAL SLOPE REQUIRED.

2%2%

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

INLET APRON DETIAL 24
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

PAVER BRICK

NOTE:

PAVER BRICK DETAIL
N.T.S.

INSTALLATION OF PAVER BRICKS SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION CRITERIA.
PAVER BRICK THICKNESS SHALL BE MINIMUM 2-3/8 INCHES. PAVER BRICK SHALL BE COLORED THROUGH THE
FULL DEPTH OF THE PAVER AND NOT JUST THE SURFACE. THE SAND BEDDING COURSE SHALL BE WELL
GRADED, CLEAN, WASHED LIMESTONE SCREENINGS WITH 100%  PASSING A 3/8" SIEVE SIZE AND A MAXIMUM 3%
PASSING A No. 200 SIEVE SIZE. DO NOT USE MASON SAND.  ALL EDGES OF THE PAVER BRICK SHALL BE
RESTRAINED BY CONCRETE HEADER CURB OR VALLEY GUTTER. CITY TO APPROVE SIDEWALK PAVER
MANUFACTURER, TYPE, COLOR, AND SIZE. SUBMIT THREE (3) SAMPLE PAVERS FOR APPROVAL.

1 1/4" COMPACTED SAND

6" x 10"  FLUSH HEADER CURB (TYP.)
WHERE PAVER BRICKS ABUT

DISSIMILAR PAVEMENT SECTION
(REFER TO DETAIL 06)

PAVER BRICKS
(MIN. COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH  TO

BE 7,200 PSI)

17
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

12" BASEROCK (LBR 100)  COMPACTED
TO 98% MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY,
AASHTO T-180 (2-LIFTS).

12"  SUBGRADE (COMPACTED TO 98%
MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY, AASHTO -180.)

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 D
ET

AI
LS

 1

C501
8 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

4 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

DE
TA

IL
S.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMMETRICAL ABOUT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 P.S.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLOR I D
A

EROSION CONTROL NOTES
DETAIL

25
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R I D
A

INLET FILTER DETAIL 26
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLOR I D
A

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 27
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

W

EKAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R IDA

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 28
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO. CONTROL STRUCTURE DETAIL
(A-A, B-B, AND C-C)

B-B

SCALE: NONE

5'-0"
DIAMETER

MH

TYPICAL MH
STRUCTURE

6" PRECAST CONCRETE WEIR
TOP OF WEIR EL: 12.91

24" RCP 24" RCP

A-A

TYPICAL MH
STRUCTURE

6" PRECAST CONCRETE WEIR
TOP OF WEIR EL: 12.91

C-C

15" RCP

15" RCP

24" RCP 24" RCP

15" RCP
INV. 10.45

INV. 8.87
INV. 8.87

INV. 10.45

INV. 8.87

INV. 8.87

INV. 10.45

24" RCP
INV. 8.87 2' SUMP

2' SUMP

6" PRECAST CONCRETE WEIR
TOP OF WEIR EL: 12.91

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 D
ET

AI
LS

 2

C502
9 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

4 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

DE
TA

IL
S.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND THE CITY OF DELRAY BEACH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORTH BY THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11. ALL WORK IS TO BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
10. WHENEVER FEASIBLE, NATURAL VEGETATION SHALL BE RETAINED AND PROTECTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.  EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE TO BE MAINTAINED UNTIL PERMANENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.  ANY ACCESS ROUTES TO SITE SHALL BE BASED WITH CRUSHED STONE, WHERE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.  DRAINAGE INLETS SHALL BE PROTECTED BY FILTER AND GRADED ROCK AS PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.  FAILURE TO PROPERLY INSTALL AND MAINTAIN EROSION CONTROL PRACTICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.  ADDITIONAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES MAY BE REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.  KEEP DUST WITHIN TOLERABLE LIMITS BY SPRINKLING OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR AFTER EACH RAINFALL EVENT. REPAIR, AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF SUCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.  INSPECTION OF ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE CONDUCTED WEEKLY,

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND COVER IS ESTABLISHED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PROTECTION DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL RESULT IN CONSTRUCTION BEING HALTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF DEEMED NECESSARY BY ONSITE INSPECTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURES SHALL BE MADE PROMPTY, AS NEEDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES, EXCEPT THOSE OPERATIONS NEEDED TO INSTALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO ANY CLEARING GRADING, EXCAVATION, FILLING, OR OTHER LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  APPROVED EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND OTHER SEDIMENTATION RESTRICTION REQUIREMENTS IN THE REGION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORTH BY THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURSDICTION OVER WATER QUALITY CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS, BUT BY MEETING THE REGULATIONS SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE DETERMINED BY ADHERENCE TO THE REPRESENT SET FORTH ON THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CONTRACTOR. THE TEST OF EROSION CONTROL EFFECTIVENESS IS NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SITE. THIS REPRESENTATION IS PROVIDED FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANS IS TO PROVIDE A BARRIER TO CONTAIN SILT AND SEDIMENT ON THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  THE INTENT OF EROSION CONTROL MEASURES INDICATED GRAPHICALLY ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUCH MEASURES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRACTICAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12. DISCHARGE FROM DEWATERING OPERATIONS SHALL BE RETAINED ONSITE IN A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINMENT AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FILTER INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHOUT FRAME AND GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELD WIRE SUPPORT. EXTEND 6" MIN. AT SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE SUPPORT - MOULD 6x6", 5/5 GA. 49 #/100 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FRAME AND GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. CONTRACTOR IS TO CLEAN INLET FILTER AFTER EVERY STORM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE FABRIC JUST PRIOR TO PAVING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL AFTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALLATION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SEDIMENT TRAP WILL BE EXCAVATED BEHIND THE CURB AT THE INLET.  THE BASIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE AT LEAST 12 TO 14 INCHES IN DEPTH, APPROXIMATELY 36 INCHES IN WIDTH,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND APPROXIMATELY 7 TO 10 FEET IN LENGTH PARALLEL TO THE CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER WILL REACH THE SEDIMENT TRAP VIA CURB CUTS ADJACENT TO EACH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE OF THE INLET STRUCTURE.  THESE OPENINGS SHALL BE AT LEAST 12 INCHES IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH.  STORM WATER MAY ALSO REACH THE BASIN VIA OVERLAND FLOW LAND AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEHIND THE CURB.  THE CURB CUTS SHALL BE REPAIRED WHEN THE SEDIMENT TRAP IS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE HEIGHT OF A SILT FENCE SHALL NOT EXCEED 36 INCHES (90 CM). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. THE FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE PURCHASED IN A CONTINUOUS ROLL CUT TO THE LENGTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE BARRIER TO AVOID THE USE OF JOINTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. POSTS SHALL BE SPACED A MAXIMUM OF 10 FEET (3 M) APART AT THE BARRIER LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND DRIVEN SECURELY INTO THE GROUND A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES (30 CM). WHEN EXTRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRENGTH FABRIC IS USED WITHOUT THE WIRE SUPPORT FENCE, POST SPACING SHALL NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEED 6 FEET (1.8 M).

AutoCAD SHX Text
5. WHEN STANDARD STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC IS USED, A WIRE MESH SUPPORT FENCE SHALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE FASTENED SECURELY TO THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE POSTS USING HEAVY DUTY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAPLES AT LEAST 1 INCH (25 MM) LONG, TIE WIRES, OR HOG RINGS.  THE WIRE SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4. A TRENCH SHALL BE EXCAVATED APPROXIMATELY 4 INCHES (10 CM) WIDE AND 4 INCHES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10 CM) DEEP ALONG THE LINE OF POSTS AND UPSLOPE FROM THE BARRIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND INTO THE TRENCH A MINIMUM OF 2 INCHES (5 CM) AND SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAN 36 INCHES (90 CM) ABOVE THE ORIGINAL GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6. THE STANDARD STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE STAPLED OR WIRED TO THE FENCE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 8 INCHES (20 CM) OF THE FABRIC SHALL BE EXTENDED INTO THE TRENCH. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN 36 INCHES (90 CM) ABOVE THE ORIGIONAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7. THE TRENCH SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND THE SOIL COMPACTED OVER THE FILTER FABRIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEEDED WITHOUT WIRE MESH SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 FT. MAX. SPACING WITHOUT WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 FT. MAX. SPACING WITH WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC MATERIAL CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR ADDITIONAL STRENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE ATTACHED TO A 6-INCH (MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MESH WIRE SCREEN WHICH HAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEN FASTENED TO THE POSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8. ALL PROJECTS REQUIRE SUBMITTAL OF POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (PPP).

AutoCAD SHX Text
9. ALL PROJECTS 1 AC. OR MORE MUST SUBMIT NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) TO FDEP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSILT FENCE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" OF FABRIC, AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH, BURY BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG 4" WIDE & 4" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WOOD OR STEEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION OF RUNOFF WATERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UATTACHING TWO SILT FENCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE THE END POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE SECOND FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE THE END POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE FIRST FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREATE A TIGHT SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOCKWISE DIRECTION TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAST 180 DEGREES IN A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROTATE BOTH POSTS AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE BOTH POSTS ABOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 INCHES INTO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND AND BURY FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH THE FABRIC MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR W/COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 1

C503
10 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

4 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

DE
TA

IL
S.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 2

C504
11 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

4 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

DE
TA

IL
S.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

JO
HN

 R
IC

E 
W

AY
 P

HA
SE

 II

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

 C
OU

NT
Y,

 F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 3

C505
12 12

2974.29

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:4

4 
PM

4/
3/

20
23

 4
:5

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.2
9 

LW
 J

oh
n 

Ri
ce

 D
ra

in
ag

e\
CI

VI
L\

10
-S

ht
s\

29
74

.2
9 

DE
TA

IL
S.

dw
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER'S SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PE LIC. NO. 83268



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Agreement with BlueTriton Brands, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of potable bottled water in 
emergency situations. 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with BlueTriton Brands, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of potable bottled water, for City 
staff and mutual aid crew use, associated with potential future emergency situations including disaster 
recovery and/or electric utility restoration situations.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 23-115) seeking bids from qualified vendors for the supply of 
potable bottled water in potential emergency situations. BlueTriton Brands, Inc. was the only vendor to 
bid and was found to be the most responsive and responsible bidder and was recommended for the 
award.  

The City occasionally finds itself in situations which require emergency disaster recovery efforts by 
internal staff, third party contractors and/or mutual aid crews. These situations can be the result of natural 
disasters such as hurricanes, tornadoes or flooding and require additional efforts during times when 
basic services and supplies may be unavailable. The potable bottled water described in this Agreement 
would be purchased to provide clean drinking water to crews responding to such emergencies. The 
duration of the Agreement is three (3) years, with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year 
periods. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement with BlueTriton Brands, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of 
potable bottled water in emergency situations. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis - N/A 
Agreement 



 

 

CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(Potable Bottled Water for Disaster Recovery) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this __________________, between the City of Lake Worth 

Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, hereinafter the “CITY”, with its office located at 7 North 
Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida  33460, and BlueTriton Brands, Inc., a foreign 
corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter the “CONTRACTOR”, 
with its local office located at 1284 Park lane South, Jupiter, FL 33458.  

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY is a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant to the 

Charter and the Constitution of the State of Florida; 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY issued Invitation for Bids # 23-115 (hereinafter “IFB”) for the supply 

of potable bottled water for disaster recovery; and 
 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR submitted a proposal to perform the services described and 

set out in the IFB which is incorporated herein by reference with the Scope of Services specifically 
attached as Exhibit “A”; and  

 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accept the CONTRACTOR’s proposal in order for 

CONTRACTOR to render the services to the CITY as provided herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR further warrants that it is experienced and capable of 

performing the tasks hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement has been identified as providing essential services which is 

anticipated to be needed by the CITY in the event of a hurricane or other disaster in order to 
provide the services for the benefit of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that in such event, the CITY may 

apply to the State of Florida or the federal government for funds which will be used to pay 
CONTRACTOR or reimburse the CITY for payments made to CONTRACTOR, and that the 
federal government will only consider reimbursing for contracts which contain the requisite FEMA 
provisions; and  

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that any work performed under 

this Agreement and pursuant to the IFB will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, 
executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees to the terms laid out in IFB and 

Exhibit “B”, which are the provisions required to be included in contracts funded by federal 
grants, including FEMA Public Assistance (see 2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and applicable FEMA 
guidance); and  

 
WHEREAS, the CITY finds making the non-exclusive award of the IFB to the 

CONTRACTOR as described herein serves a valid public purpose. 
 



 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY hereby engages the services of the CONTRACTOR, and 
in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. TERM   
The initial term of this non-exclusive Agreement shall be from the date of execution by the CITY 
for an initial term of three (3) years with two (2) additional 1-year renewal options unless earlier 
terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The rates set forth herein shall remain 
firm for the first three (3) years of the Agreement subject to terms and conditions to be negotiated 
on requests for consideration of a price adjustment after that term.    
 
2.  SCOPE OF WORK  
2.1  As further described and set forth in the IFB, the Scope of Work includes all implements, 
machinery, equipment, transportation, tools, materials, supplies, labor and other things necessary 
to provide potable bottled water for disaster recovery for the City of Lake Worth Beach in the event 
of a natural disaster or other emergency related crises. The objective of this Agreement is to 
secure the services of an experienced CONTRACTOR who is capable of efficiently providing 
potable bottled water services  in a timely and cost-effective manner. The CONTRACTOR must 
be capable of assembling, directing, and managing the potable bottled water for disaster recovery 
and provide a work force that can start operations within 24 - 48 hours after the notification of 
emergency. 
 
2.2. The CONTRACTOR represents that it is experienced and proficient in all phases of 
providing potable bottled water for disaster and related services to the CITY in an event of a 
natural disaster or other emergency related crises.   
 
2.2 The CONTRACTOR represents to the CITY that the Scope of Work provided under this 
Agreement and IFB shall be in accordance with accepted and established trade practices, 
standards and procedures recognized in the CONTRACTOR’s trade in general and that the 
supplied services shall conform to the highest standards and in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
2.3 The CONTRACTOR represents that it is licensed to do business in the State of Florida 
and holds and will maintain all applicable licenses required for the work to be completed under 
this Agreement.  The CONTRACTOR further warrants its capability and experience to perform 
the work provided for herein in a professional and competent manner.   
 
2.4 The Scope of Work shall be performed by the CONTRACTOR or under its supervision 
and all personnel engaged in performing the Scope of Work shall be fully qualified and, if required, 
authorized or permitted under the state and local law to perform such Scope of Work.  All of the 
CONTRACTOR’s personnel (and all subcontractors), while on CITY premises, shall comply with 
all CITY requirements governing safety, conduct and security. 
 
2.5 The Scope of Work shall be completed in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in the IFB and this Agreement. 
 
3.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; USE OF AGENTS OR ASSISTANTS   
3.1 The CONTRACTOR is and shall be, in the performance of the Scope of Work under this 
Agreement, an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the CITY.  All 
persons engaged in any of the Scope of Work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall at all 
times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR’s sole direction, supervision, and 



 

 

control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its 
employees perform the Scope of Work. 
 
3.2 To the extent reasonably necessary to enable the CONTRACTOR to perform the Scope 
of Work hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents 
or assistants which it may deem proper, and may further employ, engage, or retain the services 
of such other persons or corporations to aid or assist in the proper performance of its duties. All 
costs of the services of, or expenses incurred by, such agents or assistants shall be paid by the 
CONTRACTOR.  
 
4. SERVICES   
4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide all services as more specifically set forth in the Scope 
of Work.   
 
5. FEE AND ORDERING MECHANISM 
5.1  For services to be rendered under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled 
to compensation at the amount set forth in CONTRACTOR’s proposal (“Schedule of Unit Prices”), 
which Schedule of Unit Prices are attached  hereto as Exhibit “C”. The Schedule of Unit Prices 
shall remain fixed for the first three (3) years of this Agreement. After the first three (3) years of 
this Agreement, if due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 
Schedule of Unit Prices, the CITY and CONTRACTOR may execute a written amendment to this 
Agreement to establish new Schedule of Unit Prices for the renewal term(s). The City Manager 
may approve changes in the Schedule of Unit Prices during the renewal.   
 
5.2 Should the CITY require additional goods or services, not included in this Agreement, fees 
and payment for such work will be set forth in a separate amendment, as authorized in accordance 
with the CITY’s procurement code prior to any such additional goods or services being provided 
by the CONTRACTOR.   
 
5.3 The CITY’s ordering mechanism for the Scope of Work performed under this Agreement 
may be a City Purchase Order; however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order 
shall not apply. CONTRACTOR shall not exceed amounts expressed on any Purchase Order. 
The CITY’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year and the CITY cannot 
authorize the purchase of goods or services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior 
to the annual budget being approved by the CITY’s City Commission. Additionally, the CITY must 
have budgeted appropriate funds for the goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If 
the budget is approved for said goods and services, the CITY will issue a new Purchase Order 
for required and approved goods and/or services. 
 
5.4  This Agreement does not guarantee that the CITY will utilize the CONTRACTOR in any 
capacity or for any services hereunder. When the CITY identifies a need for the CONTRACTOR’s 
services, the CITY will request a proposal from the CONTRACTOR to provide the services 
requested. The CITY will provide the CONTRACTOR with specifications in order for the 
CONTRACTOR to develop its proposal. Upon receipt of the CONTRACTOR’s proposal, the CITY 
shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the Purchase Order to the CONTRACTOR. In 
an event of declared disaster, the a Purchase Order may be awarded by the CITY’s City Manager. 
If the Purchase Order is approved by the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall commence the identified 
services upon the CITY’s approval of the Purchase Order for the services and issuance of a notice 
to proceed. The CITY reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted by the 
CONTRACTOR. A CITY-approved Purchase order shall include (by reference) the proposal 
and/or specifications provided by the CITY to the CONTRACTOR. 



 

 

6.  MAXIMUM COSTS   
6.1 The CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that the total cost to complete 
the Scope of Work in accordance with the IFB and this Agreement is not to exceed the amount(s) 
set forth in the approved Purchase Order issued to the CONTRACTOR annually or on case 
by case basis, and no additional costs shall be authorized without prior written approval from the 
CITY.  
 
7.  INVOICE & PAYMENT 
7.1 The CONTRACTOR shall submit an itemized invoice to the CITY for approval prior to 
receiving compensation.  The CONTRACTOR shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approved invoice for work.  
 
7.2 If the CITY disputes any invoice or part of an invoice, CITY shall notify the CONTRACTOR 
within a reasonable time after receipt of the invoice.  CITY reserves the right to off-set, reduce or 
withhold any payment to the CONTRACTOR until the dispute is resolved. 
 
8.  AUDIT BY CITY   
8.1 The CONTRACTOR shall permit the CITY, or any authorized representatives of the CITY, 
at all reasonable times, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers or 
documents related to the CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement including, but not 
limited to, expenses for sub-contractors, agents or assistants, direct and indirect charges for work 
performed and detailed documentation for all such work performed or to be performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
9.  COPIES OF DATA/DOCUMENTS   
9.1 Copies or original documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in relation to work 
associated with this Agreement shall be provided to the CITY. Data collected, stored, and/or 
provided shall be in a form acceptable to the CITY and agreed upon by the CITY. 
 
10.  OWNERSHIP   
10.1 Each and every report, draft, work product, map, record, and other document reproduced, 
prepared, or caused to be prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the CITY. 
 
11.  WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED   
11.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not make changes in the Scope of Work or perform any 
additional services or provide any additional material under this Agreement without first obtaining 
written authorization from the CITY for such additional services or goods. Additional services or 
goods provided without written authorization shall be done at the CONTRACTOR’s sole risk and 
without payment from the CITY.  
 
12.  DEFAULTS, TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
12.1 If the CONTRACTOR fails to timely perform the Scope of Work or has failed in any other 
respect to satisfactorily perform in accordance with this Agreement; or, is in material breach of a 
term or condition of this Agreement, the City Manager or designee may give written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR specifying defaults to be remedied. Such notice shall set forth the basis for any 
dissatisfaction and suggest corrective measures. If the CONTRACTOR does not remedy defaults 
within the allotted time or commence good faith steps to remedy the default to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may take such action to remedy the default 
and all expenses related thereto shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR including, without 
limitation, utilization of another contractor to provide for such work; and/or, the CITY may withhold 



 

 

any money due or which may become due to the CONTRACTOR for such expense and/or  work 
related to the claimed default.  Alternatively, or in addition to the foregoing, if after three (3) days 
the CONTRACTOR has not remedied defaults or commenced good faith steps to remedy defaults 
to the satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may elect to terminate this 
Agreement.  No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-
down, lost profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this 
paragraph. 
 
12.2 Notwithstanding paragraph 12.1, the CITY reserves the right and may elect to terminate 
this Agreement at any time, with or without cause. At such time, the CONTRACTOR would be 
compensated only for that work which has been satisfactorily completed to the date of termination. 
No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-down, lost 
profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this paragraph. 
 
13.  INSURANCE 
13.1. Prior to commencing the Scope of Work, the CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates 
evidencing insurance coverage as required hereunder.  All insurance policies shall be issued by 
companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida.  The Certificates shall 
clearly indicate that the CONTRACTOR has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and 
classification as required for strict compliance with this Section and that no material change or 
cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the 
CITY.  Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of 
its liability and obligations under this Contract.  All insurance, other than Workers’ Compensation, 
required hereunder shall specifically include the “City of Lake Worth Beach” as an “Additional 
Insured” on a primary, non-contributory basis, and the CONTRACTOR shall provide additional 
insured endorsements section of Certificates of Insurance. 
 
13.2.  The CONTRACTOR  shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, commercial general 
liability, including contractual liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence 
($2,000,000 aggregate) to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for damages for bodily and 
personal injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property damages which may 
arise from any operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by the 
CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with the CONTRACTOR. 
 
13.3.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, comprehensive 
automobile liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damages liability to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for 
damages for bodily and personal injury, including death, as well as from claims for property 
damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned 
automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or 
by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 
 
13.4. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all employees as required by 
Florida Statutes.   
 
14.  WAIVER OF BREACH   
14.1 The waiver by either party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate 
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that same or any other provision. 
 
 



 

 

15.  INDEMNITY   
15.1 The CONTRACTOR shall  indemnify, defend and hold harmless, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, the CITY and its officers, agents, employees and representatives, from and 
against any and all liability, suit, actions, proceedings, judgments, claims, losses, liens, damages, 
injuries (whether in contract or in tort, including personal injury, accidental death, patent 
infringement or property damage, and regardless, of whether the allegations are false, fraudulent 
or groundless), costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees, litigation, arbitration, mediation, 
appeal expenses) to the extent arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of the acts, omissions 
or neglect of the CONTRACTOR or any of its agents, employees, subcontractors or by anyone 
the CONTRACTOR directly or indirectly employed. 
 
15.2 The CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in 
effect and shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR whether such injury or damage shall accrue, 
or may be discovered, before or after termination of this Agreement. 
 
15.3 Compliance with any insurance requirements required elsewhere in this Agreement shall 
not relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
the CITY as set forth in this section. 
 
15.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause 
of action in favor of a third party against either the CITY or CONTRACTOR.  Further, nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as consent by the CITY to be sued, 
nor as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, as amended from time to time. 
 
15.5 The CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with this section’s provisions shall constitute a 
material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement. 
 
16.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
16.1 This Agreement consists of the terms and conditions provided herein; the IFB (including 
all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto or referenced therein and the Scope of 
Services attached as Exhibit (“A”)); all applicable federal grant requirements (Exhibit “B”); and, 
the CONTRACTOR’s Schedule of Unit Prices (Exhibit “C”). To the extent that there exists a 
conflict between this Agreement and the remaining documents, the terms, conditions, covenants, 
and/or provisions of this Agreement along with Exhibit “B” shall prevail with the IFB (including all 
specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto or referenced therein and the Scope of 
Services attached as Exhibit “A”) next taking precedence. Wherever possible, the provisions of 
such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid conflicts between provisions of 
the various documents.   
 
16.2  This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between 
the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other Agreement, statement, 
or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained herein shall be 
valid or binding. 
 
17.  ASSIGNMENT 
17.1 Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to any party 
other than the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. All duties and responsibilities under this Agreement 
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR and not for the 
benefit or any other party. The CONTRACTOR shall not assign any right or interest in this 
Agreement, and shall not delegate any duty owned, without the CITY’s prior written consent. Any 



 

 

attempted assignment or delegation shall be void and totally ineffective for all purposes, and shall 
constitute a material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this 
Agreement. 
 
17.2 In the event the CITY consents to an assignment or delegation, the assignee, delegate, 
or its legal representative shall agree in writing to personally assume, perform, and be bound by 
this Agreement’s covenants, conditions, obligations and provisions. 
 
18.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS   
18.1 Subject to the provision regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties. 
 
19.  WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY   
20.1 TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, 
EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION 
RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
20.  GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES   
20.1 The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights 
and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and 
venue shall be in Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
20.2 No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other 
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or 
otherwise.  No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder 
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof. 
 
21.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE  
21.1 Time is of the essence in the completion of the Scope of Work as specified herein.  
 
22.  NOTICES   
22.1 All notices hereunder must be in writing and, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be 
deemed validly given on the date when personally delivered to the address indicated below; or 
on the third (3rd) business day following deposit, postage prepaid, using certified mail, return 
receipt requested, in any U.S. postal mailbox or at any U.S. Post Office; or when sent via 
nationally recognized overnight courier to the address indicated below. Should the CITY or the 
CONTRACTOR have a change of address, the other party shall immediately be notified in writing 
of such change, provided, however, that each address for notice must include a street address 
and not merely a post office box. All notices, demands or requests from the CONTRACTOR to 
the CITY shall be given to the CITY address as follows: 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
Attn: City Manager  

 7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

 
All notices, demands or requests from the CITY to the CONTRACTOR shall be given to the 
CONTRACTOR address as follows: 
 
 BlueTriton Brands, Inc 



 

 

Attn: Kathy Nieto, Sales Support Coordinator   
900 Long Ridge Rd. Bld. 2  
Stamford, CT 06902 

 
23.  SEVERABILITY   
23.1 Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement or any document required herein to 
be executed be declared invalid, void or unenforceable, all remaining parts, terms and provisions 
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be invalidated, impaired or affected 
thereby. 
 
24.  DELAYS AND FORCES OF NATURE   
24.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely 
performance if such delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Upon the 
CONTRACTOR’s request, the CITY shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and 
failure to timely perform the work for reason beyond the control of the CONTRACTOR and, if the 
CONTRACTOR’S delay and failure to timely perform was without it or its subcontractors’ fault or 
negligence, as determined by the CITY in its sole discretion, the time of completion shall be 
extended for any reasonable time that the CITY, in its sole discretion, may decide; subject to the 
CITY’S rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.  If the 
CONTRACTOR is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by any act or neglect of the 
CITY or its employees, or by any other contractor employed by the CITY, or by changes ordered 
by the CITY or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes 
beyond the CONTRACTOR’S control, or by delay authorized by the CITY pending negotiation or 
by any cause which the CITY, in its sole discretion, shall decide justifies the delay, then the time 
of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the CITY, in its sole discretion, may 
decide.  No extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before 
a claim therefore is made in writing to the CITY.  In the case of continuing cause of delay, only 
one (1) claim is necessary.  The CONTRACTOR’s sole remedy for a delay in completion of the 
work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the work and CONTRACTOR 
specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in completion 
of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost 
profits, additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged 
monetary losses which may be allegedly suffered by CONTRACTOR due to a delay in completion 
of the work.  
 
24.2 Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder 
or any of them, if such obligations were prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future 
beyond the reasonable control of such party which include but are not limited to acts of God, labor 
disputes or civil unrest.  
 
25.  COUNTERPARTS   
25.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but 
all of which shall constitute one and the same document. This Agreement may be executed with 
electronic signatures.  
 
26.  LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY   
26.1 Under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential, 
incidental, special, punitive, or any other form of indirect or non-compensatory damages.   
 
 



 

 

27.  PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES   
27.1 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been placed 
on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit 
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a 
public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor 
under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in 
excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY 
TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
CONTRACTOR will advise the CITY immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this 
statute. 
 
28. PREPARATION  
28.1 This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of 
who was more responsible for its preparation. 
 
29. PALM BEACH COUNTY INSPECTOR GENERAL 
29.1 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach 
County Inspector General.  The CONTRACTOR has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance 
number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 
 
30. ENFORCEMENT COSTS   
30.1 All parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees, court costs and expenses if 
any legal action or other proceeding is brought for any dispute, disagreement, or issue of 
construction or interpretation arising hereunder whether relating to the Agreement’s execution, 
validity, the obligations provided therein, or performance of this Agreement, or because of an 
alleged breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement.   
 
31. PUBLIC RECORDS   
CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, 
and, if it is acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 119.011(2), the CONTRACTOR 
specifically agrees to:  
 

(a)        Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the services 
under this Agreement.  

(b)       Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records, provide the CITY with a 
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within 
a reasonable tie at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

(c)       Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law for the duration of the Agreement term and following completion of the 
Agreement, if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the CITY. 

(d)       Upon the completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public 
records in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records 
required by the CITY to perform the services.  If the CONTRACTOR transfers all 
public records to the CITY upon completion of the Agreement, the 
CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the 



 

 

CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for 
retaining public records.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the 
CITY, upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records, in a format that 
is compatible with the information technology systems of the City. 

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO 
THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
AT (561) 586-1660, CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, OR 7  
NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460. 
 
32. COPYRIGHTS AND/OR PATENT RIGHTS   
32.1 CONTRACTOR warrants that there has been no violation of copyrights and/or patent 
rights in the manufacturing, producing or selling of the goods, shipped or ordered, as a result of 
this Agreement and the CONTRACTOR agrees to hold the City harmless from any and all liability, 
loss, or expense occasioned by any such violation. 
 
33. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH   
33.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that all material, equipment, etc., contained in this proposal meets 
all OSHA requirements. CONTRACTOR further certifies that, if the material, equipment, etc., 
delivered is subsequently found to be deficient in any OSHA requirements in effect on date of 
delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material, equipment, etc. into compliance with the 
aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.  
 
34. FEDERAL AND STATE TAX   
34.1 The CITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal Property. The 
Procurement Official will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the successful 
CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to their 
suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the CITY, nor shall the CONTRACTOR 
be authorized to use the CITY’s tax Exemption Number in securing such materials. 
 
35. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY   
35.1 The CONTRACTOR shall at all times guard against damage or loss to the property of the 
CITY or of other vendors or contractors and shall be held responsible for replacing or repairing 
any such loss or damage. The CITY may withhold payment or make such deductions as deemed 
necessary to insure reimbursement or replacement for loss or damage to property through 
negligence of the successful CONTRACTOR or its agents. The CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible to safeguard all of their property such as tools and equipment while on site. The CITY 
will not be held responsible for any loss of CONTRACTOR property due to theft or vandalism.  
 
36. DAMAGE TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY  
36.1 The responsibility for all damage to person or property arising out of or on account of work 
done under this Agreement shall rest upon the CONTRACTOR, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
save the CITY harmless from all claims made on account of such damages. 
 
 
 



 

 

37. WARRANTY 
37.1 CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to the CITY that the Scope of Work provided 
under this Agreement shall be in accordance with the Agreement and the other documents 
specifically included in this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR warrants that all goods and parts 
supplied under the Scope of Work and this Agreement shall be free from defects for a minimum 
of one (1) year from the final completion of the Scope of Work.  CONTRACTOR guarantees that 
all services and labor performed under the Scope of Work and this Agreement will be free from 
defects for a minimum of one (1) year from the final completion of the Scope of Work.  
CONTRACTOR shall provide to the CITY any and all manufacturers’ warranties for the goods 
and services being provided under the Scope of Work.  CONTRACTOR agrees to pay for all 
transportation and handling costs of returning the boilers, if required, for repair or replacement.  If 
a boiler(s) must be returned, CONTRACTOR, shall provide a replacement boiler(s) for the 
duration.   
 
38. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 
38.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to 
section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole 
option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false 
certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
38.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and 
its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in 
business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant 
to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 
CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or 
if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 
Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the 
term of this Agreement. 
 
38.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable 
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 
 
38.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 
relied upon by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
 
38.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards 
to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the City of the same. 
 
38.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 
 
39. SURVIVABILITY 
39.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation 
which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier termination. 
 
 



 

 

40. WORK FOR HIRE 
 
40.1 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other 
items and data or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred 
to as “Documents” hereafter), prepared by the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors under this 
Agreement shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and the exclusive property of the CITY.  To the 
extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under applicable law, 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors will assign to the CITY all right, title and 
interest in and to CONTRACTOR and/or CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such 
Documents. CONTRACTOR shall execute and deliver to CITY such instruments of transfer and 
take such other action that CITY may reasonable request, including, without limitation, executing 
and filing, at CITY’s expense, copyright applications, assignments and other documents required 
for the protection of CITY’s right to such Documents.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain copies of 
the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the scope of services.  
The CITY grants to the CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors the right and/or 
limited license to use a portion of the Documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR or the 
CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors in future projects of the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’s 
Subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at CONTRACTOR’s or 
CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to CITY. Any modifications 
made by the CITY to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the 
Documents without written authorization or adaptation by the CONTRACTOR will be at the CITY’s 
sole risk and without liability to the CONTRACTOR. 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 





 

 

Exhibit A 
 

IFB Scope of Services 
The City of Lake Worth Beach is seeking proposals from qualified and experienced firms to provide 
Potable Bottled Water for Disaster Recovery for the City of Lake Worth Beach in the event of a 
natural disaster or other emergency related crises. The objective of the IFB and subsequent 
contracting activity is to secure the services of an experienced CONTRACTOR who is capable 
of efficiently providing food grade potable bottled water in a timely and cost-effective manner.  
The CONTRACTOR must be capable of assembling, directing, and managing the service 
and provide a work force that can start operations within 24 - 48 hours after the notification 
of emergency. 
 
This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the resulting 
contract. The CONTRACTOR shall perform all work in compliance with all applicable federal 
law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives in order to 
maximize recovery of reimbursable expenses. This shall include the provision of audit quality 
documentation as required by and acceptable to FEMA for all work accomplished. This includes 
compliance with any disaster monitoring services the CITY may have under contract.  
 
The CONTRACTOR may be required, at the CITY’s discretion, to be under the direction of an 
agent of the CITY.  
 
While intended to cover potable bottled water needs in any major disaster scenario, the primary 
focus is to provide the support to personnel during the threat of hurricane damage to the City 
of Lake Worth Beach. The planning standards used for this project are based on the anticipated 
impacts of a named storm event or major flood impacting Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
If activation is required, the CITY intends to activate contracts on an as-needed basis as solely 
determined by the CITY. The CITY intends to activate the CONTRACTORS in the order of final 
ranking as best meets the needs of the CITY. The CITY reserves the sole right to 
assign/reassign any or all CONTRACTORS at any time as may be deemed appropriate 
depending upon the circumstance(s), the event, or any other condition which may warrant such 
action.  
The CITY does not envision the need for multiple contracts to carry out the food grade 
potable bottled water supply but may award the Primary and Secondary contract for this 
service.  The CONTRACTOR must have the experience and capability to manage a major 
workforce with multiple subcontractors and to cover the expenses associated with a major 
recovery operation prior to the initial CITY payment and between subsequent payments, as 
well as the capacity to provide the necessary insurance. The CONTRACTOR must also have 
an established management team, an established network of resources to provide the 
necessary facilities, equipment, supplies and personnel, and demonstrable experience in major 
disaster recovery projects. 
The resulting contract to be awarded under this IFB will be a contingency contract that will be 
activated via purchase order only in the face of an emergency or immediately after an 
emergency. As such, no compensation will accrue to the CONTRACTOR unless and until a 
purchase order is issued either in anticipation of a natural disaster or immediately after such 
disaster. Each purchase order will contain a price ceiling (not-to-exceed amount) that the 
CONTRACTOR exceeds at its own risk. 
The CITY does not guarantee a CONTRACTOR will be activated if awarded a contract. 
The CITY'S goal is to have the CONTRACTOR fully operational on designated and approved 
site within 24 - 48 hours after the initial activation.  



 

 

The CITY intends to award Primary and Secondary contracts but reserves the right to execute 
more or less than two (2) food grade potable bottled water contracts on a contingency basis 
for the purpose of having CONTRACTOR(S) immediately available and committed to assisting 
the CITY in the aftermath of an emergency or major disaster. Each CONTRACTOR awarded a 
food grade potable bottled water contract will serve as a General Contractor for the purpose 
of food grade potable bottled water delivery and will be able to use his/her own and 
subcontractor resources to meet the obligations of the contract and specific purchase order. 
It is anticipated that the CONTRACTOR will use both local and non-local subcontractors. 
Notwithstanding, the CONTRACTOR must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that 
small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises and labor surplus area firms are 
solicited and used when possible. 
When a major disaster or emergency occurs or is imminent, the CITY intends to contact the 
highest ranked CONTRACTORS awarded food grade potable bottled water contracts to 
advise them of the CITY’s intent to activate the Contracts via purchase order.   
 
When a major disaster or emergency occurs or is imminent, the CITY will initially send out an 
alert to the selected CONTRACTOR(S). This Alert will serve to activate the lines of 
communication between the CONTRACTOR representatives and the CITY.  Subsequently, the 
CITY will issue the first Purchase Order which will authorize the CONTRACTOR to send 
an Operations Manager to the CITY within 24 hours of receiving such Purchase Order to 
begin planning for the operations and mobilizing the personnel, supplies and equipment as 
necessary to perform the stipulated work. The CONTRACTOR should anticipate receiving this 
first Purchase Order 24 to 72 hours before projected landfall of a hurricane. Depending on the 
nature of the storm and circumstances, the CITY may activate more than one (1) 
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR will generally be activated in order of final ranking. 
 
Specific purchase orders will be issued to select CONTRACTORS based on the best interest 
of the City. The CITY reserves the right to assign purchase orders to various CONTRACTORS 
based on pricing submitted.  
 
CONTRACTOR may include the list of additional services they are able to provide as an 
Appendix. The list of additional services shall be provided on the separate sheet and with 
separately listed prices. Additional services prices will not be included as a part of evaluation. 
The City reserves the right to award those services as considered in the best interest of the City.  
 
Scope of Requirement 
 
The following specifications describe food grade potable bottled water services for Disaster 
Recovery for the City of Lake Worth Beach in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency 
related crises.  
 
The City requires a qualified CONTRACTOR to provide the food grade potable bottled water for 
approximately 550 people at designated facility and delivered to the City of Lake Worth Beach 
City Hall or other designated location within the City of Lake Worth Beach.  The numbers of staff 
are approximate and may change dependent on the City requirements.  
 
The number of bottles required for responders are estimated at 30 – 16.9oz, per person per day 
on a daily basis in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency related crises or, as 
designated by the City the resulting contract.  The cases of bottles shall be in 12 to 48 bottle 
packaging.  The cases shall be placed on pallets for delivery and the pallets will not be returned. 
 



 

 

CONTRACTOR shall provide food grade potable drinking water in bottles ranging in size from 
8oz. to no more than 18oz. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall deliver the pallets of potable bottled water, with no additional delivery 
charges to 1900 2nd Ave N, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 or other designated location within Palm 
Beach County. 
 
CONTRACTOR must provide all phases of service in compliance with Federal, State, and Local 
guidelines governing health and food service sanitation.  
 
CONTRACTOR shall be operational and ready to provide services within 24 - 48 hours of 
activation notice from the Emergency Management Coordinator or designee.  
 
CONTRACTOR shall only utilize food grade water products that are fresh, of good odor and taste, 
and processed under sanitary conditions as required by food service industry standards.  
 
CONTRACTOR shall make available food grade potable drinking water in bottles service 24 hours 
a day, seen (7) days a week during activation.  
 
PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS  
 
All employees of the CONTRACTOR shall be neatly attired in uniforms that clearly and properly 
identify the company represented. The employees shall be neat and clean in appearance and 
courteous towards the patrons, the public, and their fellow employees. The CONTRACTOR shall 
train and closely supervise all its employees ensuring they practice the high standards of 
cleanliness, courtesy, and service required. The CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the adequate 
number of personnel and other rules and regulations appurtenant to the event. 
 
FOOD GRADE POTABLE BOTTLED WATER ORDER CANCELLATION  
 
The City reserves the right to cancel any and all food grade potable bottled water deliveries, 
without penalty, by notification to the CONTRACTOR 48 hours in advance of the next scheduled 
delivery. The CONTRACTOR must provide re-stocking costs, specific cancellation criteria and/or 
cost to be incurred in the event the service is cancelled with less than 48 hours’ notice. The City 
reserves the right to immediately cancel the vendor’s contract without penalty if the water or 
services provided does not meet the requirements specified by the contract. 
 
 
Reporting  
The CONTRACTOR shall submit a report to the CITY Emergency Management Coordinator 
or designee by close of business each day of the term of the Purchase Order.  Each report 
shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:  

1. Contractor’s Name  
2. Contract Number  
3. Total number and cases and bottles delivered 
4. Total number of additional items delivered, if any 
5. List of other services provided  

 
Failure to provide audit quality information by 5:00 p.m. of the following day of operation will 
subject CONTRACTOR to non-payment in each instance at the sole discretion of the CITY. 
 



 

 

Performance of Contractor 
 
It is the intent of the Agreement is to ensure that the CONTRACTOR provides a quality level of 
services. To this end, all complaints received by the Emergency Management Coordinator or 
designee, and reported to the CONTRACTOR shall be promptly resolved pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
The Emergency Management Coordinator or designee may levy administrative charges for the 
following infractions: 
1. Failure to mobilize pre-storm identified sites within three (3) calendar days of after being 
tasked by the CITY liquidated damages of $500 per day for each day not started. 
2. Inability to perform services due to CONTRACTOR equipment or operational failures 
liquidated damages of $500 per day, for each day repair site must remain attended. 
 
 
CONTRACTOR may be immediately terminated and may not paid for the following: 
1. Substandard food grade bottled water services  
2. Moving to another designated Work Area without prior CITY approval. 
3. Failure to provide service in accordance to guidelines set forth by FEMA and the CITY. 
4. Soliciting work from private citizens or others to be performed in the designated Service 
Area during the period of this Agreement. 
 
 
The City reserves the right to delete or amend any of the services as listed and described herein 
in negotiations with the selected CONTRACTOR(S) or in specific purchase orders. 
 
 
 
 

END OF SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
  

 
  



 

 

Exhibit B 
Federal Contract Provisions 

  The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into 
the contract, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 
following terms are applicable: 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the 
Contractor agrees as follows: 
 
(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The 
Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.   
(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 
of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, 
discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or 
applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the 
compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential 
job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals 
who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to 
a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, 
including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal 
duty to furnish information. 
(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under 
this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 
(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering 
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such 
rules, regulations, and orders. 
(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other 
sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of 



 

 

September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise 
provided by law. 
(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) 
and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless 
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 
204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding 
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event a 
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as 
a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with 
respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction 
work: Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above 
equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such 
government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.  The applicant agrees 
that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor 
in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause 
and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the 
supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the 
discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.   
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract 
modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred 
from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted 
construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and 
penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and 
subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart 
D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with 
these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 
terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain 
from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which 
the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received 
from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal 
proceedings. 
 
Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require 
or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such 
work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of 
the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor 
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the 
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. 
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, 
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of 



 

 

this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   
(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the 
CITY  shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of 
work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such 
sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 
paragraph (2) of this section. 
(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses 
set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors 
to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 
paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 
 
Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and 
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit 
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that 
the City will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 
Regional Office.  
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act  
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that 
the CITY will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 
Regional Office. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Suspension and Debarment.  
(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. 
As such, the Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 



 

 

C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart 
C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered 
transaction it enters into. 
(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the 
City. If it is later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C 
and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the 
City, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to 
suspension and/or debarment. 
(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C 
and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract 
that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision 
requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 
 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification 
as laid out in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, 
or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such 
disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 
Procurement of Recovered materials.  
(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products 
containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be 
acquired— 
• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance 
schedule; 
• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 
• At a reasonable price. 
(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is 
available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, 
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 
(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.” 
 
Access to Records.  
(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the 
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any 
books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this 
contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  
(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives 
access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the 
contract. 



 

 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor 
acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal 
reviews by the DOJ Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  
The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses 
of DHS agency officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  
By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be 
used to fund all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal 
law, regulations, executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  
 
No Obligation by Federal Government.  
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting 
from the contract. 
 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor 
acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract. 
 
Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  
If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the 
Contractor must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  
Affirmative steps must include: 
(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on 
solicitation lists; 
(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are 
solicited whenever they are potential sources; 
(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities 
to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business 
enterprises; 
(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage 
participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 
(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small 
Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce. 
 
Domestic preferences for procurements. 
(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, 
or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to 
iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products).  
(2) For purposes of this section:  
(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing 
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United 
States.  
(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in 
part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as 
polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 



 

 

 
Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 
(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  
(a) Procure or obtain;  
(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  
(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, 
or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or 
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described 
in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation 
(or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance 
of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and 
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou 
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or 
affiliate of such entities).  
(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such 
equipment.  
(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an 
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence 
or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned 
or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.  
(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), 
paragraph (1), the City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected 
businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities 
to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement 
equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is 
sustained. 
  



 

 

IFB# 23-115 Potable Bottled Water for Disaster Recovery 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension 
regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and 
Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- 
procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor is required to confirm that none 
of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.935).  
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
 
1) By signing this Certification the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a 
prospective primary participant, is providing the certification set out below.  
 
2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily 
result in denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit 
an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or 
explanation will be considered in connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into 
this transaction.  However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification 
or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 
 
3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the 
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other 
remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at 
any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily 
excluded, as used in this certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage 
sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. 
 
6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for 
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.  If it is later determined that the 
prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will 
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States 
Department of Homeland Security, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 







 

 

EXHIBIT C 
CONTRACTOR’s SCHEDULE OF UNIT PRICES  

(from the Contractor’s Bid)  
 
 
 

 



Bid Item

City of Lake Worth Beach

IFB#23‐115 Potable Bottled Water for Disaster Recovery

Bid Tab

1
$5.99

Description

Submitted

Submitted

Price per 24 bottle case

BlueTriton Brands, Inc.

Submitted

SubmittedBidder's Minimum Qualifications (B2)

Total: $5.99

Certification Regarding Debarments, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters (B11)

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (B12)

Bid (B3)

Non‐Collusion Affidavit (B7)

SubmittedScrutinized Companies Certification (B10)

Schedule of Unit Prices (B4)

Schedule of Subcontractors (B5)

Bid Cover Sheet (B1) Submitted

Drug Free Certification  (B8)

Submitted

Submitted

Reference List (B6)

Campaign Contribution Statement (B9) Submitted

CompliantBid Compliance 

Comments

Submitted

Submitted

Submitted



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Phoenix Bus Inc for the transportation of contract and/or mutual aid crews during 
emergency situations 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with Phoenix Bus Inc for the transportation of contract and/or mutual aid crews associated 
with potential future emergency situations including disaster recovery and/or electric utility restoration 
situations. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 23-111) seeking bids from qualified vendors for disaster 
emergency bus transportation services.  Phoenix Bus Inc was one (1) of two (2) vendors to bid, which 
were both found to be responsive and responsible bidders and were both recommended for the award.  
Phoenix Bus Inc was selected as the awardee of the primary contract, based upon price.  

The City occasionally finds itself in situations which require emergency disaster recovery efforts by 
internal staff, third party contractors and/or mutual aid crews. These situations can be the result of natural 
disasters such as hurricanes, tornadoes or flooding and require additional efforts during times when 
basic services and supplies may be unavailable. The disaster emergency bus transportation services 
described in this Agreement would be utilized to transport contractor and/or mutual aid crews between 
their respective hotels and staging sites on a daily basis during such emergencies. The duration of the 
Agreement is three (3) years, with the option to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement with Phoenix Bus Inc for the transportation of contract and/or 
mutual aid crews in emergency situations.    

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Agreement 
 



 
 

CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 
(Disaster Emergency Bus Transportation Services) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this __________________, between the City of Lake Worth 

Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, hereinafter the “CITY”, with its office located at 7 North 
Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida  33460, and Phoenix Bus Inc, a corporation 
authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter the “CONTRACTOR”, with its office 
located at 5387 L.B. McLeod Rd, Orlando, FL 32811. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the CITY is a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant to the 

CITY’s Charter and the Constitution of the State of Florida; 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY issued Invitation for Bids # 23-111 (hereinafter “IFB”) for Disaster 

Emergency Bus Transportation Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR submitted a bid to perform the services described and set 

out in the IFB’s Scope of Work which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as 
Exhibit “A”; and  

 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accept the CONTRACTOR’s bid for the CONTRACTOR 

to render the required services to the CITY as provided herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR further warrants that it is experienced and capable of 

performing the tasks hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement has been identified as providing essential services which is 

anticipated to be needed by the CITY in the event of a hurricane or other disaster in order to 
provide the services for the benefit of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that in such event, the CITY may 

apply to the State of Florida or the federal government for funds which will be used to pay 
CONTRACTOR or reimburse the CITY for payments made to CONTRACTOR and that the federal 
government will only consider reimbursing for contracts which contain the requisite FEMA 
provisions; and  

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that any services performed 

under this Agreement and pursuant to the IFB will comply with all applicable Federal law, 
regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives; and 

 
WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees to the terms laid out in IFB and 

Exhibit “B”, which are the provisions required to be included in contracts funded by federal 
grants, including FEMA Public Assistance (see 2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and applicable FEMA 
guidance); and  

 
WHEREAS, the CITY finds making the non-exclusive award of the IFB to the 

CONTRACTOR as described herein serves a valid public purpose. 
 



 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY hereby engages the services of the CONTRACTOR, and 
in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. TERM   
The initial term of this non-exclusive Agreement shall be from the date of execution by the CITY 
for an initial term of three (3) years with two (2) additional 1-year renewal options unless earlier 
terminated in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR’s rates shall 
remain firm for the first three (3) years of the Agreement subject to terms and conditions to be 
negotiated on requests for consideration of a price adjustment after the initial term.    
 
2.  SCOPE OF WORK  
2.1  The scope of work includes all implements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, 
transportation, tools, materials, supplies, labor and other things necessary to provide bus 
transportation services for disaster recovery for the City of Lake Worth Beach in the event of a 
natural disaster or other emergency related crises. The CONTRACTOR understands that the 
objective of this Agreement is to secure the services of an experienced CONTRACTOR who is 
capable of efficiently providing bus transportation services in a timely and cost-effective manner 
and that the CONTRACTOR must be capable of assembling, directing, and managing the bus 
transportation service and provide a work force that can start operations within 24 - 48 hours after 
the notification of emergency. 
 
2.2. The CONTRACTOR represents that it is experienced and proficient in all phases of 
providing bus transportation and related services to the CITY in an event of a natural disaster or 
other emergency related crises.   
 
2.2 The CONTRACTOR represents to the CITY that the Scope of Work provided under this 
Agreement and IFB shall be in accordance with accepted and established trade practices, 
standards and procedures recognized in the CONTRACTOR’s trade in general and that the 
supplied services shall conform to the highest standards and in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
2.3 The CONTRACTOR represents that it is licensed to do business in the State of Florida 
and holds and will maintain all applicable licenses required for the work to be completed under 
this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR further warrants its capability and experience to perform the 
work provided for herein in a professional and competent manner.  
 
2.4 The scope of work shall be performed by the CONTRACTOR or under its supervision and 
all personnel engaged in performing the Scope of Work shall be fully qualified and, if required, 
authorized or permitted under the state and local law to perform such Scope of Work. All of the 
CONTRACTOR’s personnel (and all subcontractors), while on CITY premises, shall comply with 
all CITY requirements governing safety, conduct and security. 
 
2.5 The scope of work shall be completed in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth in the IFB and this Agreement. 
 
3.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; USE OF AGENTS OR ASSISTANTS   
3.1 The CONTRACTOR is and shall be, in the performance of the scope of work under this 
Agreement, an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the CITY.  All 
persons engaged in any of the scope of work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall at all 
times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR’s sole direction, supervision, and 



 
 

control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and its 
employees perform the scope of work. 
 
3.2 To the extent reasonably necessary to enable the CONTRACTOR to perform the scope 
of work hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents 
or assistants which it may deem proper, and may further employ, engage, or retain the services 
of such other persons or corporations to aid or assist in the proper performance of its duties. All 
costs of the services of, or expenses incurred by, such agents or assistants shall be paid by the 
CONTRACTOR.  
 
4. SERVICES   
4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide all services as more specifically set forth in the scope 
of work.   
 
5. FEE AND ORDERING MECHANISM 
5.1  For services to be rendered under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled 
to compensation at the amount set forth in CONTRACTOR’s rate attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. 
After the first three (3) years of this Agreement, if due to applicable price escalations and/or 
reductions which impact the CONTRACTOR’s rate, the CITY and CONTRACTOR may execute 
a written amendment to this Agreement to establish a new rate for the renewal term(s). The City 
Manager may approve changes in the CONTRACTOR’s rate based on the recommendation of 
the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee.  
 
5.2 Should the CITY require additional goods or services, not included in this Agreement, fees 
and payment for such work will be set forth in a separate amendment, as authorized in accordance 
with the CITY’s procurement code prior to any such additional goods or services being provided 
by the CONTRACTOR.   
 
5.3 The CITY’s ordering mechanism for the scope of work performed under this Agreement 
may be a City Purchase Order; however, the terms and conditions stated in a City Purchase Order 
shall not apply. CONTRACTOR shall not exceed amounts expressed on any Purchase Order. 
The CITY’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30th of each calendar year and the CITY cannot 
authorize the purchase of goods or services beyond September 30th of each calendar year, prior 
to the annual budget being approved by the CITY’s City Commission. Additionally, the CITY must 
have budgeted appropriate funds for the goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If 
the budget is approved for said goods and services, the CITY will issue a new Purchase Order 
for required and approved goods and/or services. 
 
5.4  This Agreement does not guarantee that the CITY will utilize the CONTRACTOR in any 
capacity or for any services hereunder. When the CITY identifies a need for the CONTRACTOR’s 
services, the CITY will issue the CONTRACTOR with a Purchase Oder specifying the work 
required. The CONTRACTOR shall commence the identified services upon the CITY’s approval 
of the Purchase Order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed.  
 
6.  MAXIMUM COSTS   
6.1 The CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that the total cost to complete 
the scope of work in accordance with the IFB and this Agreement is not to exceed the amount(s) 
set forth in the approved Purchase Order issued to the CONTRACTOR annually or on case 
by case basis, and no additional costs shall be authorized without prior written approval from the 
CITY.  
 



 
 

7.  INVOICE & PAYMENT 
7.1 The CONTRACTOR shall submit an itemized invoice to the CITY for approval prior to 
receiving compensation.  The CONTRACTOR shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approved invoice for work.  
 
7.2 If the CITY disputes any invoice or part of an invoice, CITY shall notify the CONTRACTOR 
within a reasonable time after receipt of the invoice.  CITY reserves the right to off-set, reduce or 
withhold any payment to the CONTRACTOR until the dispute is resolved. 
 
8.  AUDIT BY CITY   
8.1 The CONTRACTOR shall permit the CITY, or any authorized representatives of the CITY, 
at all reasonable times, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers or 
documents related to the CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement including, but not 
limited to, expenses for sub-contractors, agents or assistants, direct and indirect charges for work 
performed and detailed documentation for all such work performed or to be performed under this 
Agreement. 
 
9.  COPIES OF DATA/DOCUMENTS   
9.1 Copies or original documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in relation to work 
associated with this Agreement shall be provided to the CITY. Data collected, stored, and/or 
provided shall be in a form acceptable to the CITY and agreed upon by the CITY. 
 
10.  OWNERSHIP   
10.1 Each and every report, draft, work product, map, record, and other document reproduced, 
prepared, or caused to be prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the CITY. 
 
11.  WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED   
11.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not make changes in the Scope of Work or perform any 
additional services or provide any additional material under this Agreement without first obtaining 
written authorization from the CITY for such additional services or goods. Additional services or 
goods provided without written authorization shall be done at the CONTRACTOR’s sole risk and 
without payment from the CITY.  
 
12.  DEFAULTS, TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
12.1 If the CONTRACTOR fails to timely perform the scope of work or has failed in any other 
respect to satisfactorily perform in accordance with this Agreement; or, is in material breach of a 
term or condition of this Agreement, the City Manager or designee may give written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR specifying defaults to be remedied. Such notice shall set forth the basis for any 
dissatisfaction and suggest corrective measures. If the CONTRACTOR does not remedy defaults 
within the allotted time or commence good faith steps to remedy the default to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may take such action to remedy the default 
and all expenses related thereto shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR including, without 
limitation, utilization of another contractor to provide for such work; and/or, the CITY may withhold 
any money due or which may become due to the CONTRACTOR for such expense and/or  work 
related to the claimed default.  Alternatively, or in addition to the foregoing, if after three (3) days 
the CONTRACTOR has not remedied defaults or commenced good faith steps to remedy defaults 
to the satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may elect to terminate this 
Agreement.  No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-
down, lost profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this 
paragraph. 



 
 

12.2 Notwithstanding paragraph 12.1, the CITY reserves the right and may elect to terminate 
this Agreement at any time, with or without cause. At such time, the CONTRACTOR would be 
compensated only for that work which has been satisfactorily completed to the date of termination. 
No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-down, lost 
profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this paragraph. 
 
13.  INSURANCE 
13.1. Prior to commencing the scope of work, the CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates 
evidencing insurance coverage as required hereunder.  All insurance policies shall be issued by 
companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida.  The Certificates shall 
clearly indicate that the CONTRACTOR has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and 
classification as required for strict compliance with this Section and that no material change or 
cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the 
CITY.  Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of 
its liability and obligations under this Contract.  All insurance, other than Workers’ Compensation, 
required hereunder shall specifically include the “City of Lake Worth Beach” as an “Additional 
Insured” on a primary, non-contributory basis, and the CONTRACTOR shall provide additional 
insured endorsements section of Certificates of Insurance. 
 
13.2.  The CONTRACTOR  shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, commercial general 
liability, including contractual liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence 
($2,000,000 aggregate) to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for damages for bodily and 
personal injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property damages which may 
arise from any operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by the 
CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with the CONTRACTOR. 
 
13.3.  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, comprehensive 
automobile liability insurance in the minimum amount of $5,000,000 combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damages liability to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for 
damages for bodily and personal injury, including death, as well as from claims for property 
damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned 
automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or 
by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. Coverage shall include 
passenger liability. 
 
13.4. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all employees as required by 
Florida Statutes.   
 
14.  WAIVER OF BREACH   
14.1 The waiver by either party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate 
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that same or any other provision. 
 
15.  INDEMNITY   
15.1 The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless, to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, the CITY and its officers, agents, employees and representatives, from and 
against any and all liability, suit, actions, proceedings, judgments, claims, losses, liens, damages, 
injuries (whether in contract or in tort, including personal injury, accidental death, patent 
infringement or property damage, and regardless, of whether the allegations are false, fraudulent 
or groundless), costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees, litigation, arbitration, mediation, 
appeal expenses) to the extent arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of the acts, omissions 



 
 

or neglect of the CONTRACTOR or any of its agents, employees, subcontractors or by anyone 
the CONTRACTOR directly or indirectly employed. 
 
15.2 The CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in 
effect and shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR whether such injury or damage shall accrue, 
or may be discovered, before or after termination of this Agreement. 
 
15.3 Compliance with any insurance requirements required elsewhere in this Agreement shall 
not relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation to defend, hold harmless and indemnify 
the CITY as set forth in this section. 
 
15.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause 
of action in favor of a third party against either the CITY or CONTRACTOR.  Further, nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as consent by the CITY to be sued, 
nor as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida 
Statutes, as amended from time to time. 
 
15.5 The CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with this section’s provisions shall constitute a 
material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement. 
 
16.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
16.1 This Agreement consists of the terms and conditions provided herein; the IFB (including 
all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto or referenced therein); the scope of work 
attached as Exhibit “A”; all applicable federal grant requirements attached as Exhibit “B”; and, the 
CONTRACTOR’s rate attached as Exhibit “C”. To the extent that there exists a conflict between 
this Agreement and the remaining documents, the terms, conditions, covenants, and/or provisions 
of this Agreement along with Exhibit “B” shall prevail with the IFB (including all specifications, 
exhibits and addenda attached thereto or referenced therein) and the scope of work attached as 
Exhibit “A”) next taking precedence. Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall 
be construed in such a manner as to avoid conflicts between provisions of the various documents.   
 
16.2  This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between 
the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other Agreement, statement, 
or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained herein shall be 
valid or binding. 
 
17.  ASSIGNMENT 
17.1 Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to any party 
other than the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. All duties and responsibilities under this Agreement 
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR and not for the 
benefit or any other party. The CONTRACTOR shall not assign any right or interest in this 
Agreement, and shall not delegate any duty owned, without the CITY’s prior written consent. Any 
attempted assignment or delegation shall be void and totally ineffective for all purposes, and shall 
constitute a material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this 
Agreement. 
 
17.2 In the event the CITY consents to an assignment or delegation, the assignee, delegate, 
or its legal representative shall agree in writing to personally assume, perform, and be bound by 
this Agreement’s covenants, conditions, obligations and provisions. 
 
18.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS   



 
 

18.1 Subject to the provision regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties. 
 
19.  OF TRIAL BY JURY   
19.1 TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, 
EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION 
RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
20.  GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES   
20.1 The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights 
and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and 
venue shall be in Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
20.2 No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other 
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or 
otherwise.  No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder 
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof. 
 
21.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE  
21.1 Time is of the essence in the completion of the scope of work as specified herein.  
 
22.  NOTICES   
22.1 All notices hereunder must be in writing and, unless otherwise provided herein, shall be 
deemed validly given on the date when personally delivered to the address indicated below; or 
on the third (3rd) business day following deposit, postage prepaid, using certified mail, return 
receipt requested, in any U.S. postal mailbox or at any U.S. Post Office; or when sent via 
nationally recognized overnight courier to the address indicated below. Should the CITY or the 
CONTRACTOR have a change of address, the other party shall immediately be notified in writing 
of such change, provided, however, that each address for notice must include a street address 
and not merely a post office box. All notices, demands or requests from the CONTRACTOR to 
the CITY shall be given to the CITY address as follows: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Attn: City Manager  

 7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

 
All notices, demands or requests from the CITY to the CONTRACTOR shall be given to the 
CONTRACTOR address as follows: 
 
 Phoenix Bus Inc 

Attn: Bianca Cavadas, Manager  
5387 L.B. McLeod Rd 
Orlando, FL 32811 

 
23.  SEVERABILITY   
23.1 Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement or any document required herein to 
be executed be declared invalid, void or unenforceable, all remaining parts, terms and provisions 
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be invalidated, impaired or affected 
thereby. 
 



 
 

24.  DELAYS AND FORCES OF NATURE   
24.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely 
performance if such delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Upon the 
CONTRACTOR’s request, the CITY shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and 
failure to timely perform the work for reason beyond the control of the CONTRACTOR and, if the 
CONTRACTOR’S delay and failure to timely perform was without it or its subcontractors’ fault or 
negligence, as determined by the CITY in its sole discretion, the time of completion shall be 
extended for any reasonable time that the CITY, in its sole discretion, may decide; subject to the 
CITY’S rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.  If the 
CONTRACTOR is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by any act or neglect of the 
CITY or its employees, or by any other contractor employed by the CITY, or by changes ordered 
by the CITY or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes 
beyond the CONTRACTOR’S control, or by delay authorized by the CITY pending negotiation or 
by any cause which the CITY, in its sole discretion, shall decide justifies the delay, then the time 
of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the CITY, in its sole discretion, may 
decide.  No extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before 
a claim therefore is made in writing to the CITY.  In the case of continuing cause of delay, only 
one (1) claim is necessary.  The CONTRACTOR’s sole remedy for a delay in completion of the 
work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the work and CONTRACTOR 
specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in completion 
of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost 
profits, additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged 
monetary losses which may be allegedly suffered by CONTRACTOR due to a delay in completion 
of the work.  
 
24.2 Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder 
or any of them, if such obligations were prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future 
beyond the reasonable control of such party which include but are not limited to acts of God, labor 
disputes or civil unrest.  
 
25.  COUNTERPARTS   
25.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but 
all of which shall constitute one and the same document. This Agreement may be executed with 
electronic signatures.  
 
26.  LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY   
26.1 Under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential, 
incidental, special, punitive, or any other form of indirect or non-compensatory damages.   
 
27.  PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES   
27.1 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been placed 
on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit 
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a 
public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor 
under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in 
excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY 
TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 



 
 

CONTRACTOR will advise the CITY immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this 
statute. 
 
 
28. RECITALS AND PREPARATION  
28.1 The Recitals set out at the beginning of this Agreement are incorporated as true and 
correct statements of the CITY and CONTRACTOR. 
 
28.2 This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of 
who was more responsible for its preparation. 
 
29. PALM BEACH COUNTY INSPECTOR GENERAL 
29.1 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR 
acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach 
County Inspector General.  The CONTRACTOR has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance 
number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 
 
30. ENFORCEMENT COSTS   
30.1 All parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees, court costs and expenses if 
any legal action or other proceeding is brought for any dispute, disagreement, or issue of 
construction or interpretation arising hereunder whether relating to the Agreement’s execution, 
validity, the obligations provided therein, or performance of this Agreement, or because of an 
alleged breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement.   
 
31. PUBLIC RECORDS   
31.1 CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, and, if it is acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 119.011(2), the 
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to:  
 

(a)        Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the services 
under this Agreement.  

(b)       Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records, provide the CITY with a 
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within 
a reasonable tie at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

(c)       Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law for the duration of the Agreement term and following completion of the 
Agreement, if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the CITY. 

(d)       Upon the completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public 
records in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records 
required by the CITY to perform the services.  If the CONTRACTOR transfers all 
public records to the CITY upon completion of the Agreement, the 
CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the 
CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for 
retaining public records.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the 
CITY, upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records, in a format that 
is compatible with the information technology systems of the City. 



 
 

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO 
THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
AT (561) 586-1660, CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, OR 7  
NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460. 
 
32. COPYRIGHTS AND/OR PATENT RIGHTS   
32.1 CONTRACTOR warrants that there has been no violation of copyrights and/or patent 
rights in the manufacturing, producing or selling of the goods, shipped or ordered, as a result of 
this Agreement and the CONTRACTOR agrees to hold the City harmless from any and all liability, 
loss, or expense occasioned by any such violation. 
 
33. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH   
33.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that all material, equipment, etc., contained in this proposal meets 
all OSHA requirements. CONTRACTOR further certifies that, if the material, equipment, etc., 
delivered is subsequently found to be deficient in any OSHA requirements in effect on date of 
delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material, equipment, etc. into compliance with the 
aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.  
 
34. FEDERAL AND STATE TAX   
34.1 The CITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal Property. The 
Procurement Official will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the successful 
CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to their 
suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the CITY, nor shall the CONTRACTOR 
be authorized to use the CITY’s tax Exemption Number in securing such materials. 
 
35. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY   
35.1 The CONTRACTOR shall at all times guard against damage or loss to the property of the 
CITY or of other vendors or contractors and shall be held responsible for replacing or repairing 
any such loss or damage. The CITY may withhold payment or make such deductions as deemed 
necessary to insure reimbursement or replacement for loss or damage to property through 
negligence of the successful CONTRACTOR or its agents. The CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible to safeguard all of their property such as tools and equipment while on site. The CITY 
will not be held responsible for any loss of CONTRACTOR property due to theft or vandalism.  
 
36. DAMAGE TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY  
36.1 The responsibility for all damage to person or property arising out of or on account of work 
done under this Agreement shall rest upon the CONTRACTOR, and the CONTRACTOR shall 
save the CITY harmless from all claims made on account of such damages. 
 
37. WARRANTY 
37.1 CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to the CITY that the Scope of Work provided 
under this Agreement shall be in accordance with the Agreement and the other documents 
specifically included in this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR warrants that all goods and parts 
supplied under the Scope of Work and this Agreement shall be free from defects for a minimum 
of one (1) year from the final completion of the Scope of Work.  CONTRACTOR guarantees that 
all services and labor performed under the Scope of Work and this Agreement will be free from 



 
 

defects for a minimum of one (1) year from the final completion of the Scope of Work.  
CONTRACTOR shall provide to the CITY any and all manufacturers’ warranties for the goods 
and services being provided under the Scope of Work.  CONTRACTOR agrees to pay for all 
transportation and handling costs of returning the boilers, if required, for repair or replacement.  If 
a boiler(s) must be returned, CONTRACTOR, shall provide a replacement boiler(s) for the 
duration.   
 
38. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 
38.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to 
section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole 
option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false 
certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this 
Agreement. 
 
38.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and 
its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in 
business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant 
to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 
CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or 
if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 
Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the 
term of this Agreement. 
 
38.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable 
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 
 
38.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 
relied upon by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
 
38.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards 
to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the City of the same. 
 
38.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 
 
39. SURVIVABILITY 
39.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation 
which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier termination. 
 
40. WORK FOR HIRE 
40.1 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other 
items and data or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred 
to as “Documents” hereafter), prepared by the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors under this 
Agreement shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and the exclusive property of the CITY.  To the 
extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under applicable law, 
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors will assign to the CITY all right, title and 
interest in and to CONTRACTOR and/or CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such 



 
 

Documents. CONTRACTOR shall execute and deliver to CITY such instruments of transfer and 
take such other action that CITY may reasonable request, including, without limitation, executing 
and filing, at CITY’s expense, copyright applications, assignments and other documents required 
for the protection of CITY’s right to such Documents.  The CONTRACTOR shall retain copies of 
the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the scope of services.  
The CITY grants to the CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors the right and/or 
limited license to use a portion of the Documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR or the 
CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors in future projects of the CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’s 
Subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at CONTRACTOR’s or 
CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to CITY. Any modifications 
made by the CITY to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the 
Documents without written authorization or adaptation by the CONTRACTOR will be at the CITY’s 
sole risk and without liability to the CONTRACTOR. 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Contractor
Agreement (Disaster Emergency Bus Transportation Services) on the day and year first above
written.

ATTEST:

By: 
.7:�--:---::-----M e Ii s s a Ann Coyne, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

By: ;:;-;----:---=- ---:- -:--=-,-- --Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

[Corporate Seal)

STATE FL ) 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: ____ ,----____ _
Betty Resch, Mayor 

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL
SUFFICIENCY

By: _ ___________ _
Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director

CONTRACTOR: Phoenix Bus Inc.

COUNTY oroay ) 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �sical presence or
0online notarization on this 12.-lh day of JUl"\e. , 2023, by Phoenix Bus Inc., a Florida
Corporation, authorized to do business in the State of Florida, who is personally known to me or
who has produced PL D L as identification, and who did take an oath that
he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the Contractor to the 

Notary Seal:

CA•• :.FA.£�Q 

�cu f � c•,c.i 

Cc. ◄• 56 

Mt Cc 21 2Cl4 



 
 

Exhibit A 
IFB Scope of Services 

 
The objective of the IFB and subsequent contracting activity is to secure the services of an 
experienced CONTRACTOR who is capable of efficiently providing transfer services in a timely 
and cost-effective manner.  The CONTRACTOR must be capable of assembling, directing, and 
managing the bus transfer service and provide a work force that can start operations within 24 
hours after the notification of emergency. 
 
This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance may be used to fund the resulting 
contract. The CONTRACTOR shall perform all work in compliance with all applicable federal law, 
regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives in order to maximize 
recovery of reimbursable expenses. This shall include the provision of audit quality documentation 
as required by and acceptable to FEMA for all work accomplished. This includes compliance with 
any disaster monitoring services the CITY may have under contract.  
 
The CONTRACTOR may be required, at the CITY’s discretion, to be under the direction of an 
agent of the CITY.  
 
While intended to cover bus transportation needs in any major disaster scenario, the primary 
focus is to provide the support to personnel during the threat of hurricane damage to the City of 
Lake Worth Beach. The planning standards used for this project are based on the anticipated 
impacts of a named storm event or major flood impacting Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
If activation is required, the CITY intends to activate contracts on an as-needed basis as solely 
determined by the CITY. The CITY intends to activate the CONTRACTORS in the order of final 
ranking as best meets the needs of the CITY. The CITY reserves the sole right to assign/reassign 
any or all CONTRACTORS at any time as may be deemed appropriate depending upon the 
circumstance(s), the event, or any other condition which may warrant such action.  
 
The CITY does not envision the need for multiple contracts to carry out the bus transportation 
service, but may award the Primary and Secondary contract for this service.  The CONTRACTOR 
must have the experience and capability to manage a major workforce with multiple 
subcontractors and to cover the expenses associated with a major recovery operation prior to the 
initial CITY payment and between subsequent payments, as well as the capacity to provide the 
necessary insurance. The CONTRACTOR must also have an established management team, an 
established network of resources to provide the necessary transfer services, equipment, supplies 
and personnel, and demonstrable experience in major disaster recovery projects. 
 
The resulting contract to be awarded under this IFB will be a contingency contract that will be 
activated via purchase order only in the face of an emergency or immediately after an emergency. 
As such, no compensation will accrue to the CONTRACTOR unless and until a purchase order is 
issued either in anticipation of a natural disaster or immediately after such disaster. Each 
purchase order will contain a price ceiling (not-to-exceed amount) that the CONTRACTOR 
exceeds at its own risk. 
 
The CITY does not guarantee a CONTRACTOR will be activated if awarded a contract. 
 
The CITY'S goal is to have the CONTRACTOR fully operational on designated and approved site 
within 24 hours after the initial activation.  
 



 
 

The CITY intends to award Primary and Secondary contract but reserves the right to execute 
more or less than two (2) bus transportation contracts on a contingency basis for the purpose of 
having CONTRACTOR(S) immediately available and committed to assisting the CITY in the 
aftermath of an emergency or major disaster. Each CONTRACTOR awarded a bus transportation 
contract will serve as a General Contractor for the purpose of bus transportation operations, and 
will be able to use his/her own and subcontractor resources to meet the obligations of the contract 
and specific purchase order. It is anticipated that the CONTRACTOR will use both local and non-
local subcontractors. Notwithstanding, the CONTRACTOR must take all necessary affirmative 
steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises and labor 
surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible. 
 
When a major disaster or emergency occurs or is imminent, the CITY intends to contact the 
highest ranked CONTRACTORS awarded bus transportation contracts to advise them of the 
CITY’s intent to activate the Contracts via purchase order.   
 
When a major disaster or emergency occurs or is imminent, the CITY will initially send out an alert 
to the selected CONTRACTOR(S). This Alert will serve to activate the lines of communication 
between the CONTRACTOR representatives and the CITY. The CONTRACTOR should 
anticipate receiving this first Purchase Order 24 to 72 hours before projected landfall of a 
hurricane. Depending on the nature of the storm and circumstances, the CITY may activate more 
than one (1) CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR will generally be activated in order of final ranking. 
 
Specific purchase orders will be issued to select CONTRACTORS based on the best interest of 
the City.  
 

Scope of Requirement 
 
The following specifications describe Bus Transportation Services for the City of Lake Worth 
Beach in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency related crises.  
 
The City requires a qualified CONTRACTOR to provide the bus transportation services for 
approximately 175 riders, transferring the individuals between selected hotels and designated 
crew staging areas in the morning hours and returning the individuals to the selected hotels from 
the designated crew staging areas in the evening hours.  The numbers of staff are approximate 
and may change dependent on the City requirements.  The selected hotels and designated crew 
staging areas will be within a general area bordered by Jupiter, Florida to the North, Wellington, 
Florida to the West and Boca Raton, Florida to the South. 
 
The transfers required are expected to occur twice or more on a daily basis during the months of 
June through November, or in the event of a natural disaster or other emergency related crises 
or, as designated by the City the resulting contract.  The typical daily transfer times are expected 
to be at approximately 6:00am (Eastern) and 7:00pm (Eastern), but may change due to a number 
of factors including weather. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish all buses necessary for an efficient bus transfer service for first 
responders, government employees, various elected and appointed officials, state and local 
representatives, and other emergency management personnel in the event of a natural disaster 
or other related crises.  
 



 
 

CONTRACTOR shall be able to provide uninterrupted bus service for up to 175 riders 
continuously. The Respondents shall provide buses, drivers and associated fuel without 
requirements for the assistance of the City. 
  
CONTRACTOR must provide all phases of service in compliance with Federal, State, and Local 
guidelines governing the movement of people and goods.  
 
CONTRACTOR shall be operational and ready to provide bus transportation services within 24 
hours of activation notice from the Emergency Management Coordinator or designee.  
 
CONTRACTOR shall only utilize buses that are in good condition, safe to operate and meet 
industry standards.  
 
Bus transportation services shall be available 24 hours a day with typical transfer times as follows:  

• Transfer between selected hotel(s) and designated crew staging site(s): 6:00 AM  
• Transfer between designated crew staging site(s) and selected hotel(s): 7:00 PM 

Times are approximate and may change.  
 
PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS  
 
All employees of the CONTRACTOR shall be neatly attired in uniforms that clearly and properly 
identify the company represented. The employees shall be neat and clean in appearance and 
courteous towards the patrons, the public, and their fellow employees. The CONTRACTOR shall 
train and closely supervise all its employees ensuring they practice the high standards of 
cleanliness, courtesy, and service required. The CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the adequate 
number of personnel and other rules and regulations appurtenant to regulated transportation 
services. 
 
BUS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE CANCELLATION  
 
The City reserves the right to cancel any and all transfers, without penalty, by notification to the 
CONTRACTOR 12 hours in advance of the next scheduled transfer. The CONTRACTOR must 
provide specific cancellation criteria and/or cost to be incurred in the event bus transportation 
service is cancelled with less than 12 hours’ notice. The City reserves the right to immediately 
cancel the contract without penalty if the services provided does not meet the requirements 
specified by the contract. 
 
Reporting  
The CONTRACTOR shall submit a report to the CITY Emergency Management Coordinator or 
designee by close of business each day of the term of the Purchase Order.  Each report shall 
contain, at a minimum, the following information:  
 

Contractor’s Name  
Contract Number  
Total number of transfers completed 
Total number of individuals transferred 
Total number of miles driven 
List of other services provided  

 
Failure to provide audit quality information by 5:00 p.m. of the following day of operation will 
subject CONTRACTOR to non-payment in each instance at the sole discretion of the CITY. 



 
 

 
Performance of Contractor 

 
It is the intent of the Agreement is to ensure that the CONTRACTOR provides a quality level of 
services. To this end, all complaints received by the Emergency Management Coordinator or 
designee, and reported to the CONTRACTOR shall be promptly resolved pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
The Emergency Management Coordinator or designee may levy administrative charges for the 
following infractions: 

1. Failure to mobilize and be available to provide after being tasked by the CITY 
liquidated damages of $500 per day for each day not started. 

2. Inability to perform services due to CONTRACTOR equipment or operational 
failures liquidated damages of $500 per day, for each day that services are unable 
to be performed. 

 
CONTRACTOR may be immediately terminated and may not paid for the following: 

1. Substandard bus transportation services  
2. Failure to provide service in accordance to guidelines set forth by FEMA and the 

CITY. 
 
 
The City reserves the right to delete or amend any of the services as listed and described herein 
in negotiations with the selected CONTRACTOR(S) or in specific purchase orders. 
 
 
 
 

END OF SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
  
 
  



 
 

Exhibit B 
Federal Contract Provisions 

  The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into 
the contract, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 
following terms are applicable: 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the 
Contractor agrees as follows: 
 
(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The 
Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.   
(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 
of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, 
discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or 
applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the 
compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential 
job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals 
who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to 
a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, 
including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal 
duty to furnish information. 
(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under 
this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 
(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering 
agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such 
rules, regulations, and orders. 
(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other 
sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of 



 
 

September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise 
provided by law. 
(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) 
and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless 
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 
204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding 
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing 
such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the event a 
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as 
a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United 
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with 
respect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction 
work: Provided, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above 
equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such 
government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.  The applicant agrees 
that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor 
in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause 
and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the 
supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the 
discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.   
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract 
modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred 
from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted 
construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and 
penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and 
subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart 
D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply with 
these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 
terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain 
from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which 
the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received 
from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal 
proceedings. 
 
Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require 
or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such 
work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of 
the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor 
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the 
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. 
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, 
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of 



 
 

this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   
(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the 
CITY  shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of 
work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such 
sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 
paragraph (2) of this section. 
(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses 
set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors 
to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible 
for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 
paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 
 
Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and 
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit 
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that 
the City will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 
Regional Office.  
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act  
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued 
pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that 
the CITY will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency 
Regional Office. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Suspension and Debarment.  
(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. 
As such, the Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 



 
 

C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart 
C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered 
transaction it enters into. 
(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the 
City. If it is later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C 
and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the 
City, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to 
suspension and/or debarment. 
(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C 
and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract 
that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision 
requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 
 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification 
as laid out in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal 
appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, 
or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with 
non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such 
disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the 
certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 
Procurement of Recovered materials.  
(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products 
containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be 
acquired— 
• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance 
schedule; 
• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 
• At a reasonable price. 
(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is 
available at EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, 
https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 
(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.” 
 
Access to Records.  
(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the 
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any 
books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this 
contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  
(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means 
whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives 
access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the 
contract. 



 
 

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor 
acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal 
reviews by the DOJ Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  
The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses 
of DHS agency officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  
By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be 
used to fund all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal 
law, regulations, executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  
 
No Obligation by Federal Government.  
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting 
from the contract. 
 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor 
acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions pertaining to this contract. 
 
Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  
If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the 
Contractor must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, 
women’s business enterprises and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  
Affirmative steps must include: 
(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on 
solicitation lists; 
(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are 
solicited whenever they are potential sources; 
(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities 
to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business 
enterprises; 
(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage 
participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 
(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small 
Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce. 
 
Domestic preferences for procurements. 
(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, 
or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to 
iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products).  
(2) For purposes of this section:  
(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing 
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United 
States.  
(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in 
part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as 
polyvinyl chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 



 
 

 
Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 
(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  
(a) Procure or obtain;  
(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  
(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, 
or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or 
essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described 
in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is 
telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation 
(or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance 
of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and 
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou 
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or 
affiliate of such entities).  
(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such 
equipment.  
(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an 
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence 
or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned 
or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.  
(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), 
paragraph (1), the City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected 
businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities 
to transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement 
equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is 
sustained. 
  



 
 

IFB# 23-111 Disaster Emergency Bus Transportation Services 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension 
regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and 
Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- 
procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor is required to confirm that none 
of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.935).  
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
 
1) By signing this Certification the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a 
prospective primary participant, is providing the certification set out below.  
 
2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily 
result in denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit 
an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or 
explanation will be considered in connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into 
this transaction.  However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification 
or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction. 
 
3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the 
prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other 
remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at 
any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily 
excluded, as used in this certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage 
sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. 
 
6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for 
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction.  If it is later determined that the 
prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will 
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States 
Department of Homeland Security, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 



8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR
part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the
method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may,
but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non
procurement Programs.

9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge
and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a
prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

�- g,-,..----. Q._.,.a-_ �
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 

G /12 I 2o2� 
Date 

l I' 

·11;, 



I I I 

IFB# 23-111 Dlsastor Emorgoncy Bus Transportation Servlcos 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperat ive Agreements

ihe undersigned certifies, to the best of his or Her knowledge ahd belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member 

of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal 

grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperat ive agreement. 

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
ot Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperat ive agreement, the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in
accordance with its instructions. 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
awa rd documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and 
disclose according ly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this cert ification is a prerequ is ite for mak

i
ng

or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who 
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a c ivil penalty of not less than $10 , 000 and
not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor i'Yoe;A II )( b( 1 S I r-Jc , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and
accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor 
understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for
False Claims and Statements, apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Z'c;;r--- � vQ....A-dOF) 
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 

1?t A:t:JC:t-t:: cAj/fr MS 
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 

GI 1J. /J-02 2
Date 



 
 

EXHIBIT C 
CONTRACTOR’s RATE 

(from the Contractor’s Bid) 
 

 
 
 
 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 27-2023 – State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Stormwater Project Reallocation 

 
SUMMARY: 

The State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund (SLFRF) Reallocation resolution serves to reallocate 
stormwater project monies amongst other stormwater projects to be funded by the SLFRF. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City obtained State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds due to the Coronavirus Pandemic as funding 
assistance for infrastructure projects. The funds were allocated to several stormwater capital 
improvement projects that the City had received two Resilient Florida grants from Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection (FDEP). The City later learned these SLFRF funds were ineligible for use as 
the required matches for the projects. As such, an emergency stormwater project to alleviate flooding on 
John Rice Way in Downtown Lake Worth Beach was designed and permitted and is ready to be 
constructed ahead of the Florida Department of Transportation’s (FDOT) project along Lake and Lucerne 
Avenues. The cost estimates for the Parrot Cove stormwater improvement project has increased 
drastically since the project cost and budget were estimated due to material and labor cost increases. 
The money that was allocated as the two FDEP Resilient Florida grant matches will now fund the John 
Rice Way project and the Parrot Cove project. The resolution also provides the ability to reallocate funds 
between projects for up to 20% of the budget based on contingencies and changes as the projects 
progress through design and construction. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 27-2023 State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Stormwater 
Project Reallocation. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 27-2023 



27-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2023, A GENERAL APPROPRIATION 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, MAKING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT TO REALLOCATE STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL 
RECOVERY FUND STORMWATER PROJECT BUDGETS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) previously allocated 

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (“SLFRF”) to various City projects, and amongst 
them some stormwater infrastructure projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to reauthorize the budgeted 
stormwater infrastructure project costs amongst the project list as shown in Exhibit A due 
to grants received on two of the projects requiring matches and the SLFRF funds being 
ineligible matches; and 
  

WHEREAS, any future reallocation of funds necessary between projects within the 
stormwater projects may be completed for an amount up to 20% of either projects budget; 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS, adoption of this FY 2023 Budget amendment set forth herein serves 
a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
SECTION 1: The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and 
correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2:  As hereinafter stated in this Resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall mean 
the period of time beginning October 1, 2022 and ending and including September 30, 
2023. 
 
SECTION 3: The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out and 
attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the same hereby 
are, reallocated and appropriated to provide monies to be used to pay the necessary 
capital project expenses of the respective funds and departments of the City for the fiscal 
year. 
 
SECTION 4: The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated by 
reference, listed as capital expenses of the respective fund and department of the City, 
be, and the same hereby are, reallocated and appropriated and shall be paid out of the 
State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds acquired. 



Pg. 2, Reso. 27-2023 

 
 
SECTION 5:  Except as amended in Exhibit “A” hereto, the remainder of the of the 
SLFRF project list remains in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 6:  This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 

The passage of this Resolution was moved by Commissioner ______________, 

seconded by Commissioner ______________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows: 

Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 
Commissioner Kim Stokes  
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this Resolution duly passed and adopted on the 

_____ day of ____________, 2023.  

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
  



Pg. 3, Reso. 27-2023 

Exhibit A 

Project Name 
Amount 

Budgeted 
Est. Actual 

Cost 

Projected / 
Completion 

Date 
Proposed 
Allocation: 

16th Avenue N 
Outfall-Valve $250,000 TBD November-24  $220,000.00  

Main NRP-4 Eden 
Place $300,000 $600,000 November-24   

Main NRP-Parrot 
Cove $450,000 $900,000 November-24  $1,000,000.00  

Main NTP-3 S. 
Palm Park $300,000 $600,000 February-24   

West Village Art 
Loft $100,000 $109,940 January-23  $100,000.00  
John Rice Way 
Drainage 
Improvements     November-23  $80,000.00  

TOTAL: $1,400,000      $1,400,000.00  

 

 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 28-2023 -- First Amendment to the Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement with the 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to include City’s preferred decorative lighting 

 
SUMMARY: 

Resolution 28-2023 for an Amendment to the approved Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement with 
(FDOT) for Street Lighting Improvements along State Road 5 (also known as Federal Highway) to 
expand the FDOT project to include City’s preferred decorative lighting to be installed along SR A1A 
(South Ocean Blvd.) within the City’s boundaries and to have the City maintain the same after installation. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

As a part of the continual updating of the State of Florida Highway System, the FDOT is proposing to 
install lighting improvements for the purpose of vehicular and pedestrian safety to include decorative 
lighting to meet the specific lighting requirements for sea turtle nesting beaches as needed, and other 
hardscape improvements, and in compliance with the ADA accessibility Act. The City has consented to 
the cost to upgrade the lighting to match the City’s decorative street lighting and have the City maintain 
all the FDOT non-standard Light fixtures. 

The FDOT has presented an Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement to expand the project to include 
decorative lighting to be installed along SR A1A (South Ocean Blvd.) within the City’s boundaries and to 
have the City maintain the same after installation. 

Work will improve the lighting at the intersection at A1A and Lake Avenue and south in the vicinity of 
Barton Park within the limits of the City. 

The Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement and the First Amendment to the Maintenance 
Memorandum of Agreement stipulate the City will maintain all existing non-standard light fixtures and 
light poles within the limits of the City. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the First Amendment to the Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement to 
maintain and provide power to the decorative lights fixtures along Federal Highway and to include the 
decorative light fixtures along South Blvd. within the limits of the city. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Resolution 28-2023 
First Amendment 
Executed MMOA 
 
  



28-2023 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 28-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE (1) TO THE 
MAINTENANCE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO EXPAND THE SCOPE OF THE 
LIGHTING IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND THE CITY’S MAINTENANCE 
REQUIREMENTS; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTS AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth, Florida (“City”) is a duly constituted municipality 
having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution and Chapter 
166, Florida Statutes;  
 
WHEREAS, on June 16, 2023, the City approved a Maintenance Memorandum of 
Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for lighting 
improvements to be installed along State Road 5 (also known as Federal Highway) within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of the City (“MMOA”);  
 
WHEREAS, under the MMOA, FDOT will install the lighting improvements along Federal 
Highway (specifically from 10th Avenue South to 6th Avenue North) to include decorative 
lighting and the City will maintain the improvements once installed;  
 
WHEREAS, FDOT has proposed via Amendment No. 1 to the MMOA to expand the 
project to include decorative lighting to be installed along SR A1A (South Ocean Blvd.) 
within the City’s boundaries and to have the City maintain the same after installation;  
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to see the project expanded and agrees to assume the 
maintenance responsibilities related to the expanded project; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that amending the MMOA is in the best interests of 
both the City and FDOT and serves a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution as true 
and correct statements. 
 
Section 2. The City Commission hereby approves Amendment No. 1 to the 
Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement with FDOT for the decorative lighting 
improvements to be installed by FDOT and directs the Mayor and City Clerk to execute 
the same. A copy of this Resolution shall be provided to FDOT along with the executed 
Amendment. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions are hereby repealed or amended to 
the extent that they are in conflict with this Resolution.  



Pg. 2, Reso. 28-2023 

 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage. 
 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner _________, 
seconded by Commissioner _____________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 
as follows: 
 

Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the ___ 

day of __________ 2023. 
 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 



 

  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
    
 

 
AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE (1)  

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, DISTRICT FOUR (4) 
MAINTENANCE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MMOA) 

 
 
THIS  AMENDMENT  Number  One  (1)  to  the  Original  Maintenance  Memorandum  of  

Agreement (MMOA), FM# 446173-1-52-01, dated   06/16/2023      , made and entered into this  
_______________  by  and  between  the  STATE  OF  FLORIDA  DEPARTMENT  OF  
TRANSPORTATION  hereinafter  called  the  DEPARTMENT  and  the  CITY  OF  LAKE  WORTH  
BEACH,  a  municipal  corporation  existing  under  the  Laws  of  Florida,  hereinafter  called  the  
AGENCY. 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS,  the  parties  entered  into  the  Maintenance  Memorandum  of  Agreement  

dated,       06/16/2023       for the purpose of requiring the AGENCY to maintain all existing and  
new decorative or non-standard lights; and 
 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY intends to install additional new decorative or non-standard 
lights along a portion of SR A1A/ South Ocean Blvd under FM # 447663-1-52-01, within the 
DEPARTMENT’S right-of-way; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT that the AGENCY 
shall maintain: all decorative and non-standard lights, hereinafter referred as 
“IMPROVEMENTS” within the project limits along SR A1A/ South Ocean Blvd from Mile Post 
(M.P.) 20.348 to M.P. 20.594; and 

 
WHEREAS  the  installation  of  the  IMPROVEMENTS  pursuant  to  this  Amendment  

extends  the  AGENCY’s  maintenance  limits,  as  described  in  Exhibit  A,  of  the  Original  
Agreement dated      06/16/2023      ; and 
 

WHEREAS, the AGENCY by Resolution No.                    dated                      , attached 
hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, desires to enter this MMOA Amendment and 
authorized its officers to do so. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of mutual benefits that flow each to the other, 
the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

 

Amendment.  

1.  Exhibit “A” of the Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement dated   06/16/2023    , shall  
be amended to include the additional areas:  of SR A1A/ South Ocean Blvd from M.P. 

20.348  to  M.P.  20.594,  as  set  forth  in  Exhibit  A  attached  and  incorporated  into  this 

    
2. The DEPARTMENT shall construct the IMPROVEMENTS along A1A/ South Ocean Blvd 

from M.P. 20.348 to M.P. 20.594 as set forth in Exhibit A, attached to this Amendment 
in accordance with the plans attached as Exhibit B.  
 

1



 

  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
    
 

 
3. The AGENCY shall agree to maintain the IMPROVEMENTS in this Amendment in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the Original MMOA.  
 

4. Except as modified by this Amendment, all terms, and conditions of the original MMOA 
and all Amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
 

5. LIST OF EXHIBITS 
 
Exhibit A – Project Location, Description, and Aerial Image 
Exhibit B – Project Plans 

 
 

2



 

  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
    
 

 

IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals the day and 
year first above written. 
 
 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________  Date:  ___________________ 
        Chairperson/Mayor/Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest:  _________________________________ (SEAL) 
            City Clerk  
 
 
 
Legal Approval 
 
 
 
_______________________           ____________ 
Attorney                                           Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

3



  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
 

 

IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals the day and 
year first above written. 
 
 
DEPARTMENT 
 STATE OF FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

                                                                         Sign:  ___________________________ 
            Director of Operations 

Print Name: Paul A. Lampley 

Date:____________________________  
 

Approval as to Form: 

Sign:  ___________________________ 
          Francine T. Steelman 
  Assistant General Counsel 
 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4



  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT LOCATION, DESCRIPTION, AND AERIAL IMAGE 

I. Location of IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
The IMPROVEMENTS associated with this Amendment are within the DEPARTMENT’S 
right-of-way, within limits of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, along State Road 
A1A / South Ocean Blvd from Mile Post (M.P.) 20.348 to M.P. 20.594. 
 

II. Description of Work:   
 
The proposed project consists of the installation of new decorative and non-standard 
lights. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M.P. 20.594 

M.P. 20.348 

5



  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
 

 
 
 
III. Entire limits of IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The entire limits of the IMPROVEMENTS that shall be maintain by the AGENCY are 
within the DEPARTMENT’S right-of-way in limits of the City of Lake Worth, Florida, 
along State Road 5/US-1 Federal Highway from Mile Post (M.P.) 0.773 to 1.619 and 
M.P. 1.695 to M.P. 2.071, and along State Road A1A / South Ocean Blvd from M.P. 
20.348 to M.P. 20.594. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M.P. 1.695 

M.P. 2.071 

M.P. 0.773 

M.P. 1.619 
M.P. 20.594 

M.P. 20.348 

6



  SECTION No.:  93060000 
  S.R. No.:    SR-A1A 
  FM No.:  447663-1-52-01 
  COUNTY:   PALM BEACH 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 
Lighting Plans prepared by Fernando Amado-Mateus P.E., Trace Consultants, Inc., dated r 12, 
2023, as approved by the DEPARTMENT.  
 

Lighting Plans (attached) 
 
 

Sheets included: 
 
PDF Page  Plan    Sheet Description 
Number (#)  Sheet (#) 
 
8   L-1   KEY SHEET 
9   L-2   GENERAL NOTES 
10   L-3   LIGHTING DATA TABLE 
11-12   L-4 THRU L-5  LIGHTING PLAN  
13-15   L-6 THRU L-8  POLE DETAILS 
16   L-9   LOAD CENTER DETAILS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



SHEET DESCRIPTIONSHEET NO.

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3
2
:3

5
:0

0
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

CONTRACT NO.

CONSTRUCTION

NO.

SHEET

YEAR

FISCAL

L-1

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o

n
n

e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k

s
p

a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k

S
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

7
6

6
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\K

E
Y

S
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

VENDOR NO.: F455418595

FERNANDO AMADO MATEUS, P.E.

8900 SW 117 AVENUE, SUITE 105B

CONTRACT NO.: CAH06

MIAMI, FLORIDA 33186

P.E. LICENSE NUMBER 76201

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

PHONE: 786-808-0119

IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 61G15-23.004, F.A.C.

RESPONSIBLE FOR THE FOLLOWING SHEETS

THE ABOVED NAMED PROFESSIONAL IS

ON ANY ELECTRONIC COPIES.

AND THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED 

NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE

ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

SIGNED AND SEALED BY

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY

STATE OF

� � �

No 76201

ESNECIL

S
U

E
TAM-ODAMA ODNA

N
R

E
F

R
E

E

NIGNE LANOIS
SEF

O
R

P

ADIROL
F

                              VANDANA NAGOLE, P.E.          

FDOT PROJECT MANAGER:

FLO
RID

A'S

FT LAUDERDALE

MIAMI

75

75

NAPLES

KEY WEST

BEE LINE
EXPRESSWAY

TU
RN

PIK
E

10

PENSACOLA FORT WALTON
BEACH

PANAMA
CITY

CHIPLEY

TALLAHASSEE
75

10

295

95

JACKSONVILLE

ST AUGUSTINE

GAINESVILLE

OCALA DAYTONA BEACH

DELAND
4

NEW PORT RICHEY

TAMPA

75
4

LAKELAND

MELBOURNE -
COCOA

ORLANDO

BARTOWST PETERSBURG

275

SARASOTA -
BRADENTON

75

95

FT PIERCE

FT MYERS

WEST
BEACH

CITY

LAKE 

PALM

LIGHTING PLANS

STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

https://tinyurl.com/mat4v9cb

BEGIN MP 20.307 - END MP 22.381

NONE

NONE

NONE

25E0000

ENGINEER OF RECORD:

LIGHTING PLANS

INDEX OF LIGHTING PLANS

447663-1-52-01FINANCIAL PROJECT ID 

 COUNTY (93060)PALM BEACH

SR A1ASTATE ROAD NO. 

 FROM SOUTH OF LAKE AVE TO N OF IBIS WAY

PROJECT LOCATION URL:

PROJECT LIMITS:

EXCEPTIONS:

BRIDGE LIMITS:

RAILROAD CROSSING:

L-1 KEY SHEET

L-2 GENERAL NOTES

L-3 LIGHTING DATA TABLE

L-4-L-5 LIGHTING PLAN

L-6-L-7-L-8 POLE DETAILS

L-9 LOAD CENTER DETAILS

LOCATION OF PROJECT

8



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o

n
n

e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k

s
p

a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k

S
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

7
6

6
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\G

N
N

T
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:0

0
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE , SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

GENERAL NOTES
L-2

GENERAL NOTES

MSR_108W_48LED_G2_LE3WS.ies

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

REQUIRED. SINGLE ARM POLE.

CAP, AND WIRED FOR XX VOLT OPERATION. NO PHOTOCELL 

DISTRIBUTION, 7 PIN PHOTOCONTROL RECEPTACLE WITH SHORTING 

LIGHT POLE ORNAMENTAL DESIGNED FOR 10,173 LUMENS, TYPE III 

SYMBOLS

LEGEND

DESCRIPTION

EXIST. LOAD CENTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONDUIT

GREEN INSULATION.

RED INSULATION, ONE WITH WHITE INSULATION, AND ONE GROUND WITH 

WITH THREE RHW-2/XLP CONDUCTORS INSIDE THE CONDUIT: ONE WITH 

2" HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) CONDUIT (DIRECTIONAL BORE) 

PROPOSED PULL BOX AND APRON

EXISTING PULL BOX

EXISTING LIGHT POLE TO REMAIN 

GREEN INSULATION.

INSULATION, ONE WITH WHITE INSULATION, AND ONE GROUND WITH 

THREE RHW-2/XLP CONDUCTORS INSIDE THE CONDUIT: ONE WITH BLACK 

2" HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) CONDUIT (OPEN TRENCH) WITH 

                       FOR 120 V, 3-PIN NEMA PHOTOCONTROL RECEPTACLE, SHORTING CAP & PHOTOCELL) 

                       AUTOBAHN ATB SERIES, MODEL ATB2 ( 264 W, 4000 CCT, R4 DISTRIBUTION,WIRED

       715-5-32      COST INCLUDES FURNISHING AND INSTALLING THE FOLLOWING LUMINAIRES:

       PAY ITEM NOTES:

      LUMINAIRES, AND CABLE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS.

      TAKES PLACE. LIGHTING EQUIPMENT CONSIDERED SALVAGEABLE ARE SALVAGEABLE ALUMINUM POLES, 

2.    DELIVER ALL SALVAGEABLE LIGHTING EQUIPMENT TO EACH MAINTAINING AGENCY WHERE LIGHTING WORK 

       

       (561) 684-4030

       DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS-TRAFFIC

       MOTASEM AL-TURK, P.E., Ph.D.

       CONTACT:

       WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33411

       2300 NORTH JOG ROAD, 3RD FLOOR

   1.3 PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS-TRAFFIC

        

       (561) 838-5440

       DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

       H. PAUL BRAZIL, P.E.

       CONTACT:

       WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33401

       951 OKEECHOBEE RD. SUITE A

   1.2 TOWN OF PALM BEACH PUBLICK WORKS

 

       

       (561) 586-1720

       PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE MANAGER

       MELISSA STURDIVANT

       CONTACT:

       LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460

       1749 3RD AVENUE SOUTH

   1.1 CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH PUBLIC WORKS

       NOTICE IN ADVANCE TO SCHEDULE INSPECTIONS. CONTACT INFORMATION BELOW:

1.     CONTACT THE MAINTAINING AGENCY FOR ALL STREET LIGHTING INSPECTIONS. PROVIDE A TWO (2) WEEK

MPL3P45S 40K-TG3-RFD330680_6F

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

LUMENS, TYPE IV DISTRIBUTION, SINGLE ARM POLE.

LUMINAIRE RETROFIT FOR ORNAMENTAL POLE DESIGNED FOR 21,282 

ATB2_P602_R4_4K_RFD325843.ies

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

PHOTOCELL REQUIRED. SINGLE ARM POLE.

WITH SHORTING CAP, AND WIRED FOR 480 VOLT OPERATION. NO 

LUMENS, TYPE IV DISTRIBUTION, 7 PIN PHOTOCONTROL RECEPTACLE 

LUMINAIRE RETROFIT IN UTILITY POLE DESIGNED FOR 25,839 

ATB2_P604_R4_4K.ies

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

OPERATION. PHOTOCELL REQUIRED. SINGLE ARM POLE.

RECEPTACLE WITH SHORTING CAP, AND WIRED FOR 120 VOLT 

33,907 LUMENS, TYPE IV DISTRIBUTION, 3 PIN NEMA PHOTOCONTROL 

LUMINAIRE RETROFIT FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE DESIGNED FOR 

MSR_108W_48LED_G2_LE3WS.ies

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

PHOTOCELL REQUIRED. SINGLE ARM POLE.

WITH SHORTING CAP, AND WIRED FOR XX VOLT OPERATION. NO 

LUMENS, TYPE III DISTRIBUTION, 7 PIN PHOTOCONTROL RECEPTACLE 

LUMINAIRE RETROFIT FOR ORNAMENTAL DESIGNED FOR 10,173 

MSR_108W_48LED_G2_LE3WS.ies

PHOTOMETRIC DISTRIBUTION CURVE USED FOR DESIGN:

REQUIRED. SINGLE ARM POLE.

CAP, AND WIRED FOR XX VOLT OPERATION. NO PHOTOCELL 

DISTRIBUTION, 7 PIN PHOTOCONTROL RECEPTACLE WITH SHORTING 

LIGHT POLE ORNAMENTAL DESIGNED FOR 21,282 LUMENS, TYPE IV 

RECONSTRUCTION (NO PLAN COVERAGE)

EXISTING PULLBOX REPLACEMENTS DUE TO SIDEWALK

LOCATION
SIDE UNIT

NOTES

DESIGN

REMARKS

CONSTRUCTION

STA. TO STA.

119+19.54 LT EA LIGHTING

121+44.30 RT EA LIGHTING

121+45.41 LT EA LIGHTING

124+54.98 RT EA LIGHTING

124+85.66 LT EA LIGHTING

125+55.34 LT EA LIGHTING

126+90.50 LT EA LIGHTING

128+32.54 LT EA LIGHTING

158+94.41 LT EA LIGHTING

163+89.44 LT EA LIGHTING

167+31.95 LT EA LIGHTING

211+40.57 LT EA LIGHTING

214+26.92 LT EA LIGHTING

586+00.54 LT EA LIGHTING

587+52.98 LT EA LIGHTING

588+56.13 LT EA LIGHTING

589+59.75 LT EA LIGHTING

590+56.67 RT EA LIGHTING

590+62.12 LT EA LIGHTING

9



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o
n
n
e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k
S

e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
7
6
6
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
D

T
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:0

1
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE , SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

LIGHTING DATA TABLE
L-3

EXISTING CIRCUIT CONNECTED TO TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM, TO REMAINTS:

* EXISTING STATIONS, OFFSETS AND MOUNTING HEIGHTS TO REMAIN - PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY.

WORK BY FP&L

WORK BY LAKE WORTH BEACH UTILITY COMPANY

LIGHTING WORK BY UTILITY COMPANY

LIGHTING DESIGN CRITERIA

CONVENTIONAL

EXISTING SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

160 MPH  Wind Speed

10:1 or lessUniformity Ratio Max./Min.

4:1 or lessUniformity Ratio Avg./Min.

1.5 Std/1.0 Min.Vertical Illuminance Ratio (V.F.C)

1.5 Std/1.0 Min.Average Initial Intensity (H.F.C.)

MIDBLOCK CROSSING

160 MPH  Wind Speed

N/AUniformity Ratio Max./Min.

N/AUniformity Ratio Avg./Min.

1.5 StdVertical Illuminance Ratio (V.F.C)

N/AAverage Initial Intensity (H.F.C.)

LIGHTING DATA TABLE

NO.

POLE
CIRCUIT* STATION POLE OFFSET

HEIGHT

MOUNTING
POLE TYPE ARM CONFIGURATION ARM LENGTH WATTAGE LOCATION FOUNDATION PAY ITEM

S
R

 A
1

A
 &

 L
A

K
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

LPLWB-01 B-1  121+45* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' LT* 20* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC.POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 3'(*) 97 BACK OF SWK CYLINDRICAL 715-11-216

LPLWB-02 A-1  121+47* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' RT* 20* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC.POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 3'(*) 97 BACK OF SWK CYLINDRICAL 715-11-216

LPLWB-03 A-1  121+86* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' RT  20 LIGHT POLE COMPLETE, ORNAMENTAL CONC. PENDANT 3' 97 BEHIND SWK SPREAD FOOTER 715-511-320

LPTS-01 TS  122+51* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 52' LT* 40* EXIST. TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE / RETROFIT BRACKET MOUNT 10'(*) 264 EXIST. SIGNAL ARM CYLINDRICAL 715-11-211

LPLWB-04 B-2  122+69* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 128' LT  20 LIGHT POLE COMPLETE, ORNAMENTAL CONC. PENDANT 3' 97 BEHIND SWK CYLINDRICAL 715-511-320

LPLWB-05 B-2  122+73* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 177' LT* 20* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC. POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 3'(*) 97 BEHIND SWK CYLINDRICAL 715-11-216

LPTS-02 TS  123+57* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 63' RT* 40* EXIST. TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE / RETROFIT BRACKET MOUNT 10'(*) 264 EXIST. SIGNAL ARM CYLINDRICAL 715-11-211

LPLWB-06 A-2 123+70* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 154' LT* 20* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC. POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 3'(*) 97 BEHIND OF SWK CYLINDRICAL 715-11-216

LPTS-03 TS  123+78* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 74' LT* 40* EXIST. TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE / RETROFIT BRACKET MOUNT 10'(*) 264 EXIST. SIGNAL ARM CYLINDRICAL 715-11-211

LPTPB-01 EXIST  124+58* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' RT* 40* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC.  POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 6'(*) 173 BACK OF SWK CYLINDRICAL N/A

LPTPB-02 EXIST  124+86* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' LT* 40* EXIST. UTILITY POLE  CONC. POLE/ RETROFIT BRACKET MOUNT 12'(*) 186 BACK OF SWK DIRECT BURIAL N/A

LPTPB-03 EXIST  125+56* / BL SURVEY SR A1A 49' LT* 40* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL  CONC. POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 6'(*) 173 BACK OF SWK CYLINDRICAL N/A

M
B

L
K

&
 P

G
3

S
R

 A
1
A

LPPG3-01 EXIST 185+32* / BL SURVEY A1A 37' LT* 40* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC.  POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 6'(*) 144 BEHIND SWK DIRECT BURIAL N/A

LPPG3-02 EXIST 186+13* / BL SURVEY A1A 35' LT 40 PROP. ORNAMENTAL CONC.  POLE PENDANT 6' 144 BEHIND SWK DIRECT BURIAL N/A

LPPG3-03 EXIST 187+02* / BL SURVEY A1A 35' LT* 40* EXIST. ORNAMENTAL CONC.  POLE / RETROFIT PENDANT 6'(*) 144 BEHIND SWK DIRECT BURIAL N/A

LPPG3-04 EXIST 187+79* / BL SURVEY A1A 35' LT 40 PROP. ORNAMENTAL CONC.  POLE PENDANT 6' 144 BEHIND SWK DIRECT BURIAL N/A

10



W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

S
A

N

W
A
T
E
R

T
E

L

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

T
E

L

T
E

L

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W
W

A
T
E
R

I

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

M
H

W
A
T
E
R

M
H

W
A

TE
R

WATER

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W
B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W

SD

BACK FLOW

E
L

E
C

121 122 123 124 125 126125

630-2-12

50 LF (1 RUN)

 PULL BOX ENCLOSURE)

 BOX LOCATION (REPLACE

 TO EXIST. CKT. AT PULL

CONNECT PROP. LIGHTING

1-#4 AWG (GRD)

2-#4 AWG

630-2-11

60 LF (1 RUN)

1-#4 AWG (GRD)

2-#4 AWG

ARM (TO REMAIN) (TYP.)

EXIST. TRAFFIC MAST 

ENCLOSURE)

LOCATION (REPLACE PULL BOX 

EXIST. CKT. AT PULL BOX 

CONNECT PROP. LIGHTING TO 

(TO REMAIN)

100AMP MCB LOAD CENTER

3-WIRE LIGHTING SERVICE POINT & 

EXISTING 120/240V, SINGLE PHASE, 

 CKT. EXIST.LPTPB-03,POLE NO. 

)49' LT (125+56STA. 

N

10 40

Feet

0

121 122 123 124 125 126125

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-4

 

447663-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o

n
n

e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k

s
p

a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k

S
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

7
6

6
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

5
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

F

MIAMI, FL 33186

8900 SW 117 AVENUE, SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

LICENSE NUMBER 76201 

ERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E. 

LIGHTING PLAN

£ SURVEY SR A1A

R/W LINE

L
A

K
E
 

A
V

E
N

U
E
 
(
E

B
)

LAKE WORTH 

INTRACOASTAL 

CAUSEWAY

POLE NO. LPTPB-02, CKT. EXIST.

)49' LT (124+86STA. 

POLE NO. LPTPB-01, CKT. EXIST

)49' RTSTA. 124+58 (

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

STA. 121+45

BEGIN LIGHTING

STA. 125+56

END LIGHTING

R/W LINE

POLE NO. LPLWB-04, CKT. B-2

)128' LT (122+69STA. 

POLE LPTS-01, CKT. TS

)52' LT (122+51STA. 

POLE LPLWB-01, CKT. B-1

)49' LT (121+45STA. 

POLE NO. LPLWB-05, CKT. B-2

)177' LT (122+73STA. 

FAIRFIELD INN

PARKING LOT

2870 S Ocean 

Blvd, Palm Beach, 

FL 33480

POLE LPLWB-02, CKT. A-1

)49' RT (121+47STA. 

POLE LPLWB-03, CKT. A-1

)49' RT (121+86STA. 

LAKE WORTH BEACH 

PARK & CASINO

10 S Ocean Blvd, Lake 

Worth, FL 33460

PARKING LOT

2882 S Ocean Blvd, 

Palm Beach, FL 33480

POLE LPTS-02, CKT. TS

)63' RT (123+57STA. 

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD (SB)

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD (NB)

POLE LPTS-03, CKT. TS

)74' LT (123+78STA. 

POLE LPLWB-06, CKT. A-2

)154' LT (123+70STA. 

L
A

K
E
 

A
V

E
N

U
E
 
(

W
B
)

£
 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
 
S

R
 
8
0
2

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD AT SR 802/LAKE AVENUE INTERSECTION

11



W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

W
A
T
E
R

B
A
C
K
 
F
L
O

W

M
H

M
H

M
H

184 185 186 187 188 189

N3°45'15"W

185

POLE NO. LPPG3-01, CKT. EXIST.

)37' LT (185+32STA. 

POLE NO. LPPG3-02, CKT. EXIST.

)35' LT (186+13STA. 
, CKT. EXIST.LPPG3-04POLE NO. 

)35' LT (187+79STA. 

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

£ SURVEY SR A1A

REMAIN)

EXIST. POLE (TO 

 REMAIN)

EXIST. POLE (TO

, CKT. EXIST.LPPG3-03POLE NO. 

)35' LT (187+02STA. 

185+32STA. 

BEGIN LIGHTING

187+79STA. 

END LIGHTING

10 40

Feet

0

N

184 185 186 187 188 189

N3°45'15"W

185

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o

n
n

e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k

s
p

a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k

S
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

7
6

6
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

5
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE, SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

LIGHTING PLAN
L-5

RAYMOND FLOYD

GOLF COURSE

2345 S Ocean Blvd

Palm Beach, FL 33480

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD (SB)

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD (NB)

SR A1A/S OCEAN BLVD AT RAYMOND FLOYD GOLF COURSE (PG-3) MIDBLOCK CROSSING

12



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o
n
n
e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k
S

e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
7
6
6
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\C

N
P

L
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

6
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE , SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

POLE DETAILS
L-6

    ORNAMENTAL POLE DETAILS    (1 OF 2)

SPLICE (GELCAP)

SPLIT BOLT

(EXOTHERMIC CONNECTION)

THERMOWELD

CRUSHED STONE FOR DRAINAGE

12" BED OF PEAROCK OR

STRAIN RELIEF FITTINGS

FUSE FOR LINE TO LINE SERVICE

SIDE WITH A 10 AMP SLOW BLOW

BREAKAWAY FUSEHOLDERS ON LOAD

FOR POLE GROUND

1#6 GRD. WIRE IN 1" CONDUIT

SPLICE (GELCAP)

 5/8" DIA. X 20' LONG GROUND ROD

2-2" CONDUITS 
(1 SPARE  CONDUIT)

WALL OF THE PULL BOX

ATTACHED ARRESTOR RO THE 

(FOUNDATION PER INDEX 715-002)

CYLINDRICAL OR SPREAD FOOTER 

(MOUNTING HEIGHT)

20'-0'

2
0
'-

0
' 
P

O
L

E

3'-0" ARM

(SEE SCHEDULE)

SPUN CONCRETE POLE

RECEIVING ARM)

TENON (SIZED TO MATCH 

 40, 2.875' O.D.)

6063-T52 (2" PIPE SCH

ALUMINUM CROSSARM

 SCROLL

 DECORATIVE

FINIAL &

1.5" NPT

POLE DATA TABLE)

SIGNIFY/LUMEC (SEE LIGHT 

ORNAMENTAL LUMINAIRE BY 

POLE ID TAG

BID ITEM 715-511-320

FASTEN WITH RIVETS

(NO SCREWS)

LOAD CENTER

DESIGNATION

CIRCUIT NUMBER

POLE NUMBER
3

2

B

-

-

0

2"

POLE IDENTIFICATION

TAG DETAIL

8
"

ORNAMENTAL POLE (N.T.S.)

ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST VERSION OF AASHTO LRFDLTS AS MODIFIED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE FDOT STRUCTURES MANUAL VOLUME 3. 

BY A FLORIDA-LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER WHICH DEMONSTRATE THAT THE DECORATIVE LIGHT FIXTURES HAVE BEEN DESIGNED IN 

DESIGN (LUMINAIRE-TO-ARM, ARM-TO-UPRIGHT, AND UPRIGHT-TO-FOUNDATION CONNECTIONS). PROVIDE PLANS AND CALCULATIONS SIGNED AND SEALED 

PROVIDE SIGNED AND SEALED STRUCTURAL PLANS AND CALCULATIONS FOR THE ENTIRE DECORATIVE LIGHTING SYSTEM, INCLUDING CONNECTIONS 

SHOP DRAWINGS

DETAIL 'A' - PULL BOX WIRING

ORNAMENTAL POLE SCHEDULE

ELEMENT MANUFACTURER REFERENCE NO. DIMENSIONS COLOR

ALUMINUM CROSS-ARM - ROADWAY LIGHTING ARTEC MANUFACTURING LAKE WORTH ARM (VX-WPB-ASSE-GN4TX) 3'x3' ARM GN4TX GREEN

SPUN CONCRETE POLE (FLUTED) AMERON VEF06.1 SPL W/TENON ASSEMBLY 20'-0' HT PINE GREEN

13



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o
n
n
e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k
S

e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
7
6
6
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\C

N
P

L
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

6
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186, FL MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE, SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

POLE DETAILS
L-7

4

2

5

2

(MOUNTING HEIGHT)

40'-0'

3

1

3
5

'-
0

"

(O
R

N
A

M
E

N
T

A
L

 P
O

L
E

)

SOW CABLE

BREAKAWAY FUSEHOLDER
THE GROUND MUST BE

AFFIXED WITH SOLID COPPER
SLUGS TO BE SAME SIZE AS

10 AMP FUSE

INTERNAL GROUND LUG

#6 STRANDED COPPER
GROUND WIRE (BARE)

INSIDE BASE ON 

OPPOSITE DOOR WALL

PVC COND.

CABLE IN 2" 

SOW POWER 

6"

*

P.V.C. COUPLER

2-2" CONDUITS 

EXIST. GRADE

ORNAMENTAL POLE INSTALLATION DETAIL

POLES BY FPL

FASTEN WITH RIVETS

(NO SCREWS)

LOAD CENTER

DESIGNATION

CIRCUIT NUMBER

POLE NUMBER
3

2

B

-

-

0

2"

POLE IDENTIFICATION

TAG DETAIL

8
"

7

2

4

5 TENON TO FIT CROSS-ARM

ALUMINUM FINNIALS

6

7

3

1 ORNAMENTAL TEARDROP FIXTURE

NOT USED

KEY LEGEND

SCH 80 ALUMINUM PIPE CROSS-ARM

FACING TRAFFIC

POLE ID TAG AT 48" ABOVE SIDEWALK LEVEL, 

STANDARD PULL BOX

CONCRETE APRON PER STD. INDEX 715-001

(1 SPARE  CONDUIT)

POWDER COAT FINISH

S.S.) AND LUMINAIRE SHALL HAVE BLACK 

POLE, ACCESSORIES, HARDWARE (EXCEPT NOTE:

SPUN CONCRETE POLE BLACK FINISH

6

DIRECT BURIAL

    ORNAMENTAL POLE DETAILS    (2 OF 2)

14



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o
n
n
e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k
S

e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
7
6
6
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\S

P
D

T
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

9
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE , SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

POLE DETAILS
L-8

BACK OF SWK

R/W LINE &

BASE

SETBACK

4' MIN.

EXIST. GUARDRAIL

SODDED AREA)

CONC. APRON (INSTALL ON 
BASE

R/W LINE

 OF SWK

EXIST. BACK

EXIST. MISC. ASPHALT

DETAIL 'A' - POLE LP-LWB03

   

FOR LIGHT POLE
SPREADFOOTER

M
A

T
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
 S

W
K

(7' WIDE)(5' WIDE) (5' WIDE)

RESTORATION
SWK CONCRETE 

RESTORATION
SWK CONCRETE 

 
S

W
K

 C
L

E
A

R
A

N
C

E

 PULLBOX

PROPOSED

 LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED

 PLAN (TYP)

CONDUIT(S) PER

EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

M
A

T
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
 S

W
K

DETAIL 'B' - POLE LP-LWB04

6
' 
S

W
K

4
8
''
 M

IN

6
' 
S

W
K

LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED 

 GUTTER

EXISTING CURB &

 PLAN (TYP)

CONDUIT(S) PER PULLBOX

PROPOSED 

 (5' WIDE)

RESTORATION
SWK CONCRETE 

DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

LIGHT POLE AND SITE RESTORATION DETAILS

15



DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

447663-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR A1A

3
/1

4
/2

0
2

3

Z
:\

F
D

O
T

C
o
n
n
e
c
t1

0
.1

0
\W

o
r
k
s
p
a
c
e
s
\F

D
O

T
\W

o
r
k
S

e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
7
6
6
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\S

R
P

T
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

2
:3

5
:2

9
 P

M
s
g

o
n

z
a
le

z

33186 FL, MIAMI

8900 SW 117 AVENUE , SUITE 105B

TRACE CONSULTANTS, INC.

76201LICENSE NUMBER: 

FERNANDO AMADO-MATEUS, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

LOAD CENTER DETAILS
L-9

SERVICE POINT DATA TABLE

SERVICE
SERVICE COND.

ENCLOSURE SIZE &
ARTERIAL ROADWAY FROM TO LOCATION CIRCUIT CONDUCTORS

SIZE

BREAKER

LOAD ©

CONNECTED

EXISTING

 LOAD (C)

CONNECTED 

PROPOSED

AGENCY

MAINTAINING

(TO REMAIN)

SERVICE POINT

EXIST. CITY OF LAKE WORTH

AMP CONTACTORS SIZE.

SERVICE FEEDER, 2-60

SINGLE PHASE, 3 WIRE

100 A MCB, 120/240V,

SR-A1A 86050 Southbound of SR 802 Northbound of SR 802

L SR A1A.

FT LT OF STA. 124+85.00 C/

NORTHWEST  CORNER AT 50

SR A1A / N OCEAN BLVD

A-I 3-#4 2-30 AMPS 14.8 8.5

WORTH BEACH

CITY OF LAKE
A-II 3-#4 2-30 AMPS 12.5 7.3

B-I 3-#4 2-30 AMPS 11.4 6.7

B-II 3-#4 2-30 AMPS 12.5 7.7

NOTE: NO NET INCREASE IN DEMAND LOAD FOR ANY EXISTING CIRCUIT. EXISTING CIRCUITS, CONDUCTORS, BREAKERS AND SERVICE FEEDERS

(PER STATE PRJ. FM #228858-1-52-01/FY 2004 AS-BUILTS)

100A MCB IN NEMA 3R ENCLOSURE, 120/240 VOLTS, 1Φ, 3W SERVICE
EXISTING "CITY OF LAKE WORTH SERVICE POINT"

NO. CIRCUIT NO. SERVING VA AMPS
BREAKER
CIRCUIT

WIRE/CONDUIT

1 A-I STREET LIGHTING 4,080 8.5 30A #4

2 A-II STREET LIGHTING 3,504 7.3 30A #4

3 B-I STREET LIGHTING 3,216 6.7 30A #4

4 B-II STREET LIGHTING 3,696 7.7 30A #4

(EXISTING SERVICE CONDUCTORS TO REMAIN)

CONTINUOUS LOAD = 14,496 VA

25% CONT. LOAD = 3,624 VA

TOTAL = 18,120 VA

DEMAND LOAD = 38 A

16



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, DISTRICT FOUR (4) 

MAINTENANCE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MMOA) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this date _________________________, by 
and between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, a component 
agency of the State of Florida, hereinafter called the DEPARTMENT, and CITY OF LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, a municipal corporation existing under the Laws of Florida, hereinafter called 
the AGENCY. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has jurisdiction over State Road (S.R.) 5 beginning 
from Mile Post (M.P.) 0.773 to 1.619 and at M.P. 1.695 to M.P. 2.071, and 
 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT seeks to install and have maintained by the AGENCY 
certain highway IMPROVEMENTS; and 
 

WHEREAS, as part of the continual updating of the State of Florida Highway System, the 
DEPARTMENT, for the purpose of safety, protection of the investment and other reasons, has 
constructed and does maintain SR 5 beginning from M.P. 0.773 to M.P. 2.071 (within the limits 
of the AGENCY); and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT that the AGENCY shall 
maintain the specific elements constructed under Project Number 446173-1-52-01 to include 
decorative lighting; hereinafter called IMPROVEMENTS installed along SR 5 M.P. 0.773 to M.P. 
2.071; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project involves the scope of work as described within Exhibit A 
(Project Location, Description and Aerial) and Exhibit B (Construction Plans), which will 
benefit the AGENCY; and 
 

WHEREAS the parties hereto mutually recognize the need for entering into an 
AGREEMENT designation and setting forth the responsibilities of each party; and 
 
WHEREAS the AGENCY by Resolution Number ______________ entered this date 
________________, attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof, desires to enter 
into this AGREEMENT and authorizes its officers to do so; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits to flow each to the 
other, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. RECITALS 

 
The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are deemed incorporated herein. 

 
 
2. INSTALLATION OF FACILITIES 

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036

06/09/2023

18-2023

06/16/2023 | 8:55 AM EDT



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 

A. The DEPARTMENT has issued Project Number 446173-1-52-01 to construct the 
IMPROVEMENTS as detailed in Exhibit A and Exhibit B that will benefit the AGENCY. 

 
B. The IMPROVEMENTS shall comply with the laws and regulations relating to the 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as currently enacted or as may be amended from 
time to time ("ADA"). If there are any major changes to the plan(s), the DEPARTMENT 
shall provide the modified plan(s) to the AGENCY and the AGENCY shall provide their 
approval or disapproval to the DEPARTMENT within ten (10) business days. The 
DEPARTMENT may elect to withdraw the IMPROVEMENTS if changes are not approved 
within the given time frame. 
 

C. The AGENCY shall coordinate with FWC and FDEP to meet the specific lighting 
requirements for sea turtle nesting beaches as needed.  

D.  
 

E. The AGENCY shall be invited to assist the DEPARTMENT in final inspection before 
acceptance of the job by the DEPARTMENT. 

 
The AGENCY must maintain the IMPROVEMENTS associated within the limits of the project. 
 
3. MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES 

 

A. The AGENCY agrees to maintain the IMPROVEMENTS to be installed under Project 
Number 446173-1-52-01 within the limits of construction. Maintenance by the AGENCY 
will include but not limited to inspection, repair, restoration, replacement, coating and 
general maintenance of all decorative or non-standard features within the limits of 
construction. This includes Project Number 446173-1-52-01   for decorative light poles, 

installed along SR 5, from M.P.  0.773 to M.P. 2.071 
 

This maintenance provision will apply to all existing decorative or non-standard lights 
already installed within the limits of the AGENCY. 

 
 
1) The AGENCY agrees to maintain, at its sole cost and expense, the 
IMPROVEMENTS set forth in Exhibit A in compliance with any and all applicable laws 
which shall include, but not be limited to, laws and regulations relating to the Americans 
with Disabilities Act ("ADA") of 1990, as currently enacted or as may be amended from 
time to time. 

 
2) The IMPROVEMENTS shall be kept clean and free from trash and debris. The 
IMPROVEMENTS shall be kept free of graffiti. The IMPROVEMENTS shall be free of 
pests such as stinging insects, rodents, and vermin, including removal of nests as 
needed. 

 

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
3) As part of the maintenance responsibility, the AGENCY shall keep in good repair 
and replace, defective or worn-out parts of the IMPROVEMENTS. The AGENCY's 
responsibility to keep the IMPROVEMENTS in good repair shall include all necessary 
inspection, maintenance, repair and replacement of any type or nature, including, but not 
limited to, maintenance, repair, coating replacement, and replacement due to normal 
wear and tear, named storm event, acts of God, vandalism, and accidents. The AGENCY 
shall take all necessary steps to maintain the IMPROVEMENTS in a manner to protect 
against injury to any person or property. 

 
4) The AGENCY shall perform all activities necessary to keep the IMPROVEMENTS 
fully operating, properly functioning, with a minimum of 90% of the lights burning for any 
lighting type or roadway system at all times in accordance with the original design thereof, 
whether necessitated by normal wear and tear, accidental or intentional damage, or acts 
of nature. Said maintenance shall include, but shall not be limited to, providing electrical 
power, and paying all charges associated therewith, routine inspection and testing, 
preventative maintenance, emergency maintenance, replacement of any component 
parts of the IMPROVEMENTS (including the poles and all other component parts 
installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS), and locating (both vertically and horizontally) 
the IMPROVEMENTS, as may be necessary. 

 
5) The above-named functions to be performed by the AGENCY may be subject to 
periodic inspections by the DEPARTMENT at the discretion of the DEPARTMENT. Such 
inspection findings will be shared with the AGENCY and shall be the basis of all decisions 
regarding, reworking relating to the maintenance obligation I function or AGREEMENT 
termination. 

 
6) The AGENCY shall be solely responsible for any damages to surrounding 
property, real estate, vehicles, pedestrians, or other assets occurring as a result of 
maintenance and operation of the IMPROVEMENTS and shall repair such damage to 
the satisfaction of the DEPARTMENT at no expense to the DEPARTMENT, as per the 
requirements in Exhibit C (Maintenance Plan Requirements). 
 

7) The AGENCY shall be responsible to maintain the light pole structures, 
attachments and electrical components. The AGENCY shall replace the structure if 
destroyed in an accident by third parties.  The DEPARTMENT expressly assigns its 
rights, interests and privileges pertaining to said IMPROVEMENTS’ damage to the 
AGENCY, so AGENCY can pursue all claims and causes of actions against the third 
parties responsible for the damage. The DEPARTMENT will assist the AGENCY as 
necessary and will confirm AGENCY’S authorization to pursue recovery. The AGENCY 
will be responsible for all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in its recovery activities. 

The AGENCY shall not file suit in the name of the DEPARTMENT. 

 
B. After the DEPARTMENT’s installation of the IMPROVEMENTS, the AGENCY shall be 

responsible for maintaining the IMPROVEMENTS consistent with all ADA Laws existing 
and as amended and shall indemnify the DEPARTMENT for any and all costs or expenses 
incurred by the DEPARTMENT for the AGENCY’s failure to maintain the 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
IMPROVEMENTS in compliance with all ADA Laws existing and as amended. Costs and 
expenses shall include the costs to maintain the IMPROVEMENTS in compliance with all 
ADA Laws existing and as amended, attorney’s fees and costs and any judgments. The 
foregoing indemnification shall not be construed as an indemnification for the 
DEPARTMENT’s failure to install the IMPROVEMENTS in compliance with all ADA Laws 
existing at the time of installation. 
 
1) Adjacent sidewalk areas shall be accessible at all times during the AGENCY’s 

maintenance of the IMPROVEMENTS. If sidewalk closures are needed, alternate 
routes shall be clearly identified, and missing sidewalk shall be restored either with 
permanent or temporary materials at the end of each workday. 

 
  2)   Nothing in this AGREEMENT should be interpreted or construed as a waiver of the 
AGENCY’s or DEPARTMENT’s rights to sovereign immunity or as an agreement to be 
sued by a third party. Further, there are no third-party beneficiaries to this AGREEMENT. 

 
C. All IMPROVEMENTS shall at all times have a notification sign posted with the name and 

phone number of the DEPARTMENT within the AGENCY responsible for maintenance of 
the IMPROVEMENTS so that members of the public may contact AGENCY regarding 
problems with the IMPROVEMENTS. The AGENCY shall promptly respond and correct 
all complaints regarding maintenance. The IMPROVEMENTS to be constructed with this 
project shall not contain advertising. Nor shall advertising be placed upon them by any 
party in the future. 
 

D. It  is understood  and agreed by the parties that upon "final acceptance" (as that term is 
described in the Standard Specifications for Roadway and Bridge Construction, as 
amended by contract documents section 5-11) by the DEPARTMENT of the Project and 
Notice thereof to the AGENCY, the AGENCY shall be responsible for maintenance of the 
Project in accordance with the following Federally and State accepted standards  (current 
editions at the time of execution of this AGREEMENT and any amendments hereafter) 
and all costs related thereto: (a) FDOT Design Manual (FDM), (b) Florida Green Book, (c) 
Standard Specifications for Roadway and Bridge Construction, (d) FDOT Standard Plans 
for Roadway Construction, (e) Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and 
(f) all other applicable local, state, or federal laws, rules, resolutions, or ordinances, and 
FDOT procedures. In the event of a conflict between documents, standards, and 
procedures the more stringent shall apply. 
 

E. Any work impacting traffic flow along SR 5 must be coordinated with the DEPARTMENT. 
Lane closures must be submitted for approval in accordance with DEPARTMENT 
procedures and policies and will meet the goals established in the DEPARTMENT's 
Open Roads Policy. 

 
4. NOTICE OF MAINTENANCE DEFICIENCIES 

 
A. If, at any time while the terms of this AGREEMENT are in effect, it shall come to the 

attention of the DEPARTMENT that the AGENCY's responsibility as established herein 

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
or a part thereof is not being properly accomplished pursuant to the terms of this 
AGREEMENT, the DEPARTMENT may issue a  written notice, that a deficiency or 
deficiencies exist(s), by sending a certified letter to the AGENCY, in care of the CITY OF 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, CITY MAYOR, to place the AGENCY on notice regarding its 
maintenance deficiencies. Thereafter, the AGENCY shall have a period of sixty (60) days 
within which to correct the citied deficiency or deficiencies. It said deficiencies are not 
corrected within the time period, the DEPARTMENT may, at its option, proceed under 
one or more or a combination of the following items: 

 
1) The DEPARTMENT may repair any item or a number of items.  Corrective actions 

will be performed with the DEPARTMENT and/or its independent contractor's 
materials, equipment, and personnel.  The actual cost for such work will be charged 
to the AGENCY. 

 
2) The DEPARTMENT may remove or replace any item or number of items with the 

standard DEPARTMENT item. Corrective actions will be performed with the 
DEPARTMENT and/or its independent contractor's materials, equipment, and 
personnel. The actual cost for such work will be charged to the AGENCY. 

 
3) If there is no standard equivalent item or if in the DEPARTMENT's discretion the item 

is not necessary for the operations of the roadway, the DEPARTMENT may remove 
the item in its entirety and restore the area to a condition acceptable to the 
DEPARTMENT. Corrective actions will be performed with the DEPARTMENT and/or 
its independent contractor's materials, equipment, and personnel. The actual cost for 
such work will be charged to the AGENCY. 

 
4) At the discretion of the DEPARTMENT, terminate the AGREEMENT in accordance 

with Paragraph 7 of this AGREEMENT and remove, by the DEPARTMENT or its 
Contractor's personnel, all the IMPROVEMENTS installed under this AGREEMENT 
and charge the AGENCY the reasonable cost of such removal. 

 
5. FUTURE DEPARTMENT IMPROVEMENTS 
 

It is understood between the parties hereto that the IMPROVEMENTS covered by this 
AGREEMENT may be removed, relocated, or adjusted at any time in the future as 
determined to be necessary by the DEPARTMENT in order that the adjacent state road be 
widened, altered, or otherwise changed to meet with future criteria or planning of the 
DEPARTMENT. 

 
6. FUTURE AGENCY IMPROVEMENTS 
 

The AGENCY may construct additional IMPROVEMENTS within the limits of the rights of 
ways identified as a result of this document subject to the following conditions: 

 
1) Plans for any new IMPROVEMENTS shall be subject to approval by the 

DEPARTMENT. The AGENCY shall not change or deviate from said plans without 
written approval by the DEPARTMENT. 

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 

2) The AGENCY shall procure a permit and/ or Construction AGREEMENT from the 
DEPARTMENT, as appropriate. 

 
3) All IMPROVEMENTS shall be developed and implemented in accordance with 

appropriate state safety and roadway design standards. 
 

4) The AGENCY agrees to comply with the requirements of this AGREEMENT 
regarding any additional IMPROVEMENTS installed at no cost to the 
DEPARTMENT. 

 
7. AGREEMENT TERMINATION 
 

This AGREEMENT may be terminated under anyone (1) of the following conditions: 
 

1) By the DEPARTMENT, if the AGENCY fails to perform its duties under this 
AGREEMENT, following ten (10) days written notice. The AGENCY shall reimburse 
the DEPARTMENT for any expenditures for the installation of said IMPROVEMENTS 
and the cost to remove and or replace said improvement with the standard 
improvement or remove in its entirety. 

 
2) By the DEPARTMENT, for refusal by the AGENCY to allow public access to all 

documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes, and made or received by the AGENCY in conjunction with this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
3) By the DEPARTMENT with a six (6) month written notice. 

 
8. AGREEMENT TERM 
 

The term of this AGREEMENT commences upon execution by all parties. The term of this 
AGREEMENT shall remain in effect for as long as the IMPROVEMENTS shall exist. 

 
9. LIABILITY AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. With respect to any of the AGENCY'S agents, consultants, sub-consultants, contractors, 
and/or sub-contractors, such party in any contract for the IMPROVEMENTS shall agree 
to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the DEPARTMENT from all claims, 
demands, liabilities, and suits of any nature arising out of, because of or due to any 
intentional and/or negligent act or occurrence, omission or commission of such agents, 
consultants, sub consultants, contractors and/or subcontractors. The AGENCY shall 
provide to the DEPARTMENT written evidence of the foregoing upon the request of the 
DEPARTMENT. It is specifically understood and agreed that this indemnification clause 
does not cover or indemnify the DEPARTMENT for its own negligence. 

 
B. In the event that AGENCY contracts with a third party to provide the services set forth 

herein, any contract with such third party shall include the following provisions: 

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 

1) AGENCY'S contractor shall at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT keep 
and maintain in full force and effect, at contractor's sole cost and expense, 
Comprehensive General Liability with minimum limits of $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage 
Liability and Worker's Compensation insurance with minimum limits of $500,000.00 
per Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive that the latest 
edition of the Comprehensive General Liability and Worker's Compensation policy 
without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office and shall 
name the DEPARTMENT as an additional insured. 
 

2) AGENCY'S contractor shall furnish AGENCY with Certificates of Insurance of 
Endorsements evidencing the insurance coverages specified herein prior to the 
beginning performance of work under this AGREEMENT. 

 
3) Coverage is not to cease and is to remain in full force and effect (subject to 

cancellation notice) until all performance required of AGENCY'S contractor is 
completed. All policies must be endorsed to provide the DEPARTMENT with at 
least thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation and or/or restriction. If any of the 
insurance coverages will expire prior to the completion of work, copies of renewal 
policies shall be furnished at least (30) days prior to the date of expiration. 

 
10. E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS 
 

The AGENCY shall: 
1) Utilize the U.S. DEPARTMENT of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the 

employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the AGENCY for the work 
performed under this AGREEMENT; and 

 
2) Expressly require any contractors performing work or providing services pursuant to 

the state contract to likewise utilize the U.S.  DEPARTMENT of Homeland Security's 
E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the 
subcontractor during the contract term. 

 
11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This writing embodies the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties 
hereto and there are no other Agreements and understanding, oral or written, with 
reference to the subject matter hereof that are not merged herein and superseded hereby 
except the Local Funded Agreement(s) and State Highway Lighting Maintenance and 
Compensation Agreement(s) BD648 signed between the parties, as amended, as to all 
other IMPROVEMENTS not specifically mentioned in this Agreement. The streetlights 
installed under this project will be compensated as streetlights under the State Highway 
Lighting Maintenance and Compensation Agreement. If the DEPARTMENT and 
AGENCY fail to agree on the annual lump sum amount to be paid under the State 
Highway Lighting Maintenance and Compensation Agreement, this Agreement shall 

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
supersede that Agreement and the AGENCY agrees to maintain the lights solely under 
this Agreement. 

 
 
12. EXPENDITURE OF MONEY 

 
The DEPARTMENT, during any fiscal year, shall not expend money, incur any liability, or 
enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of 
the amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year. Any contract, 
verbal or written, made in violation of this subsection is null and void, and no money may be 
paid on such contract. The DEPARTMENT shall require a statement from the Comptroller of 
the DEPARTMENT that funds are available prior to entering into any such contract or other 
binding commitment of funds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the making of contracts 
for periods exceeding one (1) year, but any contract so made shall be executory only for the 
value of the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding fiscal years; and 
this paragraph shall be incorporated verbatim in all contracts of the DEPARTMENT which 
are for an amount in excess of TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,000.00) and 
which have a term for a period of more than one year. 

 
 

13. DISPUTES 
 

The DEPARTMENT'S District Secretary shall decide all questions, difficulties, and disputes 
of any nature whatsoever that may arise under or by reason of this AGREEMENT, the 
prosecution or fulfillment of the service hereunder and the character, quality, amount and 
value thereof; and his decision upon all claims, questions and disputes shall be final and 
conclusive upon the parties hereto. 
 

14. ASSIGNMENT 
 

This AGREEMENT may not be assigned or transferred by the AGENCY in whole or part 
without the consent of the DEPARTMENT. 

 
15. LAWS GOVERNING 
 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida. In the event of a conflict between any portion of the contract and Florida law, 
the laws of Florida shall prevail. Venue with respect to judicial proceedings arising out of this 
AGREEMENT shall be in Broward County, Florida. 

 
16. NOTICES 
 

All notices given or required under this AGREEMENT shall be in writing and either personally 
delivered with receipt acknowledgement or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 
All notices shall be sent to the following addresses. 

 
If to the DEPARTMENT: 

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 

State of Florida Department of Transportation 
Attention: District Maintenance Engineer 
3400 West Commercial Blvd 
Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309-3421If to the  
 
AGENCY: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach FL, 33460  
Attention: City Mayor 
 

17. LIST OF EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A: Project Location, Description and Aerial 
Exhibit B: Lighting Plans 
Exhibit C: Maintenance Plan Requirements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals the day and 
year first above written. 

DEPARTMENT: 

 STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

                                                                         Sign:  ___________________________ 
            Director of Operations 

Print Name: Paul A. Lampley 

Date: ____________________________  
 

 

Approval as to Form: 

Sign:  ___________________________ 
          Assistant District General Counsel 

Print Name: _______________________  

 
Date: ____________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036

Francine Steelman

06/15/2023 | 4:49 PM EDT

06/16/2023 | 8:55 AM EDT



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROJECT LOCATION, DESCRIPTION AND AERIAL 
 

I. Location: 
 
The IMPROVEMENTS associated with this AGREEMENT are located in the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, in Palm Beach, Florida along State Road 5, section 93020000, beginning M.P.  0.773 to 
M.P. 2.071. 

II. Description of Work: 
 
Project Number 446173-1-52-01 to include decorative light. 
It will be the responsibility of the AGENCY to maintain the IMPROVEMENTS described in this 
AGREEMENT. 
 

III. Aerial  
 

  
 
                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M.P. 0.773 

M.P. 2.071 

12

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
LIGHTING PLANS 

 
Lighting Plans prepared by Juan S. Calderon, P.E., dated January 1st, 2023, as approved by the 
DEPARTMENT. 
 

LIGHTING PLANS (attached) 
 
Sheets Included: 
 
  
PDF Page Number (#) Plan Sheet (#)  Sheet(s) Description 
 
14    L-1   KEY SHEET 
15    L-2   LIGHTING DATA TABLE AND LEGEND 
16-20     L-3 thru L-7   LIGHTING PLAN 
21     L-8    SPECIAL DETAILS 
22     L-9   SERVICE POINT DETAILS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

13

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



LOCATION OF PROJECT

F
LO

R
ID

A
'S

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

8
:1

8
:3

1
 A

M

FT LAUDERDALE

MIAMI

75

75

NAPLES

KEY WEST

SHEET DESCRIPTIONSHEET NO.

D
e
s
ig

n
7

FINANCIAL PROJECT ID 446173-1-52-01

INDEX OF LIGHTING PLANS

FROM SOUTH OF 10TH AVE SOUTH TO 6TH AVE NORTH 

BEE LINE
EXPRESSWAY

T
U

R
N
P
IK

E

10

PENSACOLA FORT WALTON

BEACH

PANAMA
CITY

CHIPLEY

TALLAHASSEE

75

10

295

95

JACKSONVILLE

ST AUGUSTINE

GAINESVILLE

OCALA DAYTONA BEACH

DELAND
4

NEW PORT RICHEY

TAMPA

75
4

LAKELAND

MELBOURNE -
COCOA

ORLANDO

BARTOWST PETERSBURG

275

SARASOTA -

BRADENTON

75

95

FT PIERCE

FT MYERS

WEST PALM

BEACH

STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

CONTRACT PLANS

CONTRACT NO.

CONSTRUCTION

 T0000

NO.

SHEET

YEAR

FISCAL

L-124

CITY

LAKE 

ENGINEER OF RECORD:

LIGHTING PLANS

Z
:\

W
o

r
k

s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

6
1

7
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\K

E
Y

S
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

 PALM BEACH COUNTY (93020000)PALM BEACH

SR 5STATE ROAD NO.5 (N FEDERAL HWY) 

https://tinyurl.com/mvayud93

790 NW 107 AVENUE, SUITE 200          

MIAMI, FL 33172                       

CONTRACT NO.: CA739

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E., PTOE. NO.: 58569

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP, INC.

VENDOR NO.: 27-4564005

(786) 456-7700

LESLIE WETHERELL, P.E.        

FDOT PROJECT MANAGER:

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5
-
2
3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

LIGHTING PLANS

STATE OF

� � �

No 58569

R
E

E
NI

GNE LANOIS
SE

F
O

R
P

ESNECIL

ADIROL
F

N

OREDLAC .S NA

UJ

L-9              SERVICE POINT DETAILS

L-8              SPECIAL DETAILS

L-3 - L-7        LIGHTING PLANS

L-2              LIGHTING DATA TABLE AND LEGEND

L-1              KEY SHEET

THIS ITEM HAS BEEN DIGITALLY 
SIGNED AND SEALED BY:

ON THE DATE ADJACENT TO THE SEAL

PRINTED COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE
NOT CONSIDERED SIGNED AND SEALED.
AND THE SIGNATURE MUST BE VERIFIED
ON THE ELECTRONIC COPIES.

14

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-2
AND LEGEND

LIGHTING DATA TABLE         

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o

r
k

s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4

6
1

7
3

1
5

2
0

1
\L

ig
h

ti
n

g
\P

L
D

T
L

T
0

1
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:3

2
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

AVERAGE INITIAL INTENSITY (H.F.C.)

1.0 MIN.

1.5 (STD.)

EXISTING LIGHTING POLE AND LUMINAIRE (PENDANT) TO REMAIN.

DESCRIPTIONSYMBOLS

LEGEND

AND RETROFIT DESIGN CRITERIA

SIGNALIZED - UNSIGNALIZED AND 

4:1 Or Less                            AVG./MIN.

ILLUMINATION UNIFORMITY RATIOS- 

MAX./MIN. 10:1 Or Less

 

 

 

 

 

 

AS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH. 

ALSO, USE AMERON DECORATIVE STREET LIGHTING POLE (VEF06.ISPL), 

DESIGNED FOR 8299 INITIAL LUMENS. 240V, 7-PIN RECEPTACLE FOR PHOTOELECTRIC CELL. 

MPTR-80W48LED3K-G3-LE4S-UNV-DMG-MA2-PH9-RCD7-GN4TX, MAXIMUM CANDELA= 4466.39 AT 45 H 67V,

DISTRIBUTION. USE SESCO LIGHTING METROSCAPE LED POST-TOP LUMINAIRE FIXTURE 

PROPOSED 80 WATT LIGHTING POST TOP MOUNTED LED LUMINAIRE WITH TYPE IV SHORT IES 

APPROACH MOVEMENT (V.F.C)

IN CROSSWALK FOR THRU

AVERAGE INITIAL INTENSITY 1.5 (STD.)

1.0 (MIN.)

NOTES:

   AND INSTALLING THE LIGHTING POLES UNDER THE POWER/UTILITY LINES.

3. THE CONTRACTOR TO UTILIZE EQUIPTMENT CAPABLE OF CONSTRUCTING THE AUGER 

2. THE MAINTAINING AGENCY IS LAKE WORTH BEACH ELECTRIC UTILITIES.

1. REFER TO ROADWAY COMPONENT SET FOR GENERAL NOTES.

WIND SPEED: 170 MPH

EXISTING LIGHTING POLE AND LUMINAIRE (POST TOP MOUNT) TO REMAIN.

AS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH. 

DESIGNED FOR 8299 INITIAL LUMENS. 240V, 7-PIN RECEPTACLE FOR PHOTOELECTRIC CELL.

MPTR-80W48LED3K-G3-LE2S-UNV-DMG-MA2-PH9-RCD7-GN4TX, MAXIMUM CANDELA= 5352.09 AT 67.5 H 66V, 

SHORT IES DISTRIBUTION. USE SESCO LIGHTING METROSCAPE LED POST TOP LUMINAIRE FIXTURE 

EXISTING POST TOP MOUNTED TO BE RETROFITTED WITH 80W LED LUMINAIRE WITH TYPE IV 

7-PIN RECEPTACLE FOR PHOTOELECTRIC CELL. AS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH. 

MAXIMUM CANDELA= 4389.19 AT 45 H 70V, DESIGNED FOR 8152 INITIAL LUMENS. 240V, 

FIXTURE MSR-80W48LED3K-G3-LE4S-UNV-DMG-MA2-PH9-RCD7-GN4TX, 

TYPE IV SHORT IES DISTRIBUTION. USE SESCO LIGHTING METROSCAPE LED PENDANT LUMINAIRE 

EXISTING PENDANT MOUNTED TO BE RETROFITTED WITH 80W LED LUMINAIRE (PENDANT) WITH 

AS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH. 

DESIGNED FOR 8299 INITIAL LUMENS. 240V, 7-PIN RECEPTACLE FOR PHOTOELECTRIC CELL.

MPTR-80W48LED3K-G3-LE4S-UNV-DMG-MA2-PH9-RCD7-GN4TX, MAXIMUM CANDELA= 4466.39 AT 45 H 67V,

SHORT IES DISTRIBUTION. USE SESCO LIGHTING METROSCAPE LED POST-TOP LUMINAIRE FIXTURE 

EXISTING POST TOP MOUNTED TO BE RETROFITTED WITH 80W LED LUMINAIRE WITH TYPE IV 

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

EXISTING PULL BOX.

EXISTING SERVICE POINT.

GROUNDING CONDUCTOR WITH RHW-2 GREEN INSULATION INSIDE OF CONDUIT WITH OTHER CONDUCTORS.

CONDUIT TO BE RHW-2/RHH/XLP ONE BLACK INSULATION AND ONE WHITE INSULATION. RUN 1#6 

2" HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) CONDUIT DIRECTIONAL BORE. PROPOSED CONDUCTORS INSIDE 

PROPOSED LIGHTING PULL BOX.

LIGHTING DATA TABLE

NO.

POLE
CIRCUIT STATION OFFSET SIDE

OR ARM

DIST.
WATTAGE

LUMINAIRE

HEIGHT

MOUNTING

LUMINAIRES

NUMBER OF

CONFIGURATION

ARM
FOUNDATION POLE DETAILS PAY ITEM

1 EXIST. B-I 72+71.24 33.33 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

2 EXIST. B-I 72+71.51 42.57 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

3 EXIST. B-II 81+13.27 48.76 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

4 EXIST. B-II 81+50.76 44.46 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

5 EXIST. C-II 114+49.92 24.29 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP EXIST. RETROFIT 715-11-213

6 EXIST. C-I 114+87.31 26.24 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP EXIST. RETROFIT 715-11-213

7 EXIST. C-I 114+97.71 42.94 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

8 EXIST. C-I 115+34.65 55.56 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

9 EXIST. D-1 115+49.29 26.80 LT  3  80 20 1 PENDANT EXIST. RETROFIT 715-11-216

10 EXIST. D-1 119+05.52 24.13 LT  3  80 20 1 PENDANT EXIST. RETROFIT 715-11-216

11 EXIST. D-1 119+37.38 52.93 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

12 EXIST. D-1 119+75.48 50.28 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

13 EXIST. D-1 119+94.03 23.87 LT  3  80 20 1 PENDANT EXIST. RETROFIT 715-11-216

14 EXIST. D-1 123+77.77 40.10 RT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

15 EXIST. D-1 124+15.48 40.48 LT --  80 16 1 POST TOP SPECIAL CONCRETE 715-511-315

15

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



T
H

T
H

W
A
T
E
R

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

71 72 73 74

MP: 0.937

STA. 71+40.00

IMPROVEMENTS

BEGIN LIGHTING 

8
T

H
 A

V
E

 S

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

£ SURVEY SR 5

STA.   72+71.24

POLE NO. 1  CKT. B-I

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-I

STA.   72+71.51

POLE NO. 2  CKT. B-I

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-I

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 15 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 46 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 24 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

TO EXIST.

CONNECT

R/W LINE
R/W LINE

R/W LINE

GRD. (TYP).

TO REMAIN 

2#6 & 1#6 

EXIST.

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-I

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-I

N1°21'51"E

1"=40'N

 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-3

LIGHTING PLANS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:3

8
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

16

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

S
D

S
D

W
A
T
E

R

W
A
T
E

R

W
A
T
E

R

W
A
T
E

R

W
A
T
E

R

W
A
T
E

R

S
D

S
D

80
81 82

83

+
5
2
.2

2
 
S

T
A
. 

P
C

8080

6
T

H
 

A
V

E
 
S

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

£ SURVEY SR 5

STA.   81+13.27

POLE NO. 3  CKT. B-II

STA.   81+50.76

POLE NO. 4  CKT. B-II

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-II

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-II

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 10 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 52 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 36 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

R/W LINE R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

GRD. (TYP).

TO REMAIN 

2#6 & 1#6 

EXIST.

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-II

TO EXIST.

CONNECT

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. B-II

N90°0'0"E

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 25 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

1"=40'

N

 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-4

LIGHTING PLANS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:3

9
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

17

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



W
A
T
E
R

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

W
A
T
E
R

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
A

N

S
D

S
D

S
D

114 115 116115

2
N

D
 A

V
E

 N

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

£ SURVEY SR 5

STA.  114+87.31

POLE NO. 6  CKT. C-I

STA.  114+97.71

POLE NO. 7  CKT. C-1

STA.  115+49.29

POLE NO. 9  CKT. D-1

STA.  115+34.65

POLE NO. 8  CKT. C-I

EXIST. POST TOP

TO REMAIN, CKT. C-I 

 EXIST. POST TOP

TO REMAIN, CKT. C-II

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 33 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 73 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 36 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

STA.  114+49.92

POLE NO. 5  CKT. C-II

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

TO EXIST.

CONNECT

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. D-I 

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

GRD. (TYP).

TO REMAIN 

2#6 & 1#6 

EXIST.

(RETROFIT EXIST. POST TOP)

(RETROFIT EXIST. POST TOP)

(RETROFIT EXIST. PENDANT)

N1°21'51"E

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 26 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

1"=40'N

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-5

LIGHTING PLANS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:4

0
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

18

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

T
H T
H

T
H

T
H

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

118 119 120 121120120

3
R

D
 A

V
E

 N

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

£ SURVEY SR 5

STA.  119+37.38

POLE NO. 11 CKT. D-I

STA.  119+75.48

POLE NO. 12 CKT. D-I

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 14 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 59 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 35 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 32 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

GRD. (TYP).

TO REMAIN 

2#6 & 1#6 

EXIST.

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. D-I 

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. D-I 

TO EXIST.

CONNECT
STA.  119+05.52

POLE NO. 10 CKT. D-1 STA.  120+94.03

POLE NO. 13 CKT. D-1

N1°21'51"E

(RETROFIT EXIST. PENDANT)

(RETROFIT EXIST. PENDANT)

1"=40'N

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-6

LIGHTING PLANS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:4

1
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

19

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



T
H

T
HT
H

T
H

T
H

T
H

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D S

D

S
D

S
D

S
D

123 124 125125

MP: 1.952

STA. 125+00.00

IMPROVEMENTS

END LIGHTING

4
T

H
 A

V
E

 N

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

R/W LINE

£ SURVEY SR 5

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. D-I 

EXIST. PENDANT

TO REMAIN, CKT. D-I 

GRD. (TYP).

TO REMAIN 

2#6 & 1#6 

EXIST.

N1°21'51"E

STA.  123+77.77

POLE NO. 14 CKT. D-I

STA.  124+15.48

POLE NO. 15 CKT. D-I

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 78 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 27 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

2#6 & 1#6 GRD.

1 RUN OF 15 LF

(2" PVC CONDUIT) 

630-2-12

TO EXIST.

CONNECT 

1"=40'N

 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

446173-1-52-01
 

PALM BEACH
 

SR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\P

L
A

N
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:4

2
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

33172 FL, MIAMI

790 NW 107 AVE., SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

58569LICENSE NUMBER: 

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

T
H

E
 O

F
F

IC
IA

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 F

IL
E

 D
IG

IT
A

L
L

Y
 S

IG
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 S

E
A

L
E

D
 U

N
D

E
R

 R
U

L
E

 6
1
G

1
5
-2

3
.0

0
4
, 
F

.A
.C

.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

LIGHTING PLANS
L-7

20

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-8

SPECIAL DETAILS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\S

P
D

T
L

T
0
2
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:4

3
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

POST TOP

(2'-4")

NON-FLUTED

NON-TAPERED

ROUND

RACEWAY

1-3/4" ± 1/4" I.D.

5-1/8" TOP O.D. WITH

24" ± 2"

GREEN RAL6004 (D4)

ENCLOSURE PAINTED BLUE

RECEPTACLE ADAPTER

RECEPTACLE WITH

@ 180° FOR SINGLE BELL

SINGLE BELL UTILITY ELBOW

(MODCD):

± 2"

12" 

HOLD

(48")

(60")

OTHERS)

ATTACHMENT (BANNERS & ARM BY 

EPOXY IN PLACE FOR BANNER ARM 

PIPE COUPLINGS @ 90° DRILLED &

(2) 3/4" NPSM (STRAIGHT-THREAD)

(MODP6):

CONCRETE POLE

PRESTRESSED

SPUNCAST,

15'-0"

GRADE

ABOVE

HEIGHT

POLE

AMERON I.D. TAG @ 0°

SCREWS

ALLEN HEAD (ALN) DOOR

PRIOR TO SHIPMENT WITH

COVER TO BE ATTACHED

FRAME & COVER @ 0°

WITH CAST ALUMINUM

1-5/8" X 9" HANDHOLE

(30")

(21")

18"

GRADE

(1) @ 90° & (1) @ 270°

CABLE ENTRANCES

(2) 2-1/4 x 9"

EXTEND BASE AS SHOWN

(MODBX)

CONDUIT RACEWAY

8" O.D. WITH 3-1/2" ± 1/2" I.D.

12"

RACEWAY).

CONCRETE I.D.

DIMENSION FOR

(SEE POLE TOP

CASTING I.D.

2" COLLAR

VIEW A

(978 mm)
38 ½"

(724 mm)
28 ½"

(511 mm)
20 ƃ"

(451 mm)
17 Ƃ"

LUMINAIRE (POST TOP)

180°

90° 270°

0°
COUPLINGS

BANNER
CABLE ENTRANCE,

UTILITY ELBOW

ENTRANCE
CABLE

AMERON I.D. TAG
HANDHOLE &

POLE ORIENTATION

PRIOR TO SHIPMENT
TENON TO BE ATTACHED
GREEN RAL6004 (D4)

TENON TO BE PAINTED BLUE
ALLOW FOR TENON MOUNTING)

WIDE VERTICAL GROOVES TO 
MADE WITH 1/2" DEEP x 1"
ALLOY 356-T6 (CASTING IS

MODIFIED T6 TENON ALUMINUM

SCREWS
FLAT HEAD ZP F835 MACHINE 
(4) 3/8"-16UNC x 1-1/4" LG.

GREEN RAL6004 (D4)

CAST ALUMINUM PAINTED BLUE
5" O.D. (ROUND) TOP COLLAR

ANCHOR
CIRCLE EACH WITH 12" LG. 
ON A 3-1/2" DIA. BOLT 
STL. COUPLINGS @ 90° APART
(4) 3/8"-16UNC x 1-3/4" LG. 

(STANDARD MOD38 POLE TOP)

POLE TOP DETAIL

COVER (TYP.)

1/2" MINIMUM CLEAR

STEEL WIRES ASTM A421
(8) 7mm PRESTRESSING

1-3/8" WALL (TYP.)

AT 3" PITCH, ASTM A1064
#12 GA. SPIRAL STEEL WIRE

SPIRAL WIRE ASTM A1064
STEEL WIRE WELDED TO 
#11 GA. LONGITUDINAL

CONCRETE
PRIOR TO CASTING 
CONNECTED & SECURED 
GROUND WIRE ARE TO BE 
FRAME LOCATION) & 

SPIRAL CAGE WIRE (AT 

GROUNDWIRE
BARE COPPER

#8 GA. x 6"

HANDHOLE FRAME

36° (TYP.)

POLE SECTION

7" O.D.

13" O.D.

9.1" O.D.

4
.5

"
1
"

1
"

2
.7

5
"

COATING

DRILL-IN MOD

HH COVER

OPTION CLASS ENTRY INFO.

"F" LEVEL POLE CONFIG CODES

A

66521E

MODP6

"P" LEVEL POLE CONFIG CODES

OPTION CLASS ENTRY INFO.

MIX

FINISH

COLLAR

POLE TOP CONFIG.

SPL. POLE LG.

ELEC. ACC.

41

3

65825ED4

MOD38

MODBX

MODCD

ROUND

STRUCT. MOD. MODDCI NOTE 8

DESIGNATION

POLE

GRADE
ABOVE

HEIGHT
POLE

DEPTH

EMBEDDED

SPECIAL

LENGTH

POLE

OVERALL

DIA

BELL

(ft.-lbs.)
MOMENT

GROUND LINE
ULTIMATE

VEF04.6SPL 15'-0" 5'-3" 20'-3" 13" 15,000 755

(lbs.)

WEIGHT

POLE

TRADITIONAL VICTORIAN II EMBEDDED FLUTED POLE

QTY

1

1

1

SHIPPING ASSEMBLY 2301-021 BILL OF MATERIAL

VEF04.6*413A-9

40100EM4D4A - MOD. CAST ALUMINUM T6 TENON ASSEMBLY, 4" O.D. x 4" LG, (D4).
45133ED4A - SINGLE BELL RECEPTACLE ASSEMBLY (D4).

NOTES:

1. MIX (413A): GREEN NATURAL, EXPOSED AGGREGATE FINISH, WITH ARCHITECTURAL GLOSS
ACRYILIC COATING.

2. ASTM C-150 TYPE III GRAY CEMENT.
3. f'c @ 28 DAYS = 7,000 PSI, USING SPUN CYLINDER TEST.
4. f'c @ 28 DAYS = 5,000 PSI, USING ASTM C-31 CYLINDER TEST.
5. POLES MANUFACTURED PER ASTM C-1089-13 SPECIFICATIONS.
6. PROTECTIVE COAT EXPOSED P.C. WIRES AT POLE ENDS.

10. MANUFACTURER SUGGESTS PLACING ALL BANNER PIECES OUT OF REACH OF PEDESTRIAN 
 TO MINIMIZE LIKELIHOOD OF VANDALISM.

7. POLE IS FULLY PRESTRESSED WITH (8) 7mm ASTM A421 STEEL WIRES.
8. MODDCI: CORROSION INHIBITOR MIX MODIFICATION.

BELL DETAIL

4" O.D. 

4" LG.

"A"

19'-3"
LENGTH
OVERALL

POLE

5'-3"
LENGTH

EMBEDDED
SPECIAL

QTY

1

PART NUMBER

2301-021

DESCRIPTION

MATERIAL LIST

SHIPPING ASSEMBLY

ORG

ANN

NOTES

11. CONTRACTOR TO SUPPLY SIGNED AND SEALED WINDLOAD & EMBEDMENT CALCULATIONS
 THAT MEET OR EXCEED THE RECOMMENDATION.

12. THE RECOMMENDED AUGER HOLE DIAMETER IS 18".

EXCEEDS THESE VALUES.

HILL NOR ESCARPMENT. PLEASE CONTACT & ADVISE MANUFACTURER IF INTENDED LOADING 

BUILDING STRUCTURE, EXPOSURE C, SURFACE ROUGHNESS C, SITE CLASS D, NO

AASHTO LTS-1 USING A 120 MPH WIND ZONE (3-SECOND GUSTS), CATEGORY II, NON-

EPA, 15 LBS) CENTERED NO HIGHER THAN 12'-0" ABOVE GRADE AS DESIGNED PER 2015 

WITHSTAND (1) POST TOP FIXTURE & (1) 24" x 48" BANNER (NOT TO EXCEED 9.2 SQ. FT. 

ROUGHNESS C, SITE CLASS D, NO HILL NOR ESCARPMENT. THE POLE IS ALSO DESIGNED TO 

ZONE  (3-SECOND GUSTS), CATEGORY II, NON-BUILDING STRUCTURE, EXPOSURE C, SURFACE 

2.5 SQ FT EPA, 50 LBS)  AS DESIGNED  PER 2015 AASHTO LTS-1 USING 160 MPH WIND 

TO WITHSTAND THE LOADS IMPARTED BY A SINGLE POST TOP FIXTURE  (NOT TO EXCEED, 

9. THE POLE (& IMPLIED TENON TOP ASSEMBLY) DEPICTED ON THIS DRAWING IS DESIGNED 

21

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



 

DATE DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION
NO.

SHEETSTATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROAD NO. FINANCIAL PROJECT IDCOUNTY

L-9

SERVICE POINT DETAILS

446173-1-52-01PALM BEACHSR 5

2
/1

/2
0

2
3

Z
:\

W
o
r
k
s
e
ts

\F
D

O
T

\4
4
6
1
7
3
1
5
2
0
1
\L

ig
h
ti

n
g
\S

R
P

T
L

T
0
1
.d

g
n

8
:1

8
:4

4
 A

M
D

e
s
ig

n
7

SR 5/ N. FEDERAL HWY

6
T

H
 A

V
E

. 
N

.

NTS.

CIRCUIT D1: 25A; D2: 30A

MAIN BREAKER: 60A

240V TO GROUND. 1 PHASE 3 WIRE.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

EXIST. SERVICE POINT "D"

SERVICE POINT "D" LOCATION

NTS.

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

6
T

H
 A

V
E

. 
S

.

NTS.

PHOTOCELL: 15A

CIRCUIT B1: 30A; B2: 30A

MAIN BREAKER: 60A

240V TO GROUND. 1 PHASE 3 WIRE.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

EXIST. SERVICE POINT "B"

SERVICE POINT "B" LOCATION

NTS.

SR 5/ S. FEDERAL HWY

L
U

C
E

R
N

E
 A

V
E

.

NTS.

PHOTOCELL: 15A

CIRCUIT C1: 15A; C2: 15A

MAIN BREAKER: 100A

240V TO GROUND. 1 PHASE 3 WIRE.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH

EXIST. SERVICE POINT "C"

SERVICE POINT "C" LOCATION

NTS.

MIAMI, FLORIDA, 33172

790 NW 107 AVE, SUITE 200

CALTRAN ENGINEERING GROUP

LICENSE NUMBER 58569

JUAN S. CALDERON, P.E.

ENGINEER OF RECORD

T
H

E
 O

F
F

I
C

I
A

L
 R

E
C

O
R

D
 O

F
 T

H
I
S

 S
H

E
E

T
 I

S
 T

H
E

 E
L

E
C

T
R

O
N

I
C

 F
I
L

E
 D

I
G

I
T

A
L

L
Y

 S
I
G

N
E

D
 A

N
D

 S
E

A
L

E
D

 U
N

D
E

R
 R

U
L

E
 6

1
G

1
5

-
2

3
.0

0
4

, 
F

.A
.C

.

22

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



SECTION NO.: 93020000 
FM No.(s): 446173-1-52-01 
COUNTY: Palm Beach 

County 
S.R. No.: 5 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
MAINTENANCE PLAN REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
In reference to Maintenance to be performed under this AGREEMENT, the AGENCY shall 
submit to the DEPARTMENT a maintenance plan detailing the means and methods for 
accomplishing any maintenance or repairs to the IMPROVEMENTS in accordance with all 
DEPARTMENT Standards, Procedures and Specifications. This plan shall be submitted and 
approved by the DEPARTMENT prior to commencing any maintenance or repair activities. The 
AGENCY shall comply with the DEPARTMENT's applicable Maintenance Rating Program 
Standards.   The plan should at minimum detail how the AGENCY will address the following: 
 

1. Providing for continuous traffic control and necessary traffic control devices as required 
for the safe movement of traffic of vehicular and pedestrian traffic past the location of 
the structure being repaired for the duration of the repair in accordance with 
DEPARTMENT Standards, Procedures and Specifications. 

 
2. Protection of adjacent surrounding property, real estate, vehicles, pedestrians, 

attachments to the light poles, or other assets during the preparation and recoating of 
surfaces. 

 
3. Containment of debris or materials used in or resulting from the repair. 

 
 
After the maintenance plan is approved, the AGENCY shall submit a work plan to the 
DEPARTMENT for approval prior to each repair to be performed detailing: 
 

1. The proposed date of the repair 
 

2. The location of the repair 
 

3. The nature of the repair 
 

4. The materials to be used for the repair 
 

5. The methods to be used for the repair 

23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



18-2023

RESOLUTION NO. 18-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE MAINTENANCE MEMORANDUM OF
AGREEMENT AND LOCAL FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS
TO FEDERAL HIGHWAY; AND PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTS
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth, Florida ("City") is a duly constituted municipality
having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution and Chapter
166, Florida Statutes;

WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) has jurisdiction overstate
Road 5 (also known as Federal Highway) within thejurisdictional boundaries of the City;
and

WHEREAS, FDOT seeks to install certain lighting improvements on Federal Highway
(specifically from 10th Avenue South to 6th Avenue North) to include decorative lighting
and to have the City maintain the improvements once installed; and

WHEREAS, FDOT is providing funding for most of the improvements being made to
Federal Highway within the City; however, the City is required to provide local funding
for the decorative improvements to match existing decorative improvements; and

WHEREAS, FDOT has proposed a Maintenance Memorandum of Agreement (MMOA)
and Local Funding Agreement which provide the responsibilities of FDOT and the City
with regards to the installation of the improvements, the funding of the improvements,
and the City's maintenance of the improvements once installed; and,

WHEREAS, the improvements project detailed in the Local Funding Agreement is in the
best interests of both the City and FDOT; and,

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that entering the MMOA and Local
Funding Agreement with FDOT serves a valid public purpose.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution as true
and correct statements.

Section 2. The City Commission hereby approves the Maintenance Memorandum of
Agreement and the Local Funding Agreement with FDOT for the decorative lighting
improvements to be installed by FDOT and directs the Mayor and City Clerk to execute
the same. A copy of this Resolution shall be provided to FDOT along with the executed
agreements.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



Pg.2, Reso. 18-2023

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions are hereby repealed or amended to
the extent that they are in conflict with this Resolution.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage.

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner Stokes, seconded by
Commissioner Malega, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz

AYE
ABSENT
AYE
AYE
AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 6th day of
June,2023,

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

0 ..-

Melissa 4nn Coyne, City Clerk

By:.
-^ Betty Rj^so'fi, Mayor

[l^^
^^^p'^&'
t^;^lc^>%^'w^v^^w^S^

^&WvS^y

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH ) SS
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH )
I~he(eby certify .the for_egom$; to be a true and correct copy

of_£^l^t^(^-A^-z^>1^-

In Witness whereof. 1 Iia^e he^
the ftfpcial seal of thL\Cit\ ^fj

Dale

•eunto set my hand^and affixed

^brt^Beaclj(JHo^da^
IA IUU\-W;\

C^.y Clerk u

DocuSign Envelope ID: 42CF6401-802F-4375-BC8A-88F85E1B4036



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Installation of a Level 2 Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging station at the City Hall parking lot 

 
SUMMARY: 

Request for approval to install a Level 2 EV charging station in the City Hall parking lot to allow for 
charging of up to two (2) EV’s at a time. This project will expand the number of City locations where 
residents, visitors and employees can charge EV’s in the downtown area.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City is considering the addition of Level 2 EV charging stations in response to increased demand for 
EV charging in the downtown area. Daily use of these charging stations will benefit local businesses by 
helping to draw visitors seeking to charge their vehicles while enjoying our downtown amenities, For City 
residents who seek to avoid installing chargers at their own homes due to equipment and installation 
costs, or who may not have driveway access for off-street charging. For visitors, the availability of EV 
chargers within walking distance to downtown businesses encourages repeat visits and time spent 
shopping and dining. Additionally, the use of personal EVs by City employees based at City Hall is 
growing and workplace charging is increasingly attractive.  

Plentiful and conveniently located EV charging stations help encourage electric vehicle adoption, 
increases tourism, and aid in reducing air emissions associated with internal combustion engines and 
reduces traditional fuel filling stations fugitive VOC emissions.  Visual observations, driver feedback, and 
EV network charging data all indicate that there are frequent instances of the nearby J Street Lot EV 
Chargers being fully utilized, with prospective users being turned away. Adding more readily accessible 
EV charges nearby at City Hall will help capture more charging business, and provide a valuable service. 

The proposed two parking spaces to be dedicated to EV charging will allow for easy entry and exit of the 
City Hall parking area from downtown Lake Worth Beach. An aerial view is attached for context. 

The proposed EV charging infrastructure will be built with the capability to add additional EV Charging 
stations in the future if demand for the service continues to grow. Electric supply will be provided from a 
nearby power pole located adjacent to the enclosure on North H Street. 

The total project cost includes the transformer required as well as the cost of the EV charger itself and 
associated installation. Engineering and design will be performed by in-house staff. Contractor services 
for installation, paving restorations and EV branding will be retained per Lake Worth Beach procurement 
policy. The Level 2 EV charger shall be procured from ChargePoint, consistent with other EV charging 
stations installed within the City.  

Public use of City’s EV charging stations is provided at a cost paid by EV drivers. Charging rates are 
equal to the rate charged to City’s Residential electric customers who use less than 1,000 KWhrs per 
month.  

Additional EV Charging Stations were included as an element of the City’s Consolidated Utility Revenue 
Bonds Series 2022. 

 
MOTION: 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital $90,292 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $90,292 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Electric Utility  

Division  T & D  

GL Description Improve Other than Build / Infrastructure 

GL Account Number 421-6020-531-64.40 

Project Number EEQ2203  

Requested Funds  $90,292 

 

Move to approve/disapprove Engineering, Design and Installation of a Level 2 Charging Station at City 
Hall with an associated budget of $90,292. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
EV parking Aerial view at City Hall 
City Hall EV Charging Stations Cost Estimate 
 



EV EV

Pad Mount

Transformer

2 port EV 

Charger

      N

City Hall



Project Description

Project Benefits

Project Name

 FY 2024 

Internal Labor  $                    -   

Non-Labor Expense  $        37,410.00 

External Labor Expense $37,833.00 

Sub Total Costs  $      75,243.00 

Risk & Contingency 20% $15,048.60 

Total Expenses $90,291.60 

Info Source

Item

CLWB Line Crews Labor and 

Equipment  $                    -   

Info Source

Item  Amount 

Line Hardware and EV Chargers

 $        37,410.00 

Info Source

Item  Amount 

Construction Services $34,250.00 

Permitting  $          3,583.00 

Notes:

Permitting

Non-Labor Expense Schedule

External Labor Expense Schedule Comments

Internal Labor Schedule

Comments

Comments

This includes 150kVA pad-mount transformer, the EV 

charing stations and all other materials needed for EV 

City Hall EV Charging Stations

Install a Level 2 Charging Stations at City Hall

City EV Charging Stations to provide an amenity encourging electric vehicle adoption.

City Hall EV Charging Stations

Project Costs:

7/12/2023 Project Cost Est. Cover Pg



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) 

 
SUMMARY: 

Request for approval to apply for the EECBG.  The Department of Energy (DOE) EECBG has allocated 
$76,410.00 to the City of Lake Worth Beach but the City must still apply for the grant. If awarded, this 
amount may only be used for Energy Conservation activities. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City’s Electric Utility is requesting approval to apply for EECBG.  The DOE has identified the following 
benefits that can flow to Disadvantaged Communities (DAC’s) as a result of EECBG Program funding. 
Specifically, benefits include, but are not limited to measurable direct or indirect or positive project 
outcomes that achieve or contribute to the following in DACs:  

1. Clean energy enterprise creation and contracting (e.g., minority-owned or disadvantaged business 
enterprises);  

2. An increase in job creation, the clean energy job pipeline, and job training for minorities and returning 
citizens;  

3. Increased parity in clean energy technology access and adoption; 

4. Funds must be used to build a clean and equitable energy economy that promotes equity and 
inclusion in workforce opportunities and deployment activities, consistent with the Justice40 Initiative. 

5. Funds must meet Build American/Buy American Act.  Further, the EECBG Program encourages 
eligible entities to include the participation of underserved communities and underrepresented groups 
in the activities they undertake with EECBG Program funds. EECBG Program eligible entities are 
highly encouraged to include contractors and sub-contractors from historically underrepresented 
groups in their project scoping. Further, Minority Serving Institutions, Minority Business Enterprises, 
Minority Owned Businesses, Woman Owned Businesses, Veteran Owned Businesses, or entities 
located in an underserved community that meet EECBG program eligibility requirements are 
encouraged to be considered as sub-recipients for proposed EECBG Program-funded projects. 

6. Projects related to regular maintenance or repairs are not eligible. 

The full grant application is due January 1, 2024. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove applying for the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program 
(EECBG). 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis - N/A 
Pre-Award Information Sheet 



EECBG Program PRE-AWARD INFORMATION SHEET 
Each Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program recipient shall provide the following 
information on behalf of itself and all subrecipients and certify that the information is accurate and complete. 
Recipients may choose to provide this information in whatever format they like, as this form is optional. 
EECBG Program recipients representing local and tribal entities may select from two options: 1) a grant or 2) a 
voucher for technical assistance and/or equipment rebates. EECBG Program recipients choosing a grant must 
provide data requested in sections 1 through 8 below. EECBG Program recipients choosing a voucher may skip 
sections 4 through 7.  

SECTION 1: CONTACT & LOCATION INFORMATION (All recipients) 

Recipient Name: Award Number: 

UEI: DUNS 
(if applicable): 

Business Officer: BO Phone 
Number/Email: 

Principal 
Investigator (PI): 

PI Phone 
Number/Email: 

A. TYPE OF ORGANIZATION – Please indicate the type of organization of the Recipient by selecting one of the
following: 

☐ Local Government
☐ Tribal Government
☐ State

B. LOCATION AND CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

List the address and Congressional district(s) for the primary location where the grant will be performed. 

Street Address: 
City: 

State: 
Zip: 

Congressional District(s): 

SECTION 2: GRANT OR VOUCHER (All recipients) 

EECBG Program recipients representing local and tribal entities must select whether to receive their EECBG Program 
award in the form of a grant or a voucher for technical assistance and/or equipment rebates. Please indicate your choice 
here. All States & Territories must select “Grant.” (Select one option) [response to this question is non-binding] 

☐ Voucher for Technical Assistance
☐ Voucher for Equipment Rebate
☐ Voucher for both Technical Assistance and Equipment Rebate
☐ Grant

City of Lake Worth Beach Allocation
GKQ1QGJPEVC7 076040070
Thomas McKee 561- 493-2530tmckee@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

Edward Liberty 561.586.1670 

1900 2nd Avenue
City of Lake Worth Beach
Fl
33461
FL-022



Page 2 of 10 

SECTION 3: BUSINESS ASSURANCES (All recipients) 

A. DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL IMPROPRIETIES

Below, please disclose if any of the following conditions exist. If the answer to any question (a) through (g) below is 
yes, provide a detailed explanation in an attachment to this form. 

a. Is the proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or any of the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals1 under
investigation for or charged with a covered offense2?
☐ Yes
☐ No

b. Has the proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or any of the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals been
convicted of a covered offense in the last five years or had a civil judgment rendered against them for one
of those offenses in that time period?
☐ Yes
☐ No

c. Is the proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or any of the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals under
investigation for potential violation of U.S. export control laws and regulations, or has the proposed
Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or any of the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals been convicted of any
violations of U.S. export control laws and regulations?
☐ Yes
☐ No

d. Is the proposed Recipient or Subrecipient(s) under investigation for potential violations of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988, or has the proposed Recipient or Subrecipient(s) been convicted of any violations
of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988?
☐ Yes
☐ No

e. Is the proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or any of the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals under
investigation for research misconduct, or has the proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or the Recipient’s
or Subrecipient’s principals been convicted of research misconduct?
☐ Yes
☐ No

f. Has any Federal Agency recommended or initiated proceedings against the proposed Recipient,
Subrecipient(s), or the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals for suspension or debarment, or is the
proposed Recipient, Subrecipient(s), or the Recipient’s or Subrecipient’s principals debarred, suspended,
publicly banned from doing business with the Federal government, or otherwise declared ineligible from

1 For this form, “principal” means: (1) An officer, director, owner, partner, PI, or other person (as defined in 2 C.F.R. 180.95) within 
the Project Team with management or supervisory responsibilities related to this project and any resulting transaction; or (2) A 
consultant or other person, whether or not employed by the Recipient, Subrecipient, or their principals, or paid with Federal funds, who 
(a) is in a position to handle Federal funds, (b) is in a position to influence or control the use of those funds, or (c) occupies a technical
or professional position capable of substantially influencing the development or outcome of an activity required to perform the
transaction, including but not limited to, any Co-PIs.
2 For this form, “covered offenses” include: (1) Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to
obtain, or performing a public or private agreement or transaction; (2) Violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes, including those
proscribing price fixing between competitors, allocation of customers between competitors, and bid rigging; (3) Commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, receiving stolen
property, making false claims, or obstruction of justice; or (4) Commission of any other offense indicating a lack of business integrity
or business honesty that seriously and directly affects the Recipient’s present responsibility.

■

■

■

■

■



Page 3 of 10 

receiving Federal Contracts, subcontracts or financial assistance? 
☐ Yes
☐ No

g. Is the proposed Recipient or Subrecipient(s) delinquent on federal debt or insolvent or at risk of
insolvency or have the proposed Recipient or Subrecipient(s) filed for bankruptcy in any domestic or
foreign jurisdiction?
☐ Yes
☐ No

B. POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

1. Financial Conflicts of Interest. The Recipient must disclose in writing any managed or unmanageable
financial conflicts of interest involving a member of the project team (i.e., Investigators) and include
sufficient information to enable DOE to understand the nature and extent of the financial conflict, and to
assess the appropriateness of the non-Federal entity's management plan. See Section V(b)(3) of the DOE
Interim Conflict of Interest Policy. As part of this DOE funded project, does the recipient or any
subrecipients have any managed or unmanageable financial conflicts of interest involving a member of
the project team (i.e., Investigators)?
☐ No
☐ Yes.  If yes, in a separate attachment, the Recipient must provide relevant disclosures/supporting
documentation as required by the DOE Interim Conflict of Interest Policy Section V(b)(3).

C. Organizational Conflicts of Interest3. The Recipient must disclose in writing any potential or actual
organizational conflict of interest to DOE.  See DOE Interim Conflict of Interest Policy Section VI and 2
CFR 200.318 for more information. As part of this DOE funded project, does the recipient or any
subrecipients intend to engage in a procurement with a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is
not a state, local government, or Indian tribe?

☐ No
☐ Yes. If yes, in a separate attachment, the Recipient must provide relevant disclosures/supporting
documentation as required by the DOE Interim Conflict of Interest Policy Section VI.

**Recipients choosing a voucher may skip to Section 8** 

SECTION 4: PAYMENT INFORMATION (Grant recipients only) 
Provide (1) the awardee seven-digit ASAP (Automated Standard Application for Payment System) ID number that is 
under the DOE / Golden Field Office (GO) Agency Locator Code (ALC) and Region Code (#8900-0001-04) if available; 
(2) the name, phone number and email for the ASAP / Payments Contact Person; and (3) indicate whether the preferred
payment method is by advance or reimbursement.

1) ASAP Number:
2) ASAP/Payments Contact Person:
3) The preferred payment method is:

3 Organizational Conflict of Interest means a situation where because of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, the non-Federal entity 
is unable or appears to be unable to be impartial in conducting a procurement action involving a related organization. 2 CFR 200.318(c)(2).

■

1202717
Christopher Gallo
Reimbursement

■

https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Interim%20COI%20Policy%20FAL2022-02%20to%20SPEs.pdf
https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Interim%20COI%20Policy%20FAL2022-02%20to%20SPEs.pdf
https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Interim%20COI%20Policy%20FAL2022-02%20to%20SPEs.pdf
https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Interim%20COI%20Policy%20FAL2022-02%20to%20SPEs.pdf
https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Interim%20COI%20Policy%20FAL2022-02%20to%20SPEs.pdf


Page 4 of 10 

SECTION 5: PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION REQUEST (Grant recipients only) 

Before providing this information, please read the ADDITIONAL INFORMATION at the end of this form. Each field 
identified below must be completed.  

1. Has the Recipient had prior Federal awards?

If Yes:
Is the Recipient up to date on all reporting requirements on all other current and

☐ Yes ☐ No

☐ Yes ☐ No
prior awards, including submitting acceptable final technical reports, with other
Federal or non-Federal organizations? If you check No to this question, please
attach an explanation.

2a. Has the Recipient had an independent Single Audit or independent Compliance ☐ Yes ☐ No
Audit per Federal regulations, or had a prior Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) Audit performed? 
(Please see attached instructions regarding Independent Audit requirements.) 

2b. Has the Recipient undergone a Financial Audit within the last 3 years? ☐ Yes ☐ No

If Yes to either 2a. or 2b.: 
a. A copy of the audit is attached to this form. ☐ Yes ☐ No
b. An electronic copy of the audit was provided with application package. ☐ Yes ☐ No

An electronic copy of the audit can be found at   

If audit was not provided, please explain why it has not been completed and/or provided: 

3. Recipient’s fiscal year end date is

4a.  Identify the Federal Agency providing the preponderance of funding from ALL Government Awards which the 
Recipient’s organization is/was the prime recipient, including any DOE Awards.  
Provide Agency name, Cognizant Agency point of contact (individual in charge of negotiating billing rates), 
phone number, and e-mail.   
(If the Recipient’s organization has a DCAA contact, please provide this information in 4(c) below): 

Agency: 
Point of Contact: 
Phone/Email: 

4b.  DCAA Contact Information:  

DCAA Office: 
Point of Contact: 
Phone/Email: 

FY2022 Audit is still in progress with completion date scheduled for August 30th, 2023. Delays were mainly due to staff turnover. 

September 30, 2023

N/A

N/A

✔

✔

✔

✔



Page 5 of 10 

SECTION 6: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM – ACCOUNTING SYSTEM SURVEY (Grant 
recipients only) 

To qualify for Financial Assistance, compliance with 2 CFR 200 as amended by 2 CFR 910 is required. This includes 
assurance of an adequate accounting system for estimating, accounting and billing for governmental funding received. 
Please complete the checklist below as assurance of this requirement. 

For additional information, please visit https://www.dcaa.mil. Please refer specifically to the “Pre-award Accounting 
System Adequacy Checklist” under CUSTOMERS-->Checklists and Tools. 

Yes No NA 
1. Is the Accounting System in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

applicable to the circumstances and associated applicable Federal regulations? ☐ ☐ ☐

2. Accounting System provides for:
a. Segregation of direct costs from indirect costs. ☐ ☐ ☐

b. Identification and accumulation of direct costs by project. ☐ ☐ ☐
c. A logical and consistent method for the allocation of indirect costs to intermediate

and final cost objectives. (Project line items are final cost objective)
☐ ☐ ☐

d. Accumulation of costs under general ledger control. ☐ ☐ ☐
e. A timekeeping system that identifies employees’ labor by intermediate and final

cost objective (i.e., project level, division level). ☐ ☐ ☐

f. A labor distribution system that charges direct and indirect labor to appropriate
cost objectives. ☐ ☐ ☐

g. Interim (at least monthly) determination of costs charged to a project through
routine posting of books of account. ☐ ☐ ☐

h. Excluding costs charged to Government projects which are not allowable in terms
of FAR 31, Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, or other provisions. ☐ ☐ ☐

i. Identification of costs by project line item and by units (as if each unit or line item
were a separate project) if required by the proposed award. ☐ ☐ ☐

3. Is the Accounting System designed, and are the records maintained in such a manner that
adequate, reliable data are developed for use in developing cost proposals? ☐ ☐ ☐

4. Is the Accounting System currently in full operation? ☐ ☐ ☐

SECTION 7: REPRESENTATION/CERTIFICATION (Grant recipients only) 

Certification of the information is required by the organization’s authorized representative 

☐ I certify that I have registered in the System for Award Management (SAM).

☐ I certify that I have registered in FedConnect.net in order to receive award documentation.

☐ I certify that all subrecipient cost information has been reviewed, and that all subrecipient costs are reasonable,
allowable, and allocable in accordance with the applicable cost principles. All subrecipient budget documents
should be available upon DOE request.

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

https://www.dcaa.mil/
https://www.dcaa.mil/Checklists-Tools/Pre-award-Accounting-System-Adequacy-Checklist/
https://www.dcaa.mil/Checklists-Tools/Pre-award-Accounting-System-Adequacy-Checklist/


 

Page 6 of 10 

 

☐ I certify that all direct costs proposed in the application (under the personnel, travel, equipment, supplies, 
contractual, construction, and/or other direct costs categories) are direct to the project and are not duplicated in the 
proposed indirect costs. 

 
☐ I certify that the processes undertaken to solicit any subrecipients, subawards, subcontracts and vendors comply 

with our organization’s written procurement procedures as outlined in “Procurement Standards” 2 CFR 200.317 
through 2 CFR 200.326 inclusive. 

 
☐ I certify the Recipient: 

(1) Has in effect an up-to-date, written, and enforced administrative process to identify and manage conflicts of 
interest with respect to all projects for which financial assistance funding is sought or received from DOE; 

(2) Shall promote and enforce Investigator compliance with DOE’s Interim Conflict of Interest (COI) Policy's 
requirements including those pertaining to disclosure of significant financial interests; 

(3) Shall manage financial conflicts of interest and provide initial and ongoing financial conflicts of interest reports 
to DOE; 

(4) Agrees to make information available, promptly upon request, to DOE relating to any Investigator disclosure of 
financial interests and the Recipient’s review of, and response to, such disclosure, whether or not the disclosure 
resulted in the Recipient’s determination of a financial conflict of interest; and 

(5) Shall fully comply with the requirements of the DOE Interim COI Policy. 

 
SECTION 8: SIGNATURES (All recipients) 

 
I, the Authorization Official named below, represent by my signature that I am authorized to certify this information 
on behalf of the Recipient. I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information contained in this Pre-
Award Information Sheet is true, complete and accurate. I understand that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
information, misrepresentations, half-truths, or omissions of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or 
administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and 287, and 31 
U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). I further understand and agree that (1) the statements and representations made 
herein are material to DOE’s funding decision, and (2) I have a responsibility to update the disclosures during the 
period of performance of the award should circumstances change which impact the responses provided above. 
 

Name:  
 

Title:  
 

Signature of Authorized 
Official: 

 
 

Date:  
 

 
I, the Principal Investigator named below, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the information 
contained in this Pre-Award Information Sheet is true, complete and accurate. I understand that any false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent information, misrepresentations, half-truths, or omissions of any material fact may subject me to criminal, 
civil, or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and 287, 
and 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). I further understand and agree that (1) the statements and representations 
made herein are material to DOE’s funding decision, and (2) I have a responsibility to update the disclosures during 
the period of performance of the award should circumstances change which impact the responses provided above. 

 
Name:  

 



 

Page 7 of 10 

 

Title:  
 

Signature of Principal 
Investigator: 

 
 

Date:  
 



 

Page 8 of 10 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
This information will assist DOE in determining: 1) cognizance; 2) whether the Recipient has adequate internal financial 
and management controls; and 3) whether the Recipient has an adequate accounting system. Generally, cognizance means 
that an organization has a Federal oversight agency (cognizant agency). Cognizance of an organization is used for many 
purposes including:  determining which agency is responsible for verifying correct allocation of indirect rates to incurred 
costs; issuing the Provisional and Final Indirect Rate Agreements; and ordering audits. Adequate internal controls and 
accounting systems are essential to ensure that the Recipient’s costs are correctly estimated, recorded, and billed. The 
Recipient has the responsibility to ensure that these systems are in place. The cognizant Agency has the responsibility for 
verifying these systems through audits or other methods. 

 
For additional information, please visit https://www.dcaa.mil. Please refer specifically to the “Pre-award Accounting 
System Adequacy Checklist” under CUSTOMERS-->Checklists and Tools.  
 
Cognizance is determined by TOTAL Federal award/contract dollars received by the Recipient/Contractor from all Federal 
agencies. This information is used to determine which Federal agency has the largest preponderance of funding and is 
cognizant. Once a Federal agency assumes cognizance for a contractor, it should remain cognizant for at least 5 years to 
ensure continuity and ease of administration. 
 
Cognizance related duties are the responsibility of the Cognizant Federal Agency (CFA). The CFA is the Federal agency 
(e.g., Department of Defense, Department of Energy, Navy, etc.) that provided the preponderance (largest amount) of 
funding for your awards, across all federal agencies. It is very important to confirm that you work with the correct office. 
 
General Rule of Thumb:  Department of Health & Human Services (DHHS) is usually the CFA for Universities, Cities, 
States, and Counties. DHHS cognizance is not usually transferred. 
 
If it is determined that the Department of Energy/Golden Field Office (GO) is the Cognizant Federal Office, the Recipient 
will have the following ANNUAL responsibilities: 
 

1. Submit a Certified Annual Incurred Cost Claim (ICE Model – see #3 below) to the GO Cost/Price mailbox 
(CostPrice@ee.doe.gov). This should represent the total organization's costs (representing the Company 
General Ledger), not just the Recipient’s DOE award(s).  

2. Due Date: 180 days after the Recipient’s fiscal year end. 

3. For an example of the ICE Model, please visit https://www.dcaa.mil. Under “CUSTOMERS->Checklists and Tools”, 
click on ICE (Incurred Cost Electronically) Model and download the ICE model. 

Once the information is received, GO will have the responsibility of providing your organization with an annual indirect 
rate agreement. This indirect rate must be used on all Federal grants and contracts. 
 
If it is determined that GO is not the Cognizant Federal Office, the Recipient should contact the Cognizant Office for 
additional instructions.   
 
 

 

https://www.dcaa.mil/
https://www.dcaa.mil/Checklists-Tools/Pre-award-Accounting-System-Adequacy-Checklist/
https://www.dcaa.mil/Checklists-Tools/Pre-award-Accounting-System-Adequacy-Checklist/
mailto:CostPrice@ee.doe.gov
https://www.dcaa.mil/


 

Page 9 of 10 

 

ANNUAL AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
Independent (Single & Compliance) Audit Requirements  

 
2 CFR 200, Section F located at: 
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?SID=6e187b05cfeca4f534c659f20983b14e&mc=true&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5 
 
For-Profits:  2 CFR 910, Section F located at: 
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt2.1.910&rgn=div5  

 
Below are excerpts from Section F.  

 
 
Audit requirements. 
 
(a) Audit required. A non-Federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in 
Federal awards must have a single (program-specific, not applicable for For-Profits) or compliance audit conducted 
for that year in accordance with the provisions of this part. 
 
(b) Single audit. A non-Federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in 
Federal awards must have a single audit conducted in accordance with §200.514 - Scope of audit except when it elects 
to have a program-specific audit conducted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this section. 
 
(b) Compliance audit. (1) If a for-profit entity has one or more DOE awards with expenditures of $750,000 or more 
during the for-profit entity's fiscal year, they must have a compliance audit for each of the awards with $750,000 or 
more in expenditures. A compliance audit should comply with the applicable provisions in §910.514—Scope of Audit. 
The remaining awards do not require, individually or in the aggregate, a compliance audit. 
 
(c) Program-specific audit election. (Not applicable to For-Profits).  When an auditee expends Federal awards under 
only one Federal program (excluding R&D) and the Federal program's statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award do not require a financial statement audit of the auditee, the auditee may elect to have 
a program-specific audit conducted in accordance with §200.507 Program-specific audits. A program-specific audit 
may not be elected for R&D unless all of the Federal awards expended were received from the same Federal agency, 
or the same Federal agency and the same pass-through entity, and that Federal agency, or pass-through entity in the 
case of a subrecipient, approves in advance a program-specific audit. 
 
(d) Exemption when Federal awards expended are less than $750,000. A non-Federal entity that expends less than 
$750,000 during the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in Federal awards is exempt from Federal audit requirements for 
that year, except as noted in §200.503 Relation to other audit requirements, but records must be available for review or 
audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, and Government Accountability Office 
(GAO). 
 
(e) Federally Funded Research and Development Centers (FFRDC). Management of an auditee that owns or operates a 
FFRDC may elect to treat the FFRDC as a separate entity for purposes of this part. 
 
(f) Subrecipients and Contractors. An auditee may simultaneously be a recipient, a subrecipient, and a contractor. 
Federal awards expended as a recipient or a subrecipient are subject to audit under this part. The payments received for 
goods or services provided as a contractor are not Federal awards. Section §200.331 Subrecipient and contractor 
determinations sets forth the considerations in determining whether payments constitute a Federal award or a payment 
for goods or services provided as a contractor. 
 

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=6e187b05cfeca4f534c659f20983b14e&mc=true&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=6e187b05cfeca4f534c659f20983b14e&mc=true&node=pt2.1.200&rgn=div5
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt2.1.910&rgn=div5


 

Page 10 of 10 

 

(g) Compliance responsibility for contractors. In most cases, the auditee's compliance responsibility for contractors is 
only to ensure that the procurement, receipt, and payment for goods and services comply with Federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards. Federal award compliance requirements normally do not 
pass through to contractors. However, the auditee is responsible for ensuring compliance for procurement transactions 
which are structured such that the contractor is responsible for program compliance or the contractor's records must be 
reviewed to determine program compliance. Also, when these procurement transactions relate to a major program, the 
scope of the audit must include determining whether these transactions are in compliance with Federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of Federal awards. 
 
(h) For-profit subrecipient. Since this part does not apply to for-profit subrecipients, the pass-through entity is 
responsible for establishing requirements, as necessary, to ensure compliance by for-profit subrecipients. The 
agreement with the for-profit subrecipient must describe applicable compliance requirements and the for-profit 
subrecipient's compliance responsibility. Methods to ensure compliance for Federal awards made to for-profit 
subrecipients may include pre-award audits, monitoring during the agreement, and post-award audits. See also 
§200.332 Requirements for pass-through entities. 
 

 



STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

First Amendment to Agreement with ULS Corporate Inc. for the purchase and delivery of overhead, pole-
mounted distribution transformers 

 
SUMMARY: 

First Amendment to Agreement with ULS Corporate Inc. for the purchase and delivery of overhead, pole-
mounted distribution transformers for the City’s Electric Utility under City of Lake Worth Beach solicitation 
(IFB# 22-112).  The Amendment seeks to add two (2) additional units to the original Schedule of Unit 
Prices, and increase the total annual not-to-exceed amount by an associated $2,000,000 (Two Million 
Dollars) to a total amount not to exceed $4,750,000.00 (Four Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand 
Dollars) per fiscal year.  Materials purchased under this agreement are essential elements of the City’s 
Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were 
sold in Bond Series 2020 and 2022. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 22-112) seeking bids from qualified vendors for the supply of 
overhead, pole-mounted distribution transformers for the City’s electric utility warehouse inventory. ULS 
Corporate, Inc. was the only vendor to bid and was found to be the most responsive and responsible 
bidder and was recommended for the award.  This Amendment seeks to add two (2) additional units to 
the original Schedule of Unit Prices, and increase the total annual not-to-exceed amount by an 
associated $2,000,000 (Two Million Dollars) to a total amount not to exceed $4,750,000.00 (Four Million 
Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars) per fiscal year, per Section 5.2 of the original Agreement.  The 
additional units described have been identified as necessary in a revised plan to expedite system 
hardening of 6th Avenue Substation Distribution Circuit Feeders. 

The City is currently implementing the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement 
Program (SHRIP). As part of this project, old overhead distribution transformers are replaced with new 
transformers from the City’s electric utility warehouse inventory to improve system reliability and storm 
resiliency. Additionally, many locations within the service territory will be converted from 4kV to 26kV, 
which also requires the transformers eligible to be purchased under this agreement. Overhead 
distribution transformers purchased under this agreement will be utilized for both Capital and Operations 
& Maintenance projects and will be charged out to the projects accordingly. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove First Amendment to Agreement with ULS Corporate Inc. for the addition of 
two (2) overhead, pole-mounted distribution transformer units to the original Schedule of Unit Prices, and 
increase of the total annual not-to-exceed amount by $2,000,000.00 (Two Million Dollars) to a new total 
of $4,750,000.00 (Four Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars). 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 
First Amendment to Agreement for Purchase 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0  
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital $4,750,000 $4,750,000 $4,750,000 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact $4,750,000 $4,750,000 $4,750,000 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department   Electric Utility  Electric Utility  

Division  Transmission & Distribution   

GL Description  Improve Other Than Build   

GL Account Number  421-6034-531.63-15   

Project Number  Various    

Requested Funds  $4,750,000  $4,750,000 

   

 













































STAFF REPORT 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility 

TITLE: 

Construction Agreement for the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement. Program 
with Edison Power Constructors, Inc. 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Construction Agreements authorize Edison Power Constructors, Inc. to perform various work 
through work orders on the City’s 12.5 square mile electric service territory under the electric utility’s 
System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB#23-108) for the construction of numerous hardening and 
reliability improvements to its 26kV Sub transmission, 26kV distribution and 4kV distribution systems, 
while systematically converting the 4kV distribution to a higher voltage, where needed, based on 
engineering studies performed by in house and outside engineers. The result will greatly enhance the 
hardening and reliability of the City’s electrical distribution and sub transmission systems. Edison Power 
Constructors, Inc were the only compliant bid and are recommended for the multi-year agreement. 
Construction services under this agreement will be ordered on as needed basis by issuing individual 
Work Orders approved in accordance with the City’s procurement Code and policy.  The Agreement is 
for the duration of three years with two one-year options to extend for construction services. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the construction services agreement with Edison Power Constructors for 
the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program Project. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Agreement 
 



Page 1 of 35 
 

SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS CONTRACT 
IFB # 23-108 

 
THIS CONTRACT for Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Contract”) is 

entered on ___________________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation (“City”) and Edison Power Constructors, Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in the State 
of Florida (“Contractor”) with its principal office located at 3450 Higley Road, Suite 101, Mesa AZ 85215.  
 

WHEREAS, the City issued Invitation for Bids # 23-108 for the construction of numerous hardening 
and reliability improvements to its electric utility transmission and distribution system (“IFB”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Contractor submitted its bid in response to the IFB; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to award the IFB to the Contractor on a non-exclusive basis for the 

construction of certain system hardening and reliability improvements; and  
 
WHEREAS, this Contract may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies and work 

performed pursuant to this Contract or Work Order funded, in whole or in part, by Federal agencies will comply 
with all applicable Federal laws, Federal regulations, executive orders, policies, procedures, directives and 
special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “D”; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City finds awarding the IFB to the Contractor as described herein serves a valid public 
purpose. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City hereby engages the services of the Contractor, and in consideration of the mutual 
promises herein contained, the sufficient of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 
Article 1.   GENERAL INFORMATION. 
 
1.1   Scope of Services/Work.  The Contractor shall provide the services and work requested by the City and 
required under a City approved work order as described herein. The general nature of the services and work to 
be provided by the Contractor under this Contract are the construction of hardening and reliability improvements 
to the City’s electric utility transmission and distribution system. 
 
1.2   Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents are incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in 
this Contract and comprise the entire agreement between the City and Contractor. The Contract Documents 
consist of this Contract, the IFB (including, but not limited to, the documents issued with the IFB as the scope 
and specifications, the drawings, addenda, attachments and exhibits); and, any duly executed and issued work 
orders, change orders and Contract amendments relating thereto. If, during the performance of the work, the 
Contractor finds an ambiguity, error or discrepancy in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall so notify 
the City, in writing, within five (5) business days and before proceeding shall obtain a written interpretation or 
clarification. Failure to obtain a written interpretation or clarification will be deemed a waiver of the ambiguity, 
error or discrepancy by the Contractor. The City will not be responsible for any oral instructions, clarifications, 
or other communications except those provided in writing in response to Contractor's request for clarification of 
an ambiguity, discrepancy or error. 
 
In resolving conflicts in any of the Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows: 
 

First Priority:  Fully executed Change Orders or Contract amendments 
Second Priority:  This Contract 



Page 2 of 35 
 

Third Priority:  Fully executed Work Orders 
Fourth Priority:  IFB 

 
1.3   Contract Administrator.  Whenever the term Contract Administrator is used herein, it is intended to 
mean the City Manager or designee, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. In the administration of this 
Contract, all parties may rely upon instructions or determinations made by the Contract Administrator except 
that all requests and/or determinations that result in an increase in change in time of completion and/or an 
increase in the contract price shall require a formal change order or contract amendment executed by the City 
Manager or the City Commission (depending on the authority set forth in the City’s Procurement Code). 
 
1.4   Work Orders.  This Contract does not guarantee that the City will utilize the Contractor in any 
capacity or for any services hereunder. When the City identifies a need for the Contractor’s services, the City 
will request a proposal from the Contractor to provide the services requested. The City will provide the 
Contractor with plans and/or specifications in order for the Contractor to develop its proposal. The Contractor’s 
proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample work order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit “A” along with a copy of the Contractor’s proposal and shall be based on the Hourly Billing Rates 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”. Upon receipt of the Contractor’s proposed work order 
and proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion whether to award the work order to the Contractor. 
Depending on the lump sum amount of each work order, the work order may be awarded by the City Manager 
(if within City Manager’s purchasing authority (currently not to exceed $50,000)) or the City Commission. If 
the work order is approved by the City, the Contractor shall commence the identified services upon the City’s 
approval of the work order for the services and issuance of a notice to proceed. The City reserves the right to 
reject any and all proposals submitted by the Contractor. A City-approved work order shall include (by 
reference) the plans and/or specifications provided by the City to the Contractor. 
 
1.5   Term.  The term of this Contract shall be for three (3) years, with an option for two additional twelve 
(12) month renewals upon the mutual agreement of both parties.  The renewal term(s) may be approved by the 
City Manager on behalf of the CITY. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Contract may be terminated as set 
forth in the Contract Documents.  
 
1.6   Hourly Billing Rates.  The Hourly Billing Rates set forth as Exhibit “B” shall remain fixed for the 
first three (3) years of this Contract. If due to applicable price escalations and/or reductions which impact the 
Contractor’s Hourly Billing Rates, the City and Contractor may execute a written amendment to this Contract 
to establish new Hourly Billing Rates for the renewal term(s). The City Manager may approve changes in the 
Hourly Billing Rates based on the recommendation of the City’s Electric Utility Director or designee. 
 
Article 2.   CONTRACT TIME. 
 
2.1 All services and work to be provided under a City-approved work order shall be provided in a timely 
manner as time is of the essence under this Contract.   

2.2 The Contractor shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely performance if such 
delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the Contractor or its subcontractors (if 
authorized) and without the Contractor’s or subcontractor’s fault or negligence. Upon the Contractor’s request, 
the City shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason 
beyond the control of the Contractor and, if the Contractor’s delay and failure to timely perform was without it 
or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as reasonably determined by the City, the time of completion shall be 
extended for any reasonable time that the City may reasonably decide; subject to the City’s rights to change, 
terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of 
the work by any act or neglect of the City or its employees, by an approved written change in the scope from the 
original Contract Documents, or by any other contractor employed by the City, or by changes ordered by the 



Page 3 of 35 
 

City or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the Contractor’s 
reasonable control, or by delay authorized by the City pending negotiation or by any cause which the City shall 
reasonably decide justifies the delay, then the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the 
City may reasonably decide. The Contractor must provide the City with written notice of any delay claims and 
no extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before a claim therefore is 
made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. With the 
exception of an approved written change in the scope from the original Contract Documents, the Contractor’s 
sole remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the 
work and Contractor specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in 
completion of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, 
additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary losses which 
may be allegedly suffered by Contractor due to a delay in completion of the work. Provided, however, and 
subject to sovereign immunity under section 768.28, Florida Statutes, that this provision shall not preclude 
recovery or damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith or active 
interference on the part of the City. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract 
Times as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically 
provided above. 

Article 3.     PAYMENT PROCEDURES 
 
3.1 Generally.  The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis detailing all work accomplished in 
the prior month and all materials installed and used in the work pursuant to City approved work order. 
Contractor’s invoices shall be submitted to: 
 
  City of Lake Worth Beach 
  Attn:  Finance Department 
  7 N. Dixie Highway 
  Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
 
The City’s Contract Administrator or designee will review each invoice submitted by the Contractor. If 
approved, the City will make payment in accordance with the Contract Documents. If not approved, the City 
will notify the Contractor within twenty (20) business days of the City’s receipt and identify the action necessary 
to correct the invoice or a deficiency. 
 
3.2 Payment to the Contractor shall be made pursuant Florida’s Prompt Payment Act (for construction 
services), section 218.735, Florida Statutes, except as provided herein.  Specifically, the City will withhold five 
percent (5%) of each payment from a work order to the Contractor as retainage until fifty percent (95%) of the 
work order price is paid to the Contractor. Upon written request from the Contractor, the Contract Administrator 
may agree in writing with the Contractor to release a portion of the retainage upon payment of ninety-five percent 
(95%) of the work order price being paid to the Contractor (not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total 
retainage amount).   
 
3.3 Upon substantial completion, the Contractor and City shall establish a punch-list of items that must be 
completed by the Contractor prior to the Contractor submitting its final payment request. 
 
3.4 Final Payment.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents (including all punch-list items) and final inspection by the appropriate agency with jurisdiction over 
the project (if other than the City), the Contractor shall submit a “final invoice” to the City. In order for both 
parties to close their books and records, the Contractor will clearly state “FINAL” on the Contractor’s final 
invoice. This certifies that all work under the applicable work order has been properly completed and all charges 
have been invoiced to the City.  Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further charges if not 



Page 4 of 35 
 

properly included in this final invoice are waived by the Contractor.  If the Contractor’s Final Invoice is approved 
as set forth above, the City shall pay the remainder of the work order price including any amount held as 
retainage.   
 
3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required to pay or release any amount of retainage 
that is subject of a good faith dispute, the subject of a claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes, 
or otherwise the subject of a claim or demand by the City. 
 
3.6 Final payment shall not become due until the Contractor and all of its subcontractors submit to the City 
releases and waivers of liens, and data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, 
claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract Documents or otherwise related to the 
Program. 
 
3.7 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor or a subcontractor shall constitute a waiver of 
claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at 
the time of final invoice. 
 
Article 4.   SUBCONTRACTS 
 
The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel required to 
perform the services under this Contract. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual 
relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be performed by the Contractor or under 
its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, 
authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. The Contractor shall furnish 
services in a manner consistent with industry standards and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable 
in the industry with regard to services of this kind. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws in the 
provision of services under this Contract. The Contractor agrees that it is fully responsible to the City for the 
acts and omissions of subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor. 
Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the City. All 
of the Contractor’s personnel (and all subcontractors) while on City premises, will comply with all City 
requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request replacement of any 
of subcontractor or subcontractor’s personnel furnished by the Contractor upon written notice by City to 
Contractor of the cause for such replacement. All work performed by a subcontractor will be at cost to the City 
without any mark-up by the Contractor. All subcontractors must provide the same level and type of insurance 
as required of the Contractor under this Contract prior to commencing any services. The Contractor shall 
submit the subcontractors’ proof of insurance upon receipt of a notice to proceed. 
  
Article 5.   INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE. 
 
The Contractor agrees to assume liability for and indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 
commissioners, mayor, officers, employees, agents, and attorneys of, from, and against all liability and expense, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees, in connection with any and all claims, demands, damages, actions, causes 
of action, and suits in equity of whatever kind or nature, including claims for personal injury, property damage, 
equitable relief, or loss of use, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful 
conduct of the Contractor, its agents, officers, Contractors, subcontractors, employees, or anyone else utilized 
by the Contractor in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor’s liability hereunder shall include all 
attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the City in the enforcement of this indemnification provision. This includes 
claims made by the employees of the Contractor against the City and the Contractor hereby waives its 
entitlement, if any, to immunity under Section 440.11, Florida Statutes.  The obligations contained in this 
provision shall survive termination of this Contract and shall not be limited by the amount of any insurance 
required to be obtained or maintained under this Contract.  



Page 5 of 35 
 

 
Subject to the limitations set forth in this Section, Contractor shall assume control of the defense of any claim 
asserted by a third party against the City and, in connection with such defense, shall appoint lead counsel, in 
each case at the Contractor’s expense.  The City shall have the right, at its option, to participate in the defense 
of any third party claim, without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations hereunder. If the Contractor 
assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance with this paragraph, the Contractor shall 
obtain the prior written consent of the City before entering into any settlement of such claim. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Section, the Contractor shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of 
any third party claim, but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the City and all expenses, including experts’ 
fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect to the third party claim would, in the good faith judgment of 
the City, be detrimental in any material respect to the City’s reputation; (ii) the third party claim seeks an 
injunction or equitable relief against the City; or (iii) the Contractor has failed or is failing to prosecute or defend 
vigorously the third party claim.  Each party shall cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or 
prosecution of any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records and information, and 
attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in 
connection therewith.   
 
It is the specific intent of the parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with Section 725.06, 
Florida Statutes, as amended. The Contractor expressly agrees that it will not claim, and waives any claim, that 
this indemnification violates Section 725.06, Florida Statutes. Nothing contained in the foregoing 
indemnification or any other provision in the Contract Documents shall be construed as a waiver of any 
immunity or limitation of liability the City may have under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 
INSURANCE:  Prior to commencing any work, the Contractor shall provide proof of insurance coverage as 
required in the IFB. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 
authorization of the City. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of 
its liability and obligations under this Contract. Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, 
claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, 
to the Contract Documents and/or performance of the work.  Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in 
any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named, and shall 
do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.  
 
Article 6.       REIMBURSEMENT OF ENGINEER EXPENSES. 
 
Should the completion of a work order be delayed beyond the specified or adjusted time limit, Contractor shall 
reimburse the City for all expenses of engineering and inspection incurred by the City during the period between 
said specified or adjusted time and the actual date of final completion.  All such expenses for engineering and 
inspection incurred by the City will be charged to Contractor and be deducted from payments due Contractor as 
provided by this Contract. Said expenses shall be further defined as engineer charges associated with the 
construction contract administration, including resident project representative costs. All such expenses shall be 
separate from and in addition to any Liquidated Damages as provided for in an applicable Work Order. 
 
Article 7.       PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND. 
 
If the City approves a work order which exceeds $200,000 in total construction cost, the Contractor must provide 
the City with a public construction bond in accordance with section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Said bond must be 
recorded in the Official Records in and for Palm Beach County and a copy of the recorded bond must be provided 
to the City prior to the Contractor providing any services under the work order. The City reserves the right to 
request a bond for any work order which is less than $200,000. The cost of the bond shall be a direct pass through 
cost to the City without any mark-up by the Contractor. 



Page 6 of 35 
 

 
The public construction bond shall be on forms attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or substantially similar as 
approved by the City. The bond shall be in an amount not less than the total Work Order price and shall 
incorporate by reference the terms of the Contract Documents in their entirety.  
 
To be acceptable to the City, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions: 
 

The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida 
Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida. 
 
(a) The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States 

Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code. 
 
(b) The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code. 
 
(c) The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida 

Insurance Code at the time the Contractor submits its Work Order for City approval. 
 
(d) The Surety Company shall have at least the ratings of A-/Class V in the latest issue of Best’s Key 

Rating Guide. 
 
(e) The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten 

(10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided: 
 

1. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining 
the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum 
requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or 
approval by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance to do business in this 
state have been met. 

 
2. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, 

the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or 
held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be 
deducted. 

 
Article 8.       TERMINATION. 
 
8.1 TERMINATION BY CITY:  The City may terminate any work order, the Contract and/or the Contract 
Documents if the Contractor is in default as follows: 

 
(a) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials to timely and 

competently complete the work; 
(b) fails to make payment to subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respective 

agreements between the Contractor and the subcontractors; 
(c) disregards or takes action contrary to any laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a 

public authority having jurisdiction;  
(d) takes action, short of declaring bankruptcy, evidencing insolvency;  

 (e) fails to prosecute the services or work in a timely manner and reasonably be unable to reach 
 substantial completion and/or final completion within the timeframe(s) required;  

 (e) fails or refuses to provide and/or maintain insurance or proof of insurance as required by the 
 Contract Documents; or, 



Page 7 of 35 
 

(f) otherwise is in breach of a provision of the Contract Documents. 
 

When any of the above reasons exist, the City, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City 
and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety (if applicable), written notice and five (5) days to 
cure, terminate the work order, Contract and/or Contract Documents and may: 
 

(a) take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment 
and machinery thereon owned by or paid for by the City; and, 

(b) finish the work by whatever reasonable method the City may deem expedient.  
 
The Contractor and its surety (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the City, including additional attorney 
and engineering/architectural fees, resulting from the Contractor’s termination under this provision by the City, 
including but not limited to, and any increased costs incurred by the City in completing the work. 

 
When the City terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated above, the Contractor shall not be entitled 
to receive further payment, if any, until the work is finished. 
 
Should it be determined by a mediator or a court of competent jurisdiction that the City wrongfully terminated 
the Contract, then the Contractor agrees to treat such termination as a termination for convenience. 

 
8.2 TERMINATION BY THE CITY FOR CONVENIENCE 
 
The City may, at any time, terminate the Contract and Contract Documents for the City’s convenience and 
without cause. Upon receipt of written notice from the City of such termination for the City’s convenience, the 
Contractor shall: 
 

 (a) cease operations as directed by the City in the notice; 
 (b) take actions necessary, or that the City may direct, for the protection and preservation 

of the work; and 
 (c) except for work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated 

in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no 
further subcontracts and purchase orders. 

 
In case of such termination for the City’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for 
work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination including termination payments to 
subcontractors and demobilization costs.   
 
Article 9. TAXES AND DIRECT PURCHASES. 
 
9.1       TAXES:  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Tax. The Contractor is not 
authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number unless approved in writing. 
 
9.2 DIRECT PURCHASES:  For certain projects, the City may seek to make direct purchases of equipment 
or materials to be used by the Contractor. Pursuant to Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and the Fla. Admin. 
Code Ann. R. 12A-1.094 and 12A-1.038, the Parties agree to the following procedure regarding the City’s direct-
purchase from vendors of certain equipment and materials to be used in specific projects: 

 
9.2.1 The City reserves the right, at the City’s option, to direct purchase equipment and materials 
involved in a specific project, including subcontracts, if any so as to save the sales tax which would 
otherwise have been due with regard to the same. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall comply 
with the City’s direct purchase procedures, including but not limited to those listed below. 



Page 8 of 35 
 

 
9.2.2 As specifically set forth in a City issued work order, within 30 days (or other time as 
specified in the work order), the Contractor will present a list of direct purchase equipment for the 
City’s consideration which will include the recommended vendors’ name; the price quotes from all 
vendors provided to the Contractor; and, any terms and conditions the Contractor has negotiated with 
the recommended vendors. The City will then inform the Contractor as to which equipment it will 
direct purchase. In the event the City fails to exercise its option to direct purchase equipment and 
identify which equipment is to be purchased by the City within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of 
the list from the Contractor, the City shall waive its right to direct purchase any and all equipment to 
be used in completion of the work under the applicable work order. 
 
9.2.3 The Contractor is responsible for selecting each direct purchase vendor, subject to City 
approval. The Contractor is responsible for specifications, equipment receipt, inspecting shipments, 
and assuring that the equipment is in accordance with the work order and the Contractor’s 
specifications. The Contractor is also responsible for providing the City with enough advance notice 
of when the direct purchase equipment will need to be ordered and delivered. In absence of the 
Contractor’s receipt of a written notice of City’s disapproval of a vendor within thirty (30) calendar 
days of City’s receipt of the vendor/material list referenced in 9.2.2, the City shall be deemed to have 
waived any and all objections thereto. 
 
9.2.4 The Contractor shall retain all responsibility for installing all equipment relating to the work 
and for maintaining the construction schedule so long as the City timely orders and pays for the correct 
direct purchase equipment. The City’s direct purchase mechanism to effectuate tax savings in no way 
effects the obligation of the Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions and all provisions and 
technical specifications of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall be responsible for insuring 
all equipment once the equipment is in its care, custody and control, regardless of whether directly 
purchased by City. 
 
9.2.5 The City will issue a direct purchase order to the vendor of the direct purchase equipment at 
the price proposed in the Contractor’s or its subcontractor’s bid, less sales tax. The City will promptly 
send a copy of the issued purchaser order to the Contractor. 
 
9.2.6 It will be the Contractor’s primary responsibility to properly expedite and follow up on direct 
purchase orders, thereby assuring delivery of the equipment as ordered and at the time and place needed 
by the Contractor to complete the work in accordance with the work order and construction schedule. 
To the extent required by the Contractor, the City shall cooperate with all requests of the Contractor 
related to the expedition of and follow up on direct purchase orders. 
 
9.2.7 The Contractor shall take delivery, unload, and install the equipment purchased on the direct 
purchase order in accordance with the work order and the Contract Documents with the vendor to 
repair, replace, and make good any defect without cost to the City, until such time as the work has been 
completed and accepted by City in accordance with the Contract Documents. The City, with assistance 
from the Contractor, will be responsible for undertaking and completing any returns of direct purchase 
equipment as requested by the Contractor and working with the vendor to effectuate any credits or 
warranties for the returned equipment (if applicable). Any returns not replaced shall be credited to City 
and acknowledged by a supplement to the direct purchase order and, if applicable, amendment to the 
Contract Sum. The Contractor shall not be responsible for warranting the direct purchase equipment to 
the City; however, the Contractor shall be responsible for facilitating the vendor’s warranty of the 
direct purchase equipment and the Contractor shall be responsible for warranting the work to install 
and/or incorporate the equipment. The Contractor shall maintain records of all direct purchases 
received and incorporated into the work and provide the City with a monthly accounting until all direct 
purchase items that are received and accepted for inclusion in the specific project. 



Page 9 of 35 
 

 
9.2.8 When delivery of a direct purchase order is complete, or a payment is to be made on a partial 
shipment, the Contractor will timely submit to City the documentation supporting the equipment 
received. Invoices for direct purchase orders will be sent by the direct purchase vendor directly to 
City’s Finance Department, with all such invoices addressed to and in the name of the City. The City’s 
Finance Department will forward invoices to the City’s Contract Administrator. The City’s Contract 
Administrator will forward the invoices to the Contractor to verify delivery and sign the invoice and 
associated documentation supporting the amount of the payment. The City will make timely payment 
to all vendors in compliance with each vendor’s payment procedures. The City will take title to all 
equipment ordered through direct purchase upon or at the time of purchase. The Contractor will assist 
City in assuring prompt payment by supplying the vendor’s FEI numbers, addresses, phone numbers, 
etc. All payments will be made in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act. 
 

Article 10. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS. 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Contract, the Contractor makes the following representations: 
 
10.1 Contractor has or will familiarize itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, work, 
site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the work prior to commencing the work under an applicable Work Order. All work 
shall be performed consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
10.2 Contractor agrees to be solely responsible for compliance with all applicable environmental regulations, 
for any liability arising from non-compliance with the regulations and to reimburse the City for any loss incurred 
in connection therewith. This compliance provision specifically includes the Contractor’s compliance with all 
applicable standards, orders or regulations including, without limitation, those issued pursuant to the Clean Air 
Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 
 
10.3 Contractor agrees to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify System to verify the 
employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the Contractor during the term of this Contract. 
 
10.4 The Contractor represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and 
approvals required to conduct its business and provide the work required under the Contract Documents.  Proof 
of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request. 
 
Article 11. INFRINGEMENT INDEMNITY.    
 
11.1 The Contractor will defend or settle at its expense a claim or suit brought by a third party against the 
City arising out of a claim asserting that the services, work, repair, materials or other deliverables 
(“deliverables” hereafter) provided by the Contractor under the Contract Documents (if any) infringes any U.S. 
copyright or any U.S. patent or misappropriates a trade secret. The Contractor will indemnify and hold 
harmless the City against and from damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees, if any and at all levels of trial and 
appeal or mediation or arbitration, finally awarded in such suit or the amount of the settlement thereof; 
provided that (i) the Contractor is promptly notified in writing of such claim or suit, (ii) the Contractor will 
have the sole control of the defense and settlement thereof, and (iii) City furnishes the Contractor, on 
reasonable request, information available to City for such defense. The City will not admit any such claim 
without prior consent of the Contractor. 

a. In the event of a claim of infringement, the Contractor shall, at its option: 

1. procure for City the right to continue using the deliverables provided under the 



Page 10 of 35 
 

Contract Documents; or 

2. replace or modify the deliverables so that the same becomes non-infringing but 
substantially equivalent in functionality and performance. 

3. If neither of the above actions is reasonably feasible, the Contractor will refund to 
City the fee actually paid by City under the Contract Documents (as amortized on a straight-
line basis over the time in which the City was able to use the deliverables. 

b. The Contractor will have no obligation under this section for infringement if and to the extent 
that such claim arises from: 

1. modification of the deliverables other than by the Contractor or by its 
recommendation; or 

2. combination of the deliverables with products other than those supplied by the 
Contractor;  

and, 

3. the alleged infringement or misappropriation relates to such modification or 
combination. 

c. The Contractor will also not have any indemnification obligation with respect to a claim: (i) 
if it has provided City with reasonable changes that would have avoided the problem and the reasonable 
changes are not fully implemented by City within a reasonable time or (ii) arising out use of the deliverables 
not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

d. The Contractor’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in effect and 
shall be binding upon the Contractor whether such injury or damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before 
or after termination or expiration of the Contract Documents. 
 
Article 12. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
12.1 The City and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, its successors, assigns and legal representatives 
to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, 
agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 
 
12.2 Additional work and/or changes to a work order’s price and/or time, is subject to the City’s prior written 
approval. Only the City Manager and City Commission (based on the procurement code) have the authority to 
approve such additional work and changes.  
 
12.3 The headings contained in this Contract are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not be 
a part or control or affect the meaning hereof.  
 
12.4 This Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original, but all of which shall be deemed to be an original, but each of which together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. 
 
12.5 This Contract (together with the other Contract Documents) supersedes any and all prior negotiations 
and oral or written agreements heretofore made relating to the subject matter hereof and, except for written 
agreements, if any, executed and delivered simultaneously with or subsequent to the date of this Contract, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Contract may not be 
altered or amended except by a writing signed by the parties hereto. No waiver of any of the terms or conditions 



Page 11 of 35 
 

of this Contract shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party to be changed therewith. No waiver 
of any condition or of the breach of any term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision hereof shall 
be deemed to be construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or breach or a waiver of any 
other condition or of any breach of any other term, covenant, representation, warranty or other provision 
contained in this Contract. 
 
12.6   This Contract shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective successors and assigns. 
 
12.7    This Contract shall be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida. Each of the parties hereto (a) irrevocably submit itself to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 
Fifteenth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida for state actions and jurisdiction of the 
United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Palm Beach Division, for the purposes of any 
suit, action or other proceeding arising out of, or relating to, this Contract; (b) waives and agrees not to assert 
against any party hereto, by way of motion, as a defense of otherwise, in any suit, action or other proceeding, 
any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts for any reason 
whatsoever; and (c) to the extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding by 
any part hereto is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is 
improper or that this Contract or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by such courts. 
 
12.8   This Contract shall create no rights or claims whatsoever in any third party. 
 
12.9   If any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 
any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby.    
 
12.10   The effective date of this Contract is the date the Contract is approved by the City Commission. 
 
12.11 Public Records:  The Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, 
 Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 
 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 
 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 
 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a 
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at 
a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 
by law. 
 
(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Contract 
and following completion of this Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 
 
(d) Upon completion of this Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 
of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 
Contractor transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public 
records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.  



Page 12 of 35 
 

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY 
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: 
ATTENTION CITY CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 
CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 
HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 
 
12.12 This Contract shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more 
responsible for its preparation. 
 
12.13 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the Contractor acknowledges that 
this Contract may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The 
Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or 
obligations under such ordinance. 
 
12.14 If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Contract or the Contract 
Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any 
provisions of this Contract or the Contract Documents, each party shall be responsible for their own attorney’s 
fees at all levels.  EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO A JURY 
TRIAL ARISING OUT OF ALLEGED DISPUTE, BREACH, DEFAULT, MISREPRESENTATION OR ANY 
OTHER CLAIM IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING FROM ANY PROVISION OF THIS CONTRACT 
OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
12.15 Each of the parties agrees to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents in conformance with 
all laws, regulations and administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of the work and under 
the Contract Documents. 
 
12.16 All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, plans, reports, other items and data 
or programs stored in hard-copy, electronically or otherwise (collectively referred to as “Documents” hereafter), 
prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract shall be considered a “Work for Hire” and 
the exclusive property of the City. To the extent such Documents may not be deemed a “Work for Hire” under 
applicable law, Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors will assign to the City all right, title and interest in 
and to Contractor and/or Contractor’s Subcontractors’ copyright(s) for such Documents. Contractor shall 
execute and deliver to City such instruments of transfer and take such other action that City may reasonable 
request, including, without limitation, executing and filing, at City’s expense, copyright applications, 
assignments and other documents required for the protection of City’s right to such Documents.  The Contractor 
shall retain copies of the Documents for a period of three (3) years from the date of completion of the Program. 
The City grants to the Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors the right and/or limited license to use a portion 
of the Documents prepared by the Contractor or the Contractor’s subcontractors in future projects of the 
Contractor or Contractor’s subcontractors with said right and/or limited license to use a portion at Contractor’s 
or Contractor’s subcontractor’s own risk and without any liability to City. Any modifications made by the City 
to any of the Contractor’s Documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the Documents without written 
authorization or adaptation by the Contractor will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability to the Contractor.    
 
12.17 Any provision of this Contract which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation which extends 
beyond the term of this Contract shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.  

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.


Page 13 of 35 
 

 
12.18 Any notice required to be given under the Contract Documents shall be sent by certified mail (return 
receipt requested) or by nationally recognized overnight courier as follows to the City: 
 
 City of Lake Worth Beach 
 Attn:  City Manager 
 7 N. Dixie Highway 
 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
 
 and to the Contractor as follows: 
  
 Edison Power Constructors, Inc. 
 3450 N Higley Road, Mesa, AZ 85712 
 Attn: Michael Seutter, Senior Vice President  
 
  
 Either party may amend this provision by written notice to the other party. 
 
12.19 The Contractor represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or 
indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required hereunder, as provided 
for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The Contractor further represents that no person having any such 
conflicting interest shall be employed for said performance. The Contractor shall promptly notify the City’s 
representative, in writing, of all potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest 
or other circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the Contractor’s judgment or quality of 
services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, 
interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the Contractor may undertake and request an opinion of the City 
as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a conflict of 
interest if entered into by the Contractor. The City agrees to notify the Contractor of its opinion within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of notification by the Contractor. If, in the opinion of the City, the prospective business 
association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the Contractor, the City shall 
so state in the notification and the Contractor shall, at its option, enter into said association, interest or 
circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with respect to services provided to the City by 
the Contractor under the terms of this Contract. 
 
12.20  The Contractor warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, political affiliation, marital 
status, handicap, or sexual orientation. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate or permit discrimination against 
any employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, political affiliation, 
natural origin, ancestry, marital status, sexual orientation or handicap.   

 
12.21  This Contract is not intended to be and shall not be construed as an exclusive agreement, and the City 
may employ additional or other contractors to perform services contemplated by this Contract without liability 
to the City. 
 
12.22 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has 
been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public 
work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded 
or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may not 



Page 14 of 35 
 

transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 
Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted 
vendor list. The Contractor will promptly advise the City if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 
 
12.21 PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY CLAIMS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND CURE PROVISIONS OF 
CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  
 
12.22 The Contract shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the performance of all services and work. This includes being responsible for all 
precautions for safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to employees performing 
the services and work and other persons who may be affected thereby; the work, materials and equipment 
incorporated therein; and other property, equipment or materials at the site or adjacent thereto including, 
without limitation, trees, shrubs, lawns, sidewalks, pavements, roadways or structures and utilities not 
designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the work. The Contractor shall comply with 
and give all notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing on safety 
of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. The Contractor shall implement, erect 
and maintain reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other 
warnings against hazards reasonably related to the work or which could arise therefrom. The Contractor shall 
promptly remedy damage and loss (other than covered by applicable insurance) caused in whole or in part by 
the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by or utilized by the Contractor in the performance 
of the work, which is not attributable to the City’s negligence. 
 
12.23 The Contractor agrees that, in all matters relating to this Contract, it will be acting as an independent 
contractor with exclusive control of the manner and means of performing the work, its obligations and tasks in 
accordance with the requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents. The Contractor has no 
authority to act or make any agreements or representations on behalf of the City. This Contract is not intended, 
and shall not be construed to create, between the City and the Contractor, the relationship of principal and 
agent, joint-venturers, co-partners or any other such relationship, the existence of which is hereby expressly 
denied. No employee or agent of Contractor shall be, or shall be deemed to be, an employee or agent of City. 
 

 
 

Remainder of this page intentionally left blank 
Signature page follows  





Page 16 of 35 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

SAMPLE WORK ORDER 
 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
WORK ORDER NO._____ 

 
THIS WORK ORDER for System Hardening and Reliability Improvements (“Work Order” hereafter) 

is made on the ____ ___________________________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida 
municipal corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 (“City” hereafter) 
and Edison Power Constructors, Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in State of Florida (“Contractor” 
hereafter). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment as identified 
herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described as:  
__________________________________________________________ (the “Project”). The Project is 
more specifically described in the plans prepared by ______________________, dated ____________, 
and which are incorporated herein by reference.  
 

2.0 Scope 
 
Under this Work Order, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach with construction 
services for the Project as specified in the Contractor’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated 
herein as Exhibit “1”.    

 
3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 
 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Work Order shall be within ____   calendar 
days from the Effective Date of this Work Order. Final completion of all services and work (and all 
punch-list items (if any)) under this Work Order shall be within ____ calendar days from the Effective 
Date of this Work Order. The Effective Date of this Work Order is the date following the parties’ 
execution of this Work Order and the City’s delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the Contractor via e-mail, 
facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial completion occurs when the 
services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of the City, the work is sufficiently 
complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this Work Order, so that the Project can be 
utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final completion occurs when all services and work 
(including punch-list items) has been completed and the project becomes fully operational and accepted 
by the City. 
 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under this 
Work Order and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial loss if the services 
and work described in this Work Order and the Contract Documents are not completed within 
the times specified in this Work Order. The City and Contractor recognize, agree and 
acknowledge that it would be impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual 
damages that the City would suffer in the event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to 
complete the services and work within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 
such proof, the City and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 
penalty) Contractor shall pay the City________ hundred dollars ($_________.00) for each day 
that expires after the time specified in this Work Order.   



Page 17 of 35 
 

 
 

4.0 Compensation and Direct Purchases 
 

This Work Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of $______________________ 
(_____________________). The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses included in the 
lump sum, not to exceed amount. 
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this Work Order by the City: ________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________________________. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is __________________________, 
phone:___________________; email: ____________________; and, the Project Manager for the City 
is ______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 
email:_______________________. 

 
6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

 
7.0 Contractor’s Representations 
 

In order to induce the City to enter into this Work Order, the Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
 
7.1 Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this Work Order, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations that in 
any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work. 
 
7.2 Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes responsibility 
for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports which pertain to 
the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the performance or 
furnishing of the work at the stated work order price within the Work Order stated time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the 
provisions of the IFB; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies 
or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for such purposes. 
 
7.3 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in respect 
of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to perform and 
furnish the work under this Work Order price, within the Work Order time and in accordance with the 
other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 



Page 18 of 35 
 

explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City’s Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof 
by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
8.0 Warranty.  The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 

under this Work Order will be in accordance with this Work Order and the other Contract Documents. 
The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Work Order shall be free 
from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 
warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Work Order will be free from defects 
for one (1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 
unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the requirements 
of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (1) year warranty period, 
the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties or the Contractor discovers any 
failure or breach of the Contractor’s warranties, the Contractor will, upon written notice from City or of 
its own accord, at the Contractor’s sole cost and expense, promptly correct such failure or breach (which 
corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary removal, disassembly, reinstallation, 
repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection of any part or portion of the work and 
any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, or corrective action). The Contractor 
will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the 
operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor fails to initiate and diligently pursue 
corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor’s receipt of the City’s notice or the Contractor’s 
discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective action at the Contractor’s expense.  
 

9.0 Authorization 
 

This Work Order is issued pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract for 
between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the Contractor, dated _____________, (“Contract” 
hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this Work Order and the 
Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail.  

 
  
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 
 
 
 
  



Page 19 of 35 
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Work Order as of the day 
and year set forth above.   
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:                                                                       
             
                                              
By: __________________________                By: ____DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY____________ 
      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                                Betty Resch, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 
 
 
By: __________________________                By: _______________________________________ 
      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 
 

 
 
CONTRACTOR: Edison Power Constructors, Inc 

 
      By: __DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY ___ 
 
[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
      Title: _________________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF _______________________) 
COUNTY OF _____________________) 
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of � physical presence or � 
online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of Edison Power Constructors, Inc a Corporation, who is personally 
known to me or who has produced _________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath 
that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     
 
    
 
 
  



Page 20 of 35 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
HOURLY BILLING RATES 

 
  



Page 21 of 35 
 

Professional Overhead Hourly Rate Schedule 

Labor Hourly Rate 
Superintendent  $                                          133.55  
Mechanic  $                                            85.12  
Project Manager  $                                          105.94  
General Foreman  $                                          116.10  
General Foreman OT  $                                          166.99  
Foreman & Safety Supervisor  $                                          111.68  
Foreman & Safety Supervisor OT  $                                          160.35  
Journeyman  $                                          102.83  
Journeyman OT  $                                          147.07  
Cable Splicer  $                                          107.24  
Cable Splicer OT  $                                          153.72  
Equipment Operator  $                                            85.12  
Equipment Operator OT  $                                          120.52  
Heavy Equipment Operator  $                                          102.83  
Heavy Equipment Operator OT  $                                          153.71  
Apprentice 1  $                                            67.42  
Apprentice 1 OT  $                                            93.96  
Apprentice 2  $                                            71.85  
Apprentice 2 OT  $                                          100.60  
Apprentice 3  $                                            76.27  
Apprentice 3 OT  $                                          107.24  
Apprentice 4  $                                            80.70  
Apprentice 4 OT  $                                          113.88  
Apprentice 5  $                                            85.12  
Apprentice 5 OT  $                                          120.52  
Apprentice 6  $                                            89.55  
Apprentice 6 OT  $                                          127.16  
Apprentice 7  $                                            93.97  
Apprentice 7 OT  $                                          133.79  
Groundman  $                                            64.77  
Groundman OT  $                                            89.99  
Trouble Rate *Per Man Hour*  $                                          236.17  

 
 
  



Page 22 of 35 
 

 
Professional Overhead Hourly Rate Schedule 

Equipment Notes Hourly Rate 
Truck Pickup 1/4T    $             11.91  
Truck Pickup 1/4T (4X4)    $             13.07  
Truck Pickup 1/2T    $             11.88  
Truck Pickup 1/2T (4X4)    $             12.46  
Truck Pickup 3/4T    $             13.04  
Truck Pickup 3/4T (4X4)    $             13.62  
Truck Pickup 1T    $             20.66  
Truck Pickup 1T (4X4)    $             20.66  
Truck Pickup 2T    $             22.50  
Dumptruck     $             25.05  
Flatbed    $             16.62  
Knuckle Bed Winch Medium    $             47.67  
Knuckle Bed Winch Large    $             59.30  
Fuel Truck-Small Subcontractor cost plus 10%  $                    -    
Fuel Truck-Large Subcontractor cost plus 10%  $                    -    
Bucket Truck 35'-49'    $             23.83  
Bucket Truck 35'-49' (4X4)    $             23.83  
Bucket Material Handler 35'-49'    $             29.53  
Bucket Material Handler 35'-49' (4X4)    $             30.49  
Bucket Truck 50'-60'    $             34.39  
Bucket Truck 50'-60' (4X4)    $             36.01  
Bucket Material Handler 50'-60'    $             34.39  
Bucket Material Handler 50'-60' (4X4)    $             36.01  
Bucket Truck 61'-75'    $             48.25  
Bucket Truck 61'-75' (4X4)    $             48.25  
Bucket Material Handler 61'-75'    $             40.11  
Bucket Material Handler 61'-75' (4X4)    $             48.25  
Bucket Truck 76'-93'    $             80.78  
Bucket Truck 76'-93' (4X4)    $             81.72  
Bucket Truck 94'-100'    $             81.72  
Bucket Truck 94'-100' (4X4)    $             81.72  
Bucket Truck 101'-125'    $           105.00  
Bucket Truck 101'-125' (4X4)    $           141.69  
Bucket Truck 126'-150'    $           176.57  
Pole Trailer    $             10.38  
Wire Trailer Single Reel    $               6.10  
Wire Trailer Two Reel    $             11.10  
Wire Trailer Three Reel    $             27.73  



Page 23 of 35 
 

Wire Trailer Four Reel    $             12.70  
Material Trailer 16'-20'    $             17.27  
Tractor Trailer    $             20.47  
Lowboy Trailer 50 TON    $             10.47  
Stepdeck Trailer    $             27.73  
Trailer Single Axle    $               7.88  
Crane 30 TON    $             53.28  
Crane 55 TON    $             91.72  
Crane 70 TON Subcontractor cost plus 10%  $                    -    
Crane 110 TON Subcontractor cost plus 10%  $                    -    
Digger w Sheave Height 42.5 ft.    $             22.18  
Digger w Sheave Height 45.6 ft.    $             29.21  
Digger w Sheave Height 54.1 ft.    $             48.63  
Digger w Sheave Height 65.1 ft.    $             48.63  
Pressure Digger    $             85.52  
Wire Puller    $             19.80  
UG Wire Puller    $             44.22  
Single Drum Puller Distribution Pull Max. 3500lbs.     $             31.02  
Single Drum Puller Distribution Pull Max. 7500lbs.     $             97.13  
Three Drum Puller    $           150.04  
Four Drum Puller    $             83.18  
V Grove Puller    $             83.18  
Overhead Line Tensioner Max. 3000lbs.    $             20.70  
Directional Bore Machine Subcontractor cost plus 10%  $                    -    
Skid Steer    $             11.95  
Backhoe    $             14.57  
Backhoe with Hammer    $             20.09  
Medium Front Loader    $             40.73  
Large Front Loader    $             54.11  
XL Front Loader    $             62.25  
Small Dozer w/ Winch    $             23.00  
Medium Dozer w/ Winch    $             29.11  
Large Dozer w/ Winch    $             36.95  
XL Dozer w/ Winch    $             39.57  
Mimi Excavator    $             22.13  
Medium Excavator     $             16.90  
Large Excavator    $             26.49  
XL Excavator    $             49.36  
Excavator Hammer    $             14.53  
Under 200 CFM Air Compressor    $               6.77  
200-800 CFM Air Compressor    $             14.91  
801-1600 CFM Air Compressor    $             20.72  



Page 24 of 35 
 

Air Jack Hammer N/A Small tools  $                    -    
Generator 0-10KW    $             11.91  
Generator 11-50KW    $             11.91  
Generator 51-125KW    $             16.33  
Generator 126-400KW    $             27.74  
Generator 401-1000KW    $             32.63  
All Terrain Forklift 40'-70'    $             21.50  
All Terrain Forklift Over 70'    $             27.90  

  



Page 25 of 35 
 

 
EXHIBIT “C” 

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND FORMS 
 

Record and Return to: 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH  
PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to sec. 255.05, Fla. Stat.) 
 

Surety Bond No. __________  
   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 
Name:       Name: 
Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 
 
Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 
 
OWNER: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
(561) 586-1600 
 
CONTRACT:  System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Program 
Contract Work Order No: 
Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location):  
General Description of Work: 
 
BOND 
Date (not earlier than Work Order Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form: 
 
This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 
performance of the Contract. 
1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 
“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further described 
in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and incorporated 
documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part hereof for the 
purposes of explaining this bond. 
2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 
payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and 
severally. 
3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 
 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the times and in 
the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by reference; and 



Page 26 of 35 
 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment s to 
all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for prosecution of 
the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 
 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, and 
professional fees, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner 
sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 
 d. Performs the warranty and guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract 
Documents for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full 
force. 
4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 
is incorporated herein by reference. 
5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice 
and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 
6.        Any changes in or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 
formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this 
bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 
7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 
and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 
Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 
obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 
8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 
Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 
Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as required 
under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by 
its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
 
Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 20__. 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Principal 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Title 
(Corporate Seal) 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Surety 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Attorney-in-Fact 
       (Attach Power of Attorney) 
 
__________________________________ 
       Print Name 
 
       (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



Page 27 of 35 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

Federal Contract Provisions 
 
The Contractor hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any subsequent 
contract resulting from this IFB, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other funding where the 
following terms are applicable: 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Contractor agrees as 
follows: 
 
(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard 
to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, 
but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor 
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 
provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   
(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the 
compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to 
instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or 
applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other 
employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such 
disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, 
or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor's legal duty 
to furnish information. 
(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 
bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union 
or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice 
in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 
(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and 
of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 (6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit 
access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes 
of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 
(7) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 
with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in 
whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally 
assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 
law. 
(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 



Page 28 of 35 
 

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor 
will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct 
as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  Provided, however, that in the 
event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a 
result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into 
such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its own 
employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if the applicant 
so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any 
agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the 
contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the 
Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity 
clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of 
such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's 
primary responsibility for securing compliance.   
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject 
to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated 
eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive 
Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be 
imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to 
Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails or refuses to comply 
with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, 
terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending 
any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred 
until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the 
Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 
 
Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
(1) Overtime requirements. No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work 
which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer 
or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in 
such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half 
times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek. 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set 
forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable 
for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the 
case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), 
for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 
mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this 
section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in 
excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 
set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   
(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  shall 
upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold 
or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or 
subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other 
federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the 
same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such 



Page 29 of 35 
 

Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 
paragraph (2) of this section. 
(4) Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 
paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 
in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor 
or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 
 
Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the 
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that 
“funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, 
“Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, 
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, in 
turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and 
the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 
whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act  
(1) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 
(2) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY will, 
in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, 
and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed in 
whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Suspension and Debarment.  
(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 
Contractor is required to verify that none of the Contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 
affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 
at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
(2) The Contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 
include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 
(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If it is 
later determined that the Contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, 
subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government may 
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 
(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 
pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this 
offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier 
covered transactions. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 



Page 30 of 35 
 

 Contractors who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid out 
in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to 
pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 
a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also 
disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. 
Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who in turn will forward the certification(s) 
to the awarding agency. 
 
Procurement of Recovered materials.  
(i) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing 
recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 
• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule; 
• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 
• At a reasonable price. 
(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at EPA’s 
Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- procurement-
guideline-cpg-program. 
(iii) The Contractor also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid 
Waste Disposal Act.” 
 
Access to Records.  
(1) The Contractor agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller 
General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, 
and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  
(2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to 
copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
(3) The Contractor agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 
construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 
(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Contractor acknowledge and agree 
that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ Administrator or 
the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  
The Contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency 
officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  
By signing this agreement, the Contractor acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to fund 
all or a portion of the contract. The Contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive 
orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  
 
No Obligation by Federal Government.  
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the 
non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 
 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Contractor acknowledges that 31 
U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor’s actions 
pertaining to this contract. 
 



Page 31 of 35 
 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  
If the Contractor intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Contractor must 
take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises 
and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must include: 
(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; 
(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever 
they are potential sources; 
(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit 
maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 
(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small 
and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 
(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 
Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
 
Domestic preferences for procurements. 
(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should purchase, acquire, or use of goods, 
products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, 
and other manufactured products).  
(2) For purposes of this section:  
(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, from 
the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  
(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-
ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 
aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 
 
Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 
(1) The Contractor is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  
(a) Procure or obtain;  
(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  
(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems that 
uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, 
or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, covered 
telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company 
or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical 
infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment 
produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or 
Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  
(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the 
Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, 
the government of a covered foreign country.  
(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), the 
City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions and 
organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications 
equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure that communications 
service to users and customers is sustained. 
 
Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 



Page 32 of 35 
 

a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall 
comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable. 
b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages 
specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. 
c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week. 
 
 
 
 
Current Davis Bacon wage determination for Heavy Construction shall be attached to each Work Order if 
Federal Funds are utilized.   
  



Page 33 of 35 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 
MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations implementing 
Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, Debarment and 
Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  As such, Contractor 
is required to confirm that none of the Contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates 
(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. 
§ 180.935).  
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
 
1) By signing this Certification, the Contractor, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective primary 
participant, is providing the certification set out below.  
 
2) The inability of a Contractor to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 
denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation of 
why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered in 
connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 
prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 
participation in this transaction. 
 
3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant 
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any time the 
prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become 
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in this 
certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing 
Executive Order 12549. 
 
6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly enter 
into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, 
subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 
transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered into such a 
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause 
or default. 
 
7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include the 
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower 
Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland Security, without 
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. 
 
8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a 
lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, 
suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification 






	Top
	A.	06/27 U minutes
	DRAFT 062723 U minutes

	A.	7 Eleven Bill of Sale
	7 Eleven Staff Report
	Bill of Sale

	B.	John Rice Way Drainage Improvements
	Johnson Davis Staff Report
	Work Order #2

	C.	Agreement with BlueTriton Brands, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of potable bottled water in emergency situations
	Blue Triton Staff Report
	Blue Triton Brands, Inc. Agreement
	Bid Tab

	D.	Agreement with Phoenix Bus Inc for the transportation of contract and/or mutual aid crews during emergency situations
	Phoenix Staff Report
	Agreement

	E.	Resolution No. 27-2023 - ARPA Reallocation Stormwater Funds
	ARPA Reallocation Staff Report
	Resolution 27-2023

	F.	Resolution No. 28-2023 - First Amendment to the MMOA with FDOT to include City’s preferred decorative lighting
	FDOT Staff Report
	Resolution 28-2023
	MOA Decorative Lighting
	MOA Decorative Lighting 93020000

	A.	Electric Vehicle charging station at City Hall
	EV City Hall Staff Report
	City Hall EV Charging Station Spaces
	Cost Estimate- City Hall EV Charging Stations

	B.	Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG)
	EECBG Staff Report
	Pre-Award Info Sheet

	C.	First Amendment to Agreement with ULS Corporate Inc. for the purchase and delivery of overhead, pole-mounted distribution transformers
	ULS Staff Report
	ULS 1st Amendment
	ULS Corp Agreement

	D.	Edison Power Constructors - Construction Agreement for SHRIP
	Edison Staff Report
	Agreement

	Bottom

